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BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
             Monday, November 25, 2013 

 Regular Meeting - 7:00 P.M. 
        

Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Richard B. Currie 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
1. Call to Order. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
2. Pledge of Allegiance. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
3. Roll Call. 

 _____________________________________________________________________________ 
Motion  4. Minutes of the November 11, 2013 Regular Board Meeting. 

Motion approving the Minutes of November 11, 2013 as submitted. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
5. Written Communications. 
_____________________________________________________________________________ 
6. Oral Communications. 

The public may provide oral comments at regular and special Board meetings; however, whenever possible, 
written statements are preferred (to be received at the Union Sanitary District office at least one working 
day prior to the meeting).  This portion of the agenda is where a member of the public may address and ask 
questions of the Board relating to any matter within the Board’s jurisdiction that is not on the agenda.  If the 
subject relates to an agenda item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  
Oral comments are limited to three minutes per individuals, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject. 
Speaker’s cards will be available in the Boardroom and are to be completed prior to discussion. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Information 7. Monthly Operations Report (to be reviewed by the Budget & Finance Committee).  

a. District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures 
b. Collection Services Process Scorecard 
c. General Manager’s Monthly Operations & Investment Report 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Motion 8. Approving a Motion to Cancel the Board of Directors Meeting of  
  December 23, 2013. 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Motion 9. Accepting Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013   

(to be reviewed by the Audit Committee). 
 ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Motion 10. Board of Directors Compensation for 2014 (to be reviewed by the Personnel 
Committee). 

_____________________________________________________________________________ 
Motion 11. Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with the 

Covello Group for Providing Construction Management Services for the 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project (Pipkin) (to be reviewed by 
the Construction Committee). 

________________________________________________________________ 
Motion 12. Resolution No. 2720, Accepting the Construction of the Headworks 

Improvements Project from Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, 
Inc. and Authorizing the Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of 
Completion (Pipkin) (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee). 
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Motion 13. Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task 

Order No. 1 with Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic Vulnerability 
Assessment (Pipkin) (to be reviewed by the Construction Committee). 

________________________________________________________________ 
 

INFORMATION ITEMS 
 

 14. Upcoming Workshops Calendar 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 15. EBDA Commission Report 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
16. Check Register. 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
17. Holiday Pollution Prevention Message 
____________________________________________________________________________ 

 18. Committee Meeting Reports (No Board action is taken at Committee meetings): 
 Personnel, Tuesday, November 19, 2013 at 1:00 p.m. 
 Construction, Wednesday, November 20, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
 Budget & Finance, Thursday, November 21, 2013 at 4:30 p.m. 
 Audit, Friday, November 22, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 

________________________________________________________________ 
 19. General Manager’s Report (information on recent issues of interest to the Board). 
 ________________________________________________________________ 

20. Other Business: 
 Comments and questions. Directors can share information relating to District 

business and are welcome to request information from staff. 
 Scheduling matters for future consideration. 

 ________________________________________________________________ 
 21. Adjournment - The Board will adjourn to the next Regular Board Meeting on Monday, 

December 9, 2013 in the Boardroom at 7:00 p.m. 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
The Public is welcome to provide oral comments at Regular and Special Board meetings. Whenever possible, we request that 
written statements be provided to the District at least one working day prior to the meeting. If the subject relates to an agenda 
item, the speaker should address the Board at the time the item is considered.  If the subject is within the Board’s jurisdiction 
but not on the agenda, the speaker will be heard at the time “Oral Communications” is scheduled. Oral Communications is 
limited to three minutes per individual, with a maximum of 30 minutes per subject.  Speaker’s cards are available in the 
Boardroom and should be completed prior to discussion of the agenda item and handed to the Clerk. The facilities at the District 
Offices are wheelchair accessible.  Any attendee requiring other special accommodations at the meeting should contact the 
General Manager’s office at (510) 477-7503 at least one working day ahead of the meeting. 
 

THE PUBLIC IS WELCOME TO ATTEND. 
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  5072 Benson Road 

Union City, CA 94587 
(510) 477-7500 

 NOTICE OF 
COMMITTEE MEETING 

 
All meetings will be held in the 

General Manager’s Office 
 

BOARD MEETING 
November 25, 2013 

 

Committee meetings may include teleconference participation by one or more Directors . 
(Gov. Code Section 11123) 

Committee Meeting are open to the public. Only written comments will be considered. No action will be taken. 

Committee Membership: 
Budget and Finance  Directors Jennifer Toy and Pat Kite (Alt. - Anjali Lathi) 
Construction Committee Directors Tom Handley and Manny Fernandez (Alt. – Pat Kite) 
Legal/Community Affairs Directors Anjali Lathi and Tom Handley (Alt. – Manny Fernandez) 
Legislative Committee Directors Pat Kite and Anjali Lathi (Alt. – Tom Handley) 
Personnel Committee Directors Jennifer Toy and Manny Fernandez (Alt. – Anjali Lathi) 
Audit Committee  Directors Jennifer Toy and Tom Handley 

 
 
Personnel, Tuesday, November 19, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
10. Board of Directors Compensation for 2014 
 
Construction, Wednesday, November 20, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
11. Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with the Covello Group 

for Providing Construction Management Services for the Thickener Control Building 
Improvements Project (Pipkin) 

12. Resolution No. 2720, Accepting the Construction of the Headworks Improvements 
Project from Anderson Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. and Authorizing the 
Attorney for the District to Record a Notice of Completion (Pipkin) 

13. Authorizing the General Manager to Execute an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 with 
Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic Vulnerability Assessment (Pipkin) 

 
Budget & Finance, Thursday, November 21, 2013 at 4:30 p.m. 

 7. Monthly Operations Report   
a. District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures 
b. Collection Services Process Scorecard 
c. General Manager’s Monthly Operations & Investment Report 

 

 
Audit, Friday, November 22, 2013 at 5:00 p.m. 
9. Accepting Financial Statements for the Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Page 3 of 164



USD

 
 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING OF THE 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOVEMBER 11, 2013 
 
 
 
 

1. CALL TO ORDER  
 
President Lathi called the Board to Order at 7:00 p.m. 

 
2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
3. ROLL CALL 

 
PRESENT: Manny Fernandez, Vice President 

Tom Handley, Director  
Pat Kite, Director  

   Anjali Lathi, President  
   Jennifer Toy, Secretary  
    

ABSENT: None 
 
STAFF: Rich Currie, General Manager 
 Rich Cortes, Manager, Business Services  
 Sol Cooper, Mechanic 
 Michael Dunning, Coach, Environmental Compliance 

Jesse Gill, Manager, Technical Support & Customer Service 
Sami Ghossain, Manager, Technical Services 
Dave Livingston, Manager, Treatment & Disposal Services 
Ed McCormick, Deputy General Manager 
Andy Morrison, Manager, Collection Services 

   David O’Hara, Legal Counsel 
   Maria Scott, Principal Financial Analyst 

Robert Simonich, Manager, Fabrication, Maintenance & Construction 
Tom Graves, Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary 

 
CONSULTANTS: Grace Chow, Vice President, Brown and Caldwell 
 
VISITORS: None 
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4. APPROVAL OF THE MINUTES OF OCTOBER 28, 2013 
 

Action On a motion made by Director Fernandez and seconded by Director 
Handley, the Minutes of the Board of Directors Meeting of October 28, 
2013 were approved. The motion carried unanimously. 

 
5. WRITTEN COMMUNICATIONS  

 
There were no official written communications. 

 
6. ORAL COMMUNICATIONS 

 
There were no oral communications.  
 

Information 7. FIRST QUARTERLY REPORT ON CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT 
PROGRAM FOR FY 14 

 
 Sami Ghossain, Technical Services Manager, said that in June, 2013, the 

Board approved the Capital Improvement Program (CIP) budget for FY‘14 
in the amount of $17.5 million for the design and construction of 24 
projects. The total CIP expenditure up to September 30, 2013 was above 
the projections for the first quarter by approximately $480,000, mostly due 
to 3 large projects being ahead of schedule.  In addition, fourteen other 
smaller projects will be either in design or in construction during FY‘14. 
 

Information  8. STATUS OF PRIORITY 1 CIP PROJECTS 
 

Technical Services Manager Sami Ghossain reported that in June, 2013, 
the Board approved the Capital Improvement Program budget for FY 14 in 
the amount of $17.5 million for the design and construction of 24 projects. 
These 24 projects are further ranked as Priority 1 and 2 projects based on 
criteria prepared by staff and approved by the Executive Team. For FY 14, 
eleven projects are ranked as Priority 1 projects and the remaining 
thirteen projects are ranked as Priority 2 projects. 

 
  In response to a question by the GM, the Board indicated they would like 

to continue receiving this report.  
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 9. AUTHORIZING THE GENERAL MANAGER TO EXECUTE CONTRACT 
AMENDMENT NO. 1 TO TASK ORDER NO. 1 WITH BROWN & 
CALDWELL FOR PROVIDING ADDITIONAL CONSTRUCTION 
MANAGEMENT SERVICES FOR THE I-680 AT SABERCAT ROAD 
SANITARY SEWER RELOCATION PROJECT 

 
  Technical Services Manager Sami Ghossain stated that on May 13, 2013, 

the General Manager executed Task Order No. 1 with Brown & Caldwell in 
the amount of $168,186 to provide construction management services for 
the I-680 at Sabercat Road Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project. As Project 
construction proceeded, several issues arose requiring additional 
construction management services beyond the original scope defined in 
Task Order No. 1. This amendment is in the amount of $83,768 primarily 
covers additional inspection services required due to the addition of night 
shift and weekend work as well as delays that extended the duration of the 
project. GM Currie noted that the 3rd Party CM services provided on the 
project were extremely valuable to USD staff, providing regular updates, 
quality control and documentation of this critical project. 

 
Action On a motion made by Director Kite and seconded by Director Fernandez, 

the Board authorized the General Manager to execute Contract 
Amendment No. 1 to Task Order No. 1 with Brown & Caldwell for 
providing additional construction management services for the I-680 at 
Sabercat Road Sanitary Sewer Relocation Project. The motion carried 
unanimously. 
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 10. RESOLUTION NO. 2719, ACCEPTING THE CONSTRUCTION OF THE 

THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING INTERIM IMPROVEMENTS 
PROJECT FROM ANDERSON PACIFIC ENGINEERING 
CONSTRUCTION, INC. AND AUTHORIZING THE ATTORNEY FOR THE 
DISTRICT TO RECORD A NOTICE OF COMPLETION 

 
  Technical Services Manager Sami Ghossain reported that on January 28, 

2013, the Board awarded the Project’s construction contract to Anderson 
Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc. in the amount of $633,001. Staff 
issued the Notice to Proceed on February 27, 2013 with a scheduled 
completion date of October 25, 2013.  Anderson Pacific Engineering 
Construction, Inc. substantially completed all contract work on October 21, 
2013.  Staff provided construction management services and The Covello 
Group provided general inspection services for the project. The District 
has assumed beneficial use of the Project. Some punchlist and 
administrative requirements remain to be done. 

 
  Staff recommends the Board accept the construction of the Thickener 

Control Building Interim Improvements Project from Anderson Pacific 
Engineering Construction, Inc. by Resolution, and authorize the Attorney 
for the District to record a Notice of Completion at the Alameda County 
Recorder’s Office. 

 
  GM Currie said that a tour of the Building will be set up for the Board soon, 

before construction of the next phase begins. 
 
Action  On a motion by Director Toy and seconded by Director Handley, the 

Board approved Resolution No. 2719, accept the construction of the 
Thickener Control Building Interim Improvements Project from Anderson 
Pacific Engineering Construction, Inc., and authorizing the attorney for the 
district to record a Notice of Completion. The motion carried unanimously.   
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11. REVIEWING AND APPROVING POLICY NO. 2165, REVISED 
PAPERLESS BOARD AGENDA PACKET AND USE OF ELECTRONIC 
EQUIPMENT 

 
Business Services Manager Rich Cortes briefed the Board that staff is 
implementing a Wi-Fi network that is connected to the District’s network. 
In order to securely implement connections to the network, IT will work 
with each Board member to configure one device compatible with Good 
Reader and Drop Box.  
 
The previously adopted Paperless Board Agenda and Use of Electronic 
Equipment Policy was based on a mi-fi infrastructure that did not connect 
to the District’s network. The Wi-Fi implementation requires the policy to 
be updated. 
 
District Attorney Dave O’Hara gave a brief overview of the public records 
act and how it would affect board members’ usage. Records of actions will 
likely be kept for two years. 
 
Board Member Lathi inquired about the life of personal electronic devices 
(iPads), and Mr. Cortes said the District had determined that to be four 
years.  
 

Action  On a motion by Director Toy and seconded by Director Handley, the 
Board approved Policy 2165. The motion carried unanimously.  

 
INFORMATION ITEMS 

  
 

 12. SCHOOL OUTREACH PRESENTATION VIDEO 
 

This video was presented to the Board at the request of Board Member 
Kite, who believes the video needs updating and a better focus on 
wastewater. Coach Michael Dunning said the EC Team is working with the 
City of Fremont on a video for the Clean Water Program, but will provide a 
great wastewater focus. The Board will be notified when it is completed, 
so they can review. Director Kite would like to see a video that is 
illustrative of the good work we do at USD, including biosolids recycling, 
grease management and green projects. We should consider using USD’s 
plant in the video. Staff should explore the cost of preparing our own 
video. Any video should reflect the cultural diversity of our service area. 
Refer this topic to the Legal and Community Affairs Committee for further 
discussion.  
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13. ANNUAL REPORT ON BIOSOLIDS 

 
Deputy GM Ed McCormick presented this report. USD did an excellent job 
in FY13 of cost-effectively reusing 100% of our biosolids in the form of 
non-food crop fertilizer (land application - 74%), compost (21%), and 
landfill alternative daily cover (5%).   For FY13 (July 2012 through June 
2013), USD produced and beneficially reused 20,091 wet tons of 
biosolids, which is 2% more than that produced in FY12.  Biosolids 
dewatering performance improved to 24.0% solids in FY13, from 23.2% 
solids in FY12.  
 
USD biosolids quality continued in FY13 to meet all USEPA 503 
Regulations, as it has done since these regulations went into effect in 
1994.   For the first time since 2010, USD biosolids management costs 
topped $600,000 (at $622,000).  However, at an average of ~$31/wet ton, 
USD continues to benefit from very low biosolids management costs.  In 
fact, our costs have only increased 25% over the past eight years, an 
average of approximately 3% per year. 
 
Director Handley asked what each % additional solids would save the 
District annually. 
 
Director Fernandez asked if the District was being paid for its biosolids, or 
if we were paying to have them disposed of. DGM McCormick said the 
District is paying to have them disposed of at this time.   
 
Deputy GM McCormick also updated the Board on the activities of the Bay 
Area Biosolids to Energy Coalition. 
 
Director Kite inquired what large cities like New York or Chicago do with 
biosolids. DGM McCormick said he would inquire and report back. 
 

14. HIGHLIGHTS OF THE JUNE 2012 CALPERS RETIREMENT VALUATION 
 
 Principal Financial Analyst Scott reviewed this item with the Board. There 

were no questions. 
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15. SUCCESSION PLANNING UPDATE 
 
 GM Currie presented this item. USD has been working on succession 

planning since 2000 in anticipation of the potential loss of key employees 
due to the age of our workforce and pending retirement of the “Baby 
Boom” era employees.  While many retirements were delayed by the 
recession, we have begun see a large number of employees retire or 
announce dates for their retirement. 

 
The District has implemented many programs for knowledge capture and 
knowledge transfer for those employees who have unique information 
about their jobs and facilities at USD.  We have also been documenting 
our knowledge and skills for future employees.  
 
Director Handley asked about the GM’s blog and what comments the GM 
had received. Mr. Currie said he had not had a chance to check the blog 
yet. 

 
 
16. CHECK REGISTER 
 
 Director Handley inquired about flu shots, saying that it appears only 50% 

of employees received them. He suggested we might want to think of 
ways to increase that number in the future. 

 
 Director Fernandez asked about pigeon abatement. Manager Simonich 

said netting will be installed soon as the latest attempt to discourage the 
pigeons. 

  
17. COMMITTEE MEETING REPORTS 
 
 The following committees met:  Budget & Finance; Construction; 

Legislative; and Personnel. 
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18. GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT  
 

 Mr. Currie reported the following: 
 

1. Steve Bowman has been hired as the new Technical Training 
Coordinator. 

2. Interviews were held last week for Larry Simmers’ TPO Coach 
position, and hiring interviews will be held this week. 

3. There were again no spills for the month of October. 
4. There was 1 one-gallon spill last weekend. 
5. The Safety recognition Breakfast will be held on 11/19/13 from 

6:30 to 8:15 a.m. So far, the District has worked over 270 days 
without an OSHA-reportable incident. 

6. There will be a District-wide meeting of all employees on 
November 19th at 3:00 p.m. 

7. On November 13th, the Alameda County Special Districts 
Association will meet here for a breakfast business meeting. 
USD hosts this event once every two years. 

8. The student and her father here at the last Board meeting have 
since returned and taken a tour of the facility. 

 

19. OTHER BUSINESS 
 

Director Kite inquired about the USD presence on Jarvis Road. Manager 
Ghossain explained why the crews were there, and said he would follow-
up with an email tomorrow.  

 

 Director Lathi announced that Item 22 had been pulled from the agenda. 
 

23. ADJOURNMENT 
 

 At 8:26 p.m., the Board adjourned to the next Regular Board Meeting on 
Monday, November 25, 2013 in the Boardroom at 7:00 p.m. 

 

SUBMITTED:     ATTEST: 
 
____________________    ____________________ 
TOM GRAVES     JENNIFER TOY 
SECRETARY TO THE BOARD   SECRETARY 
 
APPROVED: 
 
____________________ 
ANJALI LATHI 
PRESIDENT 
 
 

Adopted this 25th day of November, 2013. 
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GENERAL MANAGER’S SUMMARY 
 
Below is a summary of major activities that occurred at the District during October 2013. 
 
ODOR COMPLAINTS:  USD received 5 odor complaints.  Three of these were found to 
be related to the sewer and corrective action was taken. USD received no odor 
complaints associated with the treatment plant.  Our new mist odor masking system 
was operational throughout the month. 
 
SAFETY:  There were no accidents or injuries during the month. Training was 
conducted by Mike Marzano on confined space entry procedures and fall protection. 
 
FINANCIAL:  USD received the final report from our auditors for FY13 as well as the 
single audit for projects involving federal funds through the SRF Loan program.  The 
audits and financial statements will be presented to the Board Audit Committee in 
November. 
 
COLLECTION SYSTEM:  The group completed the month of October without a spill.  
Several staff members received training on a new system for recording pipeline defects 
during TV inspection and were certified in the new process. 
 
PLANT OPERATIONS:  Aeration Blower No. 9 was removed from service for repair as a 
result of a failure in the electric motor bearing.  This critical equipment is expected to be 
returned to service before wet weather season begins. 
 
PROJECTS:  The pipeline has been installed in the casing under I-680 for the Sabercat 
project.  The contractor continues work on the Cogeneration Project and remains on 
schedule.  A request for proposal was sent to several firms to initiate the study of 
alternatives for restoration of Hayward Marsh.  Staff continues training and data 
migration for conversion to the new Hansen Version 8 computerized maintenance 
management system. 
 
STAFFING & PERSONNEL:  Recruitments for the month have included the 
Administrative Specialist for the CIP team and the Technical Training Program 
Manager.  Raymond Chau was selected as the new CIP Coach.  Larry Simmers, long 
time plant operator and Operations Coach announced his retirement effective in 
November.  USD submitted the annual report to the State Controller’s office on salary 
and benefits and a response to the Grand Jury on employee benefits.   
 
G.M. ACTIVITIES:  For the month of October, the GM was involved in the following: 
 

• External meetings including EBDA Managers and EBDA Commission and the Union City 
State of the City address.  Internal meetings included the Safety Committee, Alternate 
Compensation Task Force and Records Management. 

• Biennial training for prevention of harassment in the workplace. 
• Hosting the annual employee recognition BBQ. 
• Final joint labor-management review of the Memorandum of Understanding  
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HOURS WORKED AND LEAVE TIME BY WORK GROUP
June 29,2013 to October 18, 2013

Reg. Total Historical FY13
DIVISION Hours Lt Duty O/T Leaves* Sick STD WC Sick STD WC Average Number 

of Employees
General Manager Staff 2,100 340 35 110 133

14% 1.4% 1.7%

Business Service 12,470 1 1,610 164 14 713 211
11% 1.2% 0.1% 1.6% 0.5% Current Number of

Vacant Positions (1)
Technical Service 17,554 43 2,486 482 116 2,190 499 1

12% 2.4% 0.6% 3.4% 0.8%

Collection System 15,956 987 3,774 684 330 1 1,565 235 124
19% 3.5% 1.7% 0.0% 2.5% 0.4% 0.2% Hours Worked Per

Week Per Employee (2)
Treatment & Disposal 12,758 356 2,567 385 320 971 144 35.11

17% 2.5% 2.1% 2.0% 0.3%

FMC 11,412 807 1,788 264 1,265 74 33 Projected Average
14% 2.0% 3.1% 0.2% 0.1% Annual Sick Leave

Per Employee (3)
Totals 72,250 2,193 12,566 2,015 780 1 6,814 1,163 157 49.40
% 85.2% 2.6% 14.8% 2.4% 0.9% 0.0% 2.4% 0.5% 1.3%

(1)  Current vacancies include: Business Services (0), Collections (1), FMC (0), T&D (0), TSCS (0)

 

(2)  An employee using 3 weeks vacation, 11 holidays, 2 HEC days and 40 hours of sick leave will work an average of 34.9 hours per week over the course of a year.  

     With four weeks vacation, 34.2 hours per week.

(3)  Target goal for sick leave incentive program is 47 hours per employee per year.
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 ODOR REPORT 
 October 2013 
 During the recording period from October 01, 2013 through October 31, 2013, there were five odor  
 related service requests received by the District. 
 

 City:  Fremont 
 
 1. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  10/21/2013 Time:   3:20 pm 
 Location:  CALAVERAS AV Reported By: David Contreras 
 Wind (from): North East Wind Speed:  3 mph 
 Temperature:  0 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 
 Inspected the manholes and the storm canal behind the house.  We found a musty sewer  
 smell.  We found odor at U17025 & U17024 which tested at 0.5 to 3 ppm H2S.  The homeowner  
 said sewer odors do occur on occasion from the two manholes in front of his house.   I informed  
 the homeowner that I would notify management of this situation. This sewer has since been  
 dosed with caustic to prevent H2S generation. 
 
 
 2. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  10/21/2013 Time:   4:00 pm 
 Location:  TIMPANOGAS CR Reported By: Niel Kumar 
 Wind (from): N/A Wind Speed:   mph 
 Temperature:  0 Degrees F Weather: Clear 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 
 Inspected manholes and found them to be clean from our recent cleaning operations. 
 We responded to a complaint about an odor in the house after the hydro crew cleaned lines in the  
 area.  We spoke to the homeowner after talking to the hydro cleaning crew.  We found the traps  
 were sucked dry and sewer odors were entering the house through traps.  We advised the  
 homeowner to run water to fill the traps in the house to stop any odors from entering into their  
 house. 
 
 City:  Newark 
 
 3. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  10/15/2013 Time:   2:00 pm 
 Location:  NEWPARK MALL RD Reported By: Raj/ Hometown Buffet 
 Wind (from): North Wind Speed:  8 mph 
 Temperature:  80 Degrees F Weather: Sunny 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 
 Inspected the manholes, storm drain inlet, grease interceptor and the surrounding area outside the  
 building.  We found there were no odors coming from our manholes or storm drain inlet.  The  
 grease interceptor didn't smell from the outside, but the gas tech did alarm when I tested the  
 interceptor through the pick hole.  We did find a foul odor inside the building near both the men’s  
 and women's restroom but the gas tech didn't pick up any of these odors.  We contacted the  
 complainant and told him our findings.   We gave him a USD brochure and recommended he  
 gets the interceptor cleaned. 
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 4. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  10/15/2013 Time:   4:30 pm 
 Location:  HONEYSUCKLE DR Reported By: Michelle Padilla 
 Wind (from): North Wind Speed:  mph 
 Temperature:  80 Degrees F Weather: Sunny 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 
 Inspected the manholes, storm drain inlet and surrounding area, but found no odors.  Used the gas  
 tech and got an alarm from this trunk line manhole.  The homeowner stated over the phone she  
 noticed an odor coming from manhole where Honeysuckle turns into Manzanita. She thinks the  
 odor is coming from the Hetch-Hetchy pipe.  We were unable to get a hold of the homeowner so we  
 left her a message to call us back so we could convey our findings.   We also informed her to  
 call us back should the odor return so we could come back to find the source of the odor. This sewer  
 has since been dosed with caustic to prevent H2S generation. 
 
 
 City:  Union City 
 
 5. Complaint Details: 
 
 Date:  10/4/2013 Time:  11:15 am 
 Location:  SAN CARLOS WY Reported By: Dorothy Child 
 Wind (from): North East Wind Speed:  12 mph 
 Temperature:  79 Degrees F Weather: Sunny 
 
 Response and Follow-up: 
 Inspected manholes adjacent to the house.  We also inspected a crawl space under the house.   
 We found no odors in or outside of the house. I could not detect any odors and the gas tech  
 detected no gasses. We relayed findings to complainant. 
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Odor Complaints: October 2013 

* Odor found, USD resolved (2) 

e Odor found, not related to USD (1 ) 

.A No odor found (2) 

Union City 

Odor Complaints: Nov. 2012. Sep. 2013 Location of Odor Reports 
* Odor found, USD resolved (6) November 2012 to October 2013 
• Odor found, not related to USD (6) 

.t. No odor found (19) 
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BUDGET AND FINANCE REPORT 

FY 2014 'Y'ear-to-aai e as oF ~~7~U~~ 33% of year elapsed Prelim. 
Unaudited 

Revenues %of Last Year 
Budget Actual Budget Rec'd Actuals 6/30/13 

Capacity Fees $2,300,000 $1,638,232 71% $2,864,810 
Sewer Service Charges 44,887,853 642,727 1% 42,389,872 
ECB Revenues 765,000 254,579 33% 820,386 
Interest 321,000 139,021 43% 618,348 
Misc. (incl. ann. LAVWMA pymnt, PG&E rebates) 289,500 168,706 58% 343,415 

Subtotal Revenues $4S,;s~ .~;~ !~.s4~.~s; S% $47,rl~S.S~l 

SRF Loan Proceeds (Prim Clarif. Boyce) 1,000,000 1,049,409 105% 4,118,084 

Total Revenues + SRF Proceeds $49,563,353 $3,892,674 8% $51' 154,915 

Expenses %of Last Year 
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals 

Capital Improvement Program: 
Capacity Projects $5,220,000 $816,039 16% $2,738,698 
Renewal & Repl. Projects (incl. escrow) 12,285,000 4,268,806 35% 11 ,696,467 

Expenditure Control Budget (ECB) 32,100,356 9,654,853 30% 29,414,193 
Non-ECB 759,500 116,490 15% 701 ,075 
Retiree Medical (Annual Required Contribution) 462,852 57,227 12% 445,724 
Vehicle & Equipment 1,089,734 263,288 24% 589,238 
Information Systems 1 '101 ,990 212,643 19% 657,050 
Plant & Pump Station R&R 250,000 145,541 58% 174,553 
Pretreatment Fund 7,000 1,708 24% 6,137 
County Fee for Sewer Service Charge Admin. 106,000 0 0% 105,251 
Debt Servicing: 

SRF Loans (lrv .• Wilw, LHH. Plant. Cedar, NPS, Sub1) 4,678,000 908,1 64 19% 4,086,647 

Total Expenses $5S,IJGIJ,;;J'32 s~ o,;;J';;J';;J, 7sg 28% sso,o~ s,o:J;;J 

Total Revenue & Proceeds less Expenses ($8,497,079) ($12,552,085) $539,882 

Gro ss ECB Ex penses by Work Gro up %of Last Year 
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals 

Board of Directors $190,063 $39,811 21% $156,099 
General Manager/Admin. 1 ' 182,404 383,386 32% 835,685 
Business Services 4,501,787 1,366,788 30% 4,171,426 
Collection Services 5,587,778 1,658,310 30% 5,304,088 
Tech Support & Cust. Services 5,251,559 1,566,644 30% 4,908,778 
Treatment & Disposal Services 9,889,975 3,044,047 31% 9,168,756 
Fabrication, Maint. & Construction 5,496,790 1,595,867 29% 4,869,362 

Total $32,100,356 $9,654,853 30% $29,414,193 

ECB Ex penses by Type %of Last Year 
Budget Actual Budget Used Actuals 

Personnel (incl D&E) $21 ,948,372 $6,687,869 30% (35%)* $20,190,171 
Repairs & Maintenance 2,000,012 500,629 25% 1,826,148 
Supplies & Matis (chemicals, small tools) 2,314,095 756,950 33% 2,304,201 
Outside Services (utilities, biosolids, legal) 5,644,877 1,665,019 29% 5,091 ,924 
Fixed Assets 193,000 44,386 23% 1,750 

Total $32,100,356 $9,654,853 30% $29,414,193 

* Personnel Budget Target 
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Maturity 
Range 

0-1 Month 

1-3 Months 

3-6 Months 

6-9 Months 

9-12 Months 

1-2 Years 

Talid1Av!1f11811 

All Portfolio Holdings Distribution by Asset Class 

Operating Fund Holdings Distribution by Asset Class 

certtncates ot DeposE 
10.04 ~--

Operating Fund Maturity Dist ribution 

~9/'\on'l"'S- ---------~ 
l6.63'i( 

Face YTM@ 
Amount/Shares Cost Cost Value 

2,500,000.00 0_457 2,499,671 .90 

1,500,000.00 0.610 1,569,840.00 

2,240,000.00 0_445 2 ,315,820.00 

5, 4 20,000.00 0.447 5,454,755.64 

245,000.00 0.400 245,000.00 

8,220,000.00 0.613 8,399,669.00 

20.;121.QCIO.OO U2J ~718.. .. 

l ·lY{oir~ 

---------- 4 U XI.,;; 

Days To % of 
Maturity Portfolio Market Value 

10 12.20 2,500,105.59 

76 7.66 1,514,940.00 

132 11.31 2,256.941.34 

213 26.63 5,438,483.63 

351 1.20 244,880.93 

480 41.00 8,370,057.83 

m 110 20,321A08.a2 
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Duration To 
Book Value Maturity 

2,499,985.70 0.01 

1,514,041_90 0.21 

2,254,052.39 0.36 

5,428,685.82 0.58 

245,000.00 0.96 

8,354,354.64 1.30 

~.211,12IIAJ be 



Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Holdings
Report Format: By Transaction
Group By: Asset Class
Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
As of 10/31/2013

Agencies

FHLB 0.4 6/27/2014 313379N47 Moodys-
Aaa 6/6/2012 2,000,000.00 1,999,980.00 0.400 2,003,300.00 0.401 6/27/2014 5.14

FHLB 2.375 
3/14/2014 3133XWKV0

Moodys-
Aaa 3/21/2012 2,000,000.00 2,075,820.00 2.375 2,016,800.00 0.450 3/14/2014 5.33

FNMA 0.42 
6/5/2015-13 3135G0SE4 Moodys-

Aaa 12/5/2012 2,000,000.00 2,000,000.00 0.420 2,000,440.00 0.420 6/5/2015 5.14

FNMA 1 5/16/2014-
11 31398A6A5 Moodys-

Aaa 3/21/2012 925,000.00 934,795.64 1.000 929,680.50 0.505 5/16/2014 2.40

Sub Total / 
Average 6,925,000.00 7,010,595.64 1.071 6,950,220.50 0.435 18.00

CAMP

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 None 5/31/2011 9,784.76 9,784.76 0.100 9,784.76 0.100 N/A N/A 0.03

Sub Total / 
Average 9,784.76 9,784.76 0.100 9,784.76 0.100 0.03

Certificates of Deposit

Ally Bank 0.75
5/16/2014 02005QF24 None 5/16/2012 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.750 245,615.71 0.750 5/16/2014 0.63

Apple Bank 0.55 
6/6/2014 037830LH7 None 6/6/2012 250,000.00 250,000.00 0.550 250,347.42 0.550 6/6/2014 0.64

BMW Bank 0.35 
11/14/2013 05568P2D8 None 12/26/2012 240,000.00 239,676.00 0.350 240,017.69 0.503 11/14/2013 0.62

Discover Bank 0.5 
11/21/2013 254671JE1 None 12/26/2012 240,000.00 239,995.90 0.500 240,047.50 0.502 11/21/2013 0.62

Fifth Third Bank 0.4 
2/20/2014 316777GL9 None 2/20/2013 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.400 240,141.34 0.400 2/20/2014 0.62

GE Capital Bank 0.4 

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @
Cost

Next 
Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of
Portfolio
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10/17/2014 36163CFX3 NR 10/18/2013 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.400 244,880.93 0.400 10/17/2014 0.63

GE Capital Retail 
Bank 0.95 
3/16/2015

36157PAU3 None 1/2/2013 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.950 241,685.93 0.950 3/16/2015 0.62

Goldman Sachs 
Bank 0.75 
11/14/2014

38143AU78 None 11/30/2012 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 240,757.75 0.750 11/14/2014 0.62

Sallie Mae Bank 
0.75 11/14/2014 795450QK4 None 11/30/2012 240,000.00 240,000.00 0.750 240,757.75 0.750 11/14/2014 0.62

Sub Total / 
Average 2,180,000.00 2,179,671.90 0.600 2,184,252.02 0.617 5.60

Corporate Issues

Credit Suisse USA 
Inc 5.125
1/15/2014

22541LAM5 Moodys-
A1 1/2/2013 1,500,000.00 1,569,840.00 5.125 1,514,940.00 0.610 1/15/2014 4.03

General Electric 
Capital Corp 2.15 
1/9/2015

36962G5M2 Moodys-
A1 8/16/2013 1,000,000.00 1,021,670.00 2.150 1,019,860.00 0.590 1/9/2015 2.62

General Electric 
Capital Corp 2.375
6/30/2015

36962G5F7 Moodys-
A1 11/30/2012 500,000.00 517,745.00 2.375 513,345.00 0.980 6/30/2015 1.33

General Electric 
Capital Corp 4.875
3/4/2015

36962GP65 Moodys-
A1 9/18/2013 1,000,000.00 1,059,830.00 4.875 1,056,740.00 0.750 3/4/2015 2.72

JP Morgan Chase 
4.75 3/1/2015 46625HCE8 Moodys-

A2 1/2/2013 1,000,000.00 1,079,800.00 4.750 1,051,740.00 1.012 3/1/2015 2.77

Principal Life 
Income Fund Var. 
Corp 11/8/2013

74254PPF3 Moodys-
AA3 5/21/2012 2,020,000.00 2,020,000.00 0.446 2,020,040.40 0.446 11/8/2013 5.19

Sub Total / 
Average 7,020,000.00 7,268,885.00 3.119 7,176,665.40 0.668 18.67

LAIF

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 None 4/30/2011 18,448,527.47 18,448,527.47 0.266 18,448,527.47 0.266 N/A N/A 47.37

Sub Total / 

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @
Cost

Next 
Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of
Portfolio
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Average 18,448,527.47 18,448,527.47 0.266 18,448,527.47 0.266 47.37

Treasury

T-Note 0.375 
11/15/2014 912828RQ5 Moodys-

Aaa 5/25/2012 2,000,000.00 2,000,624.00 0.375 2,004,687.40 0.362 11/15/2014 5.14

T-Note 1 5/15/2014 912828QM5 Moodys-
Aaa 3/21/2012 2,000,000.00 2,024,980.00 1.000 2,009,540.00 0.416 5/15/2014 5.20

Sub Total / 
Average 4,000,000.00 4,025,604.00 0.689 4,014,227.40 0.389 10.34

Total / Average 38,583,312.23 38,943,068.77 1.006 38,783,677.55 0.404 100

Description CUSIP/Ticker
Credit

Rating 1
Settlement 

Date
Face 

Amount/Shares Cost Value
Coupon 

Rate Market Value
YTM @
Cost

Next 
Call 
Date

Maturity 
Date

% of
Portfolio
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Union Sanitary District
Board Report - Activity
Portfolio/Report Group: All Portfolios
From 10/1/2013 To 10/31/2013

BUY

GE Capital Bank 0.4 10/17/2014 36163CFX3 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.00 0.400 0.400 10/18/2013 245,000.00

Sub Total / Average 245,000.00 245,000.00 0.00 245,000.00

DEPOSIT

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.82 0.82 0.00 0.000 10/31/2013 0.82

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 17,693.69 17,693.69 0.00 0.000 10/15/2013 17,693.69

Sub Total / Average 17,694.51 17,694.51 0.00 17,694.51

INTEREST

CAMP LGIP LGIP4000 0.00 0.00 0.82 0.000 10/31/2013 0.82

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 0.00 0.00 17,693.69 0.000 10/15/2013 17,693.69

Sub Total / Average 0.00 0.00 17,694.51 17,694.51

WITHDRAW

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 1,100,000.00 1,100,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/4/2013 1,100,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 600,000.00 600,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/11/2013 600,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 500,000.00 500,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/18/2013 500,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 700,000.00 700,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/23/2013 700,000.00

LAIF LGIP LGIP1002 100,000.00 100,000.00 0.00 0.000 10/25/2013 100,000.00

Sub Total / Average 3,000,000.00 3,000,000.00 0.00 3,000,000.00

Description CUSIP/Ticker Face Amount/Shares Principal Interest/Dividends Coupon Rate YTM @ Cost Settlement Date Total
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Directors 
Pat Gacoscos 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Richard B. Currie 
General Manager 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
Date:  November 15, 2013 
 
To: Board of Directors – Union Sanitary District  

  
From: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Donna Wies, Quality Coordinator 
 
Subject:  Agenda Item No. 7a –Meeting of November 25, 2013 

  October Monthly Operations Report 
District-wide Balanced Scorecard Measures 

 
Recommendation: 
Information only. 
 
Background: 
This report summarizes progress meeting the District’s strategic objectives for the first 
quarter of fiscal year 2013-14. 
 
Several new measures have been changed or are being reported for the first time. 

• Response time to Contact USD e-mail inquiries is reported for the first time. 
• Employee turnover rate is reported as total and non-retirement turnover. 
• The definitions for sanitary sewer over flow have been changed to be consistent 

with Regional Water Quality Control Board reporting definitions. 
 
 
Staff will be available to answer questions. 
 
Safety 
 
The District experienced no accidents or injuries during the first quarter of FY 14. There 
were no employees on lost or limited duty time during the quarter. On November 19, 
District management will recognize employees for working  270 days without an accident. 
 
All safety measures are meeting targets, except the percentage of employees trained vs. 
planned. Make-up sessions for Confined Space Entry and Fall Protection will bring us up 
to target in the second quarter. 
 
 
See Table 1:  Safety Objectives and Measures, for a full report. 
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Accidents= 0 

Table 1: Safety Objectives and Measures 

Objectives Measures 
FY 14 to Annual 

FY13 FY 12 FY 11 Date Target 

Total accidents with 
Reduce the lost days 0 0 2 3 6 
number of 
accidents Other OSHA 

reportable 0 _::4 4 1 2 
accidents 

Ave FTE lost time 0 _::0.5 0.25 2.21 1.35 

Cost lost time 
0 _::$40, 170 $19,611 $150,548 $88,881 

Ave FTE limited 
0 _::0.5 0.15 1.62 0.8 duty 

Reduce the Cost limited duty 
0 _::$20,085 $6404 $55,596 $27,044 

impact of 
accidents on x-mod NA ~1.0 0.95 0.73 1.23 
employees 
and the 
District Incidents of vehicle 

or equipment 0 _::2 2 5 1 
accidents 

Cost of claims 
associate with 0 0 0 $3,792 0 vehicles or 
equipment 
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Table 1:  Safety Objectives and Measures, continued 
 

Objectives Measures FY 14 
to Date 

Annual 
Target FY 13 FY 12 FY 11 Comments 

Identify and 
correct poor 
practices and 
potential hazards 
 

# Facility inspections 
 1 4 4 4 4 Pump stations were 

inspected 9/27/12. 

# management work 
site observations  
 

83 >266 /yr 332 340 377  

Implement industry 
best practices 

# best practices site 
visits 0 >2 2 3 3  

 

Communicate our 
commitment to 
safety 

# GM communication 
on status of safety 
program & 
performance 

1 >4 7 4 7 E-mail: 180 days 
without an accident 

# safety strategy 
reviews conducted by 
ET and EHSPM 

2 6 6 6 6  

Increase employee 
awareness 
 
Educate 
employees in safe 
work practices 

 
# of major safety 
training events offered 
 
% of targeted 
employees trained 
 

2 6 
 
 
 

>90% 

5 
 
 
 

97% 

6 
 
 
 

92% 

5 
 
 
 

99% 

Confined Space, Fall 
protection.  
 
Make-up sessions 
scheduled for 
November 72% 

 
Green = met or exceeded target; or projected to meet annual target  
Yellow = will not meet annual target if trend continues; needs attention 
Red = Will not meet annual target by >10%; corrective action needed 
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Operational Excellence 
 
The District is meeting targets for all operational excellence measures, except adverse 
impacts to the environment due to a category 1 sanitary sewer overflow. There were more 
adverse impacts to customers than usual reported this quarter, due to five plant odor 
complaints being registered by one homeowner during the quarter. There have been no lant 
odor complaints received since the end of September. 
 
See Table 2, Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures, for a full report.  
See Table 3 for a list of public relations activities planned for FY 13. 
 

Table 2:  Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures 
 

 
Objectives 

 
Measurements 

FY 14 to 
Date 

Annua
l 

Target 
FY 13 

 
FY 12 

 
FY 11 

 
Comments/ 
Progress 

Stewardship: 
Demonstrate 
responsible 
stewardship of 
assets and the 
environment 
 
Be prepared for 
emergencies 

Progress meeting 
public relation program 
goals:   
% qtrly milestones met 
 
# emergency 
preparedness drills or 
training events 

100% 
 
 
 
1 

>90% 
 
 

 
3 

98% 
 
 
 
2 

111% 
 

 
 
2 

100% 
 
 
 
2 

 
 
See Table 3. 
 
 
 
By-pass pumping 
training 

Service: Provide 
reliable, high quality 
service 
 

Total number of 
adverse impacts USD 
activities have on 
external customers 

5 <10 7 5 10 
Plant odor 
complaints (from 
1 homeowner) 

 
Response to Contact 
USD messages:  
% within 3 days 

94% >90%    New measure 

 
Response time to 
service calls: % within 
1 hour 

98% >95% 98% 97% 95%  

Fiscal 
responsibility: 
Ensure funding for 
critical programs 
and projects, while 
maintaining 
comparable rates 
 
Accurately project 
and control costs 
 

ECB Expenditures, % 
of Board approved 
budgeted 

23% 
95-

103% 
 

97% 97% 96%  

Priority Non-ECB 
Expenditures: % of 
budgeted 

5% 80-
110% 95% 82% 87%  

Residential Sewer 
Service Charges  NA >33rd  12th  15th  15th  Reported 4th qtr 

# regional projects 
with financial benefit 2 >2 4 2 2 

Participation in 
BACC, Operator 
training 
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Table 2:  Operational Excellence Objectives and Measures, continued 

 

Objectives Measurements FY 14 
to Date 

Annual 
Target FY 13 FY 12 FY 11 Comments/ 

Progress 

Asset 
Management: 
Manage and 
maintain assets and 
infrastructure 

# critical asset 
failures; no 
negative impact 
 
# failures with 
negative impact 

0 
 
 
0 

<2 
 

 
0 

0 
 
 
0 

2 
 
 
0 

0 
 
 
0 

 

# priority CIP 
projects 
completed 

1 11 11 6 10  

Environmental 
Protection: 
Maintain our ability 
to meet current and 
future regulations 
 
Implement projects 
and programs that 
benefit the 
environment 

# adverse 
impacts on 
environment 

1 0 0 1 0  

#  Category 2/3 
overflows 0 <10    

Definition 
changed July 
2013 

# Regional 
projects with 
environmental 
benefit 

2 >2 2 2 2 

Pollution Prevention 
Program activities, 
ACWD Water 
Conservation 
Program  

Efficiency: Optimize 
processes; use 
technology effectively 

See Timeline and 
Team Scorecards       

Employees: 
Maintain a highly 
competent, flexible 
workforce 

% of planned 
competency-
based training 
milestones 
completed 

30% 
 

>90% 
 

155%   
Measure was 
modified 
beginning FY 13 

Labor Relations: 
Foster a collaborative 
employee-
management 
relationship that 
encourages new 
ideas and continuous 
improvement 

Total % of 
employees 
participating in 
District taskforces 
or committees 

NA >60% 52 50% 49% Reported 2nd and 
4th qtrs 

 
Green = met or exceeded target; or projected to meet annual target  
Yellow = will not meet annual target if trend continues; needs attention 
Red = Will not meet annual target by >10%; corrective action needed 
White= No target identified 
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Table 3: Public Relations Activities FY 14 
 

Project Goal/Milestones 1st Qtr 

USD website 
 

Update once a month 
 
Upgrade project 

√ 

Press Releases 
 

4 per year; post on web √ 

Newsletter October 2013 √ 

Community Outreach:  
3-4 events/year 

Earth Day Fair  

Newark Days Fair √ 

Plant Tours as requested  

Outreach to 5th grade teachers √ 

5th grade presentations, 35+ /year  

Alameda County Science & Engineering Fair  

Career Outreach/Fairs in  Jr High or High School  

Career outreach to colleges or other groups  

ROP/Solano College support √ 

Business Outreach Industrial Advisory Council meetings √ 

Green Business certification outreach 2x/yr  

Certificate of Merit Presentations  

Civic Outreach Presentations to City Councils, clubs as 
requested 

 

Charity Events 3-4 events  
Back to School Sept 2013 

√ 

CIP Public Meetings 
 

As appropriate   
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Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Richard B. Currie 
General Manager/District 
Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE  November 14, 2013 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 
  Ed McCormick, Deputy General Manager 

Andy Morrison, Collection Services Manager 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 7b - Meeting of November 25, 2013 
  Information Item:  Collection Services Process Scorecard 
   
Recommendation 
 
Information only 
 
Background 
 
We are in our thirteenth year of using this Process Scorecard.  This planning tool 
continues to be very useful in maintaining our focus on the prevention/reduction of 
sanitary sewer overflows and minimizing their impacts on our customers and the 
environment. 
 
Collection Services ensures that wastewater is kept in the gravity system from the point 
of entry by the customer, until it is received and processed at the transport system and 
the treatment plant. 
 
In order to achieve the goal of SSO prevention/reduction, there are five processes that 
need to be done well. 

 
System Management 

• 72 month cleaning and inspection of the entire system 
• Effective selective line cleaning program 
• Easement maintenance 
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Pipe Assessment 

• Televise to determine condition 
• Address structural deficiencies through spot repairs or capital improvements 
• Address pipe capacity issues 

 
Control Roots 

• Mechanical removal 
• Chemical treatment 

 
Control Fats, Oils, and Greases 

• More frequent cleaning of selected lines 
• Reduce entry into our collection system at the source 

 
Service Requests 

• Timely response 
• Customer satisfaction 

 
Performance targets are based on the amount of work that needs to be done to support 
the 72 month sewer cleaning and inspection, selective cleaning, and root control 
program, and productivity standards developed by the Collection System Collaborative 
Benchmarking Group, in which USD participated. 
 
Collection Services workgroup employees are updated monthly on their performance.  
With this focused effort to prevent/minimize spills, we have managed to maintain a low 
number of spills and claims from spills this past year.  This year we are on course to 
have another successful year, including the past sixteen months with only 2 SSOs, 
maintaining our place as a leader in CA, in Wastewater Collection System Operations 
and Maintenance. 
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Objectives
FY14 Collection Services BSC                           
Measures FY 14 Target FY 13 Y/E

Customer Perspective:
•   Minimize Overflows SSO’s ·   # of Category 1 SSOs 1 SSOs 1 SSOs •  Zero Category 1 SSOs 0 SSO Cat 1

·   # of Category 2 SSOs 0 SSO 0 SSOs ≤ 10 Category 2 SSOs 0 SSOs Cat 2

•   Minimize Negative Impact on 
Environment

·   Percent of spill recovery 100% Recovery 100% Recovery  •  50% Recovery N/A

·   SSO’s # of Repeats 0 SSO Repeats 0 SSO Repeats •   Zero Repeats 0 SSO Repeats
Manage and maintain  assets and 
infrastructure

  •   Critical Asset Failures                                              
Sewer Main or MH Deficiency resulting in 
Category 1 SSO, sink hole, injury or resulting 
property damage > $2,000 due to one or more 
of the following:

0 Asset failure 0 Asset failure •   Zero 0 Asset failure

– Break, collapse, offset or hole in pipe or 
– PMP not followed
– Corrosion
– Defect identified & corrective action not 

•    Stoppage in > 12” diameter mainline 0 Stoppages 0 Stoppages •   Zero 0 Stoppages
•     # of times building becomes dangerous or 
unsuitable for occupation.

0 Incidents 0 Incidents •   Zero 0 Incidents

Critical asset failure with a negative impact on 
customers or the environment

0 Incidents 0 Incidents Zero Incidents 0 Incidents

•   Provide Uninterrupted Service Response Time from notification thru initial 
contact includes dispatch time

96.0% w/i 1 hour 96.0% w/i 1 hour ≥ 95% w/i 1 hr 98.1% w/i 1 hour

•   Reduce negative impacts of District Number of odor complaints attributable to 
sewer

0 Odors 0 Odor ≤ 2 0 Odors

Financial Perspective:
•   Provide competitive service Cleaning – cost per ft/day/crew $0.45 Per ft $0.45 Clean Per Ft Clean $.66 to $1.05 $0.61 Clean Per Ft

      Cost per feet/day Televising – cost per ft/day/crew $0.82 Per ft $0.82 TV Per Ft TV - $.80 to $1.40 $1.01 TV Per Ft
•   Minimize Claims & Fines Total Cost of Claims/Fines (from SSO's) $0 Total Claims $0 Total Claims Claims ≤$2000 $0 Total Claims 

$0 Total Fines $0 Total Fines Fines-$0   $0 Total Fines
Average cost per claim/fine $0 Avg Claims $0 Avg Claims Claims ≤$1000 $0 Avg Claims

$0 Avg Fines $0 Avg Fines Fines-$0 $0 Avg Fines

Internal Process Perspective:
•         Trouble Call & SSO response Response Time 96.0% w/i 1 hour 96.0% w/i 1 hour ≥  95% w/i 1 hr 98.8% wi 1 hour

•         Pipe/Problem Assessment Number of Repeat Spills 0 Zero Zero per year ≤ 2 per year Zero per year

•         Preventative Maint. Program 2 Yr Catch Up Plan % Complete 22.5% % Complete 22.5% % Complete Annual Goal = 100% 81.6% complete
TV Goal Footage 297,296 TV Footage 297,296 YTD TV Ftg 1,318,689 826,571 TV Footage

•         Cleaning (other cleaning omitted) Per Month Cleaning Footages 131,049 Avg Ft Per Mo 131,049 Avg Mo 129,121 Mo; 1,549,454 YE (w/o CI) 107,055 Mo, 1,284,656 YE
o     Feet per crew day o  Feet Per Crew/Day 6,445 Ft Per Crew/Day 6,445 Ft Per Crew/Day 2,500 to 4,000 Per Crew Day 4,987 Ft Per Crew/Day
o     # of Crew Days o  # of Crew Days 20.3 # of Crew Days 20.3 # of Crew Days 21 to 33 Crew Days 20.8 # of Crew Days

•         Televising Per Month Televising Footages 99,046 Avg Ft Per Mo 99,046 Avg Mo 109,891 Avg Mo, 1,318,689 YE 68,880 Mo, 826,571 YE
o     Feet per crew day o  Feet Per Crew/Day 4,793 Ft Per Crew/Day 4,793 Ft Per Crew/Day 2,000 to 3,500 Per Crew Day 3,680 Ft Per Crew/Day
o     # of Crew Days o  # of Crew Days 20.7 # of Crew Days 20.7 # of Crew Days 24 to 42 Crew Days 18.5 # of Crew Days

Days Per Mo 2 Hydrojets Not Available 0 Days 0 Days <  3 Days 0 Days
Days Per Mo 2 TV Vans Not Available 0 Days 0 Days <  3 Days 0 Days

Learning & Growth:
# new modules completed 1 Module 0 Modules 1  Modules

0 Modules
# of Training Modules w/instuction completed 0 Module 0 Modules 1   Modules 2 Modules

# of individual Competency Assessments passed 0 Assessments 0 Assessments 27   Assessments 38
•   Communicate Performance 
      Data to Teams # of time info shared with Team 3 Min. per mo 3 Min. per mo Min. 1 per/mo 12

•   Maintain and increase employee 
skills

•    Key Vehicles not Available For                     
Preventative Maintenance Program

Qtr 1 FY 14 To Date
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Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
  
Officers 
Richard Currie 
General Manager/District 
Engineer 
  
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
DATE: November 25, 2013 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors 
 
FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Tom Graves, Assistant to the General Manager/Board Secretary 
 
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 8 - Meeting of November 25, 2013 

APPROVING A MOTION TO CANCEL THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
MEETING OF DECEMBER 23, 2013. 

 
 
Recommendation 
 
Motion to approve. 
 
Background 
 
The second regularly-scheduled meeting of the Board of Directors in December falls on 
the day before Christmas Eve. Traditionally, this is a time that many employees take 
vacation leave, and in the past, the Board has cancelled the second meeting in 
December.  Again this year, staff is recommending that the Board consider cancelling or 
rescheduling the December 24th meeting. We do not anticipate any critical actions 
requiring Board approval relative to either operations or contract work. 
 
The next Regular Board Meeting is scheduled for January 14, 2014. 
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DATE: 

MEMO TO: 

FROM: 

SUBJECT: 

Recommendation 

November 18, 2013 

Board of Directors- Union Sanitary District 

Olrec:tors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjall Lathl 
Jennifer Toy 

omee,.. 
Richard B. Currie 
~/;fiM(Jel 
Olatlfct Engineer 

David M. O'Hara 
Atto~My 

Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 
Rich Cortes, Business Services Manager 
Maria Scott. Principal Financial Analyst 
Debi Kull, Sr. Accountant 

Agenda Item No. 9- Meeting of November 25, 2013 
Accepting Financial Statements- Fiscal Year Ended June 30, 2013 

Receive and file financial statements for fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. 

Background 

The District engages an independent accounting firm to audit the financial statements 
and records for each fiscal year. Attached for your review are the audit reports on the 
District's comparative financial statements for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 
and the Single Audit report covering State Revolving Fund proceeds (Federal portion) 
for Primary Clarifier, Substation 1, and Boyce Lift Station projects. 

Operating Revenues: 

FY '13 operating revenues increased by 4.4% to $43,503,113. 
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Fiscal Year 2013 
Fiscal Year 2012 
Fiscal Year 2011 

$43,503,113 
$41 ,657,935 
$39,474,772 



Board of Directors 
Meeting of November 25, 2013 
Page Two 

Operating Expenses: 

FY '13 operating expenses, before depreciation, increased by 14.1% to $34,154,742. 

Net Assets: 

Fiscal Year 2013 
Fiscal Year 2012 
Fiscal Year 2011 

$34,154,742 
$29,919,729 
$30,449,295 

FY '13 Net Assets decreased by .82% to $350,983,722. 

Fund Balances: 

Fiscal Year 2013 
Fiscal Year 2012 
Fiscal Year 2011 

$350,983,722 
$353,867,248 
$355,370,629 

The total ending fund balances for capacity, renewal and replacement, and other 
restricted and unrestricted purposes decreased from $52.1 million in FY '12 to $51.6 
million in FY '13. 

Audit Comments: 

There were no audit comments for FY13. 

Attachments 
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VAVRlNBK,11UNE,DAY 
& COMPANY, LLP 

Ccrtlfittl Mlk Ji«oJintllntJ 

Board ofDirector.t 
Union Sanitary District 
Union City, California 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPOlfi 

Report on tbe Fipanclal Statement& 

. .. - .. 
VAL U ~ T ' i C •0 It F l H t: ~ C E 

r - . --

We have audited the accompanying financial statemonts of Union Sanitary District as of and for the years then 
ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, and the related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise Union 
Sanitary District's basic financial statements as listed in the table of c<mtc:nts. 

Management's ResponalbDity for the F~lal State.meotl 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these finangial statements in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the design, implementation, 
and maiDtcnance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair prcscntlrtion of financial statements that are 
free from material misstatement. whether due to fraud or error. 

Auditor's ResponalbiHty 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements baaed on our audit. We did not audit the 
equity investment in the East Bay Dischargers Authority which represents 1.6 pen:ent and 1.8 percent, respectively, 
of the assets and net position of the Union Sanitary District. The statements for which the equity investment is 
derived were audited by other auditors whose report has been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to 
tbe amount includc:d for the equity investment, is based solely on the report oftha other auditors. We conducted our 
audit in acoordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America. Those standards 
require that we pJan and perform the audit to obtaw reasoMble assurance about whether the financial statements arc 
free from material misstatements. 

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements. The prooedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the assessiUent of the risks of 
material miS&tatemeot of th~ financial statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, 
the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity's preparation and fair presentation of the financial 
statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control. Accordingly, we express no such 
op1ruon. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the 
reasonableness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overaiJ 
presentation of the financial statements. 

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for uur aildil 
opinion. 

:>COO Hopyad Road. &lite 3~ Aeasantcn, CA 94588 ret 925 734 6600 ~ex- 925.734 61311 www.vtdcoa.com 

UI£SNO • I.AOU NA HILLS • 1ALO A LTO • P L , ASA !<TO !ll • RA NCHO CUC ;\J\IOHGA • RIVEilS I D r. • SACRAMI:NTO 
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Opinioo 

In our opinion, based on our audit and the report of other audito~ the financial statements referred to above present 
faiTly, mall mntenal respects, the financial position ofUruon Sanitary District as of June 30,2013 and 20121 and the 
changes in financial position and, where applicable, cash flows thereof the years then ended in accordance with 
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, as well as accounting systems provided by 
the State Comptroller' s Office for Special Districts. 

As described in Note I to tl1e financial statements, Union Sanitary District adopted new accounting guidance, 
GASB 'Statement No. 63, Fina11cia/ Reporting of Deferred Outflows of Resources, Deferred !tiflnw.~ of Ruources, 
and Net Position. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter. 

Other Matters 

Required Supplementary Information 

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management's 
discussion and analysis and the schedules of funding progress for pension and retiree health benefit plan, as listed 
in the table of contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, although 
not a pan of the basic financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board, who 
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an 
appropriate operational, economlc., or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the 
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the infonnatiou 
and comparing the infonnation for consistency with management' s responses to our inqulries, the baslc financial 
statements, and othCT knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not 
express an opinion or provide any assurance on the infonnation because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance. 

Other ltifomwtion 

Our audit was conducted for the pu1p0sc of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the District's basic fUUlJlcial statements. The financial information listed as supplementary infonnation 
in the table of contents is presented for purposes of additional analysis and is not a required part of the basic 
financial statements 

The supplementary infonnation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to 
the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financ1al statements. Such infonnation has been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the underlying accounting and 
other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and 
other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America. In our opinion, the infonnation is fairly stated in nil material respects in relation to the basic financial 
statements as a whole. 
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Otber Reportiug Required by Government Audltlng St111tdards 

ln accordarl.ce with Government Audi,blg Standards, we have also issued our report dated October 23, 2013, on our 
consideration of the District's internal control over f~oial reporting and our tests of its complimcc with certain 
provisions of laws, ~gulations, contracts and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to 
describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance ~d the results of that 
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over fmancial reporting or on compliance. That report 
is an integral part of an audit performed in accqrdancc with Governmetu Auditing Standards and should be 
considered in assessing the results of our audit. 

1 \ r vr;,.,t "fr.: ... p .. ! 'f G. L.U· Y6 I I , I 

Pleasanton. California 
October 23,2013 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 201 3 
This section of the District's annual financial report presents an analysis of the District' s financial performance 
during the fiscal year ended June 30, 2013. This information is presented m conjWlction with the audited 
financial statements, which follow this section. 

The District, which was established in 1918 and subsequently reorganized in 1923, is empowered to own and 
operate wastewater facilities and the Board of Directors may prescribe, revise and collect fees or charges for 
services and facili Lies of the District in connection with its wastewater system. 

FlNANCJAL UJGH LJGIITS 

• The District' s total ending net position decreased by $2.9 million as a result of this year's operations. At 
June 30, 2013 net position totaled $350.9 million. That is, the District's total assets exceeded liabiJitjes 
by $350.9 m11lion 

• During the year, the District hod expenses, including depreciation of $16 8 million, which exceeded 
sewer service charges, contributed capital, interest, and other operating revenues by $2.9 million. Thjs 
compares to last year when expenses exceeded revenues by $1.5 million. 

• Long-tenn liabilities increased by $577,000 during the current fiscal year due to the addition of State 
Revolving Fund loan proceeds (debt). 

• The District placed $10 million in assets into service compared to $3.9 million lost year 

USING TWS ANNUAL REPORT 

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The District-wide financial statements include the 
Statement ofNct Position and the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position These provide 
information about the activities of tbe District as a whole and present a longer-tenn view of the District's 
property, debt obligations and other fmancial matters. They reflect the flow of total economic resources in a 
manner similar to tile fmancial reports of a business enterprise. 

TI1e notes to the fmanciaJ statements provide narrative explanations or additional data needed for fuJI disclosure. 

• Statement of Net Position - Includes aU D1strict assets and Habilities and provides information about 
the nature and amounts of investments in resources (assets) and obligations to creditors (liabilities). lt 
also provides the basis for computing rate of return; evaluating the capital structure of the District; and 
assessing the liquidity and financial flexibility of the District 

• Statement of Revenues. Eipeoses and Changes In Net Position - All of the current year revenues and 
expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This 
statement measures the success of District operations over the past year and can be used to detennine 
whether the District has successfully recovered all its costs through its user fees and other charges, 
profitability, and credit worthiness. 

• Statement of C ash Flows - The primary purpose of this statement is to proVIde information nbout 
District cash receipts, cash disbursements and net changes in cash resulting from operations, investments, 
and cap1lal and non-capital financing activities. It illustrates the source of revenue, purposes for wh1ch it 
was used. and change jn cash balance dunng the reporting period. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Reporfin& theDIItrict u a Whole 

71ut SttlttMent of N~ Position otl tlte Stt1tetnent of Revenues, l!xpe1Ues, tllld Cluutga in Net Position 

DISTRICT-WIDE FINANCIAL ANALYSIS 

Our analysis focuses on the net positima (Table 1) and changes in net position (Table 2) of the District's activities. 

Net positir;>n of the District's buainess~typc activities decreased from $353.9 miJllon to $350.9 million. 
Un.restricted net assets ~ the part of net as.sets that can be used to finance day-to-Qay operalioDJI without 
constraints established by debt covenants, enabtitlg legislation, or other legal requirements- were $36.3 million at 
June 30, 2013. The docrcase in total net position was the result of a decrease in c\111"ellt assets of $806,000, 
mainly cash, a decrease in net capital assets of $1 .5 million. due to increased construction in progress and 
depreciation, a decrease in current Jiabilities of approximately $27,000, and an increase in long term obligations 
of $577,000. 

Table 1 - CondeDHd Statement of Net Position 

OoJiar Perceat 
Ffl<oal Yar FlltalYnr Fllcal Ynr cu .... Cban1• 
2012-2013 2011-lOU 201~11 F\' 13 to FYU PV UtoFYU 

Current ancl other a.18CCI s 62,855;452 s 63,661,824 $ 60,345,735 s (806,372) -1.3% 
Capilal Uleta 335,041,723 336,5691446 33~946,978 ~ 115271723! -O.S% 

Total useta 397,8971175 400,231 ,270 393~713 ~2133A,09Sl ..(),6,..! 

Current liebllitic:s 10,007,41.3 10,034,883 8,909,014 (27,470) -0.3% 

Long·tenn liabilitic.o~ .36,906,040 !!:!6:@ 29,013,000 576,901 1.6% 
Totelliabllitie4 46213,453 nm.OM 5-49,431 12% 

Net Poaitlon: 
Net invc:atmc:nt io cepltal auets 294,393,392 296,9.39,157 300,489,831 {2,545.765) .o.~Aa 

Restricted 20.297,820 19,346J78 16,sn,a36 9SI,442 4.9% 
Unrestricted 3~292,5 10 37,5811713 38,002,962 !1.289.!03l -3.4% 

Total net position s 350,983,722 s 353,867.248 s 355,370,629 $ {2,883,526) .0.8% 

In the prior year, FY 2012, Net position decreased from $355.4 million to $353.9 million. due mamly to an 
increase in current and other assets of $3.1 million, mainly investments, an increase in net capital assets of $.3.6 
million, due to increased construction in progress, an increase in current liabilities of approximately $1 .I million, 
and an increase In long tenn debt of$7.3 million. 

s 
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UNION SANrr ARY DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30, 2013 

Table 2 - Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses. and Changes in Net Position 

Dollar Percent 
Fhul Vear Fln~al 'V ear Flseal \'ear Chan~ Chanae 
2012-2013 2011-12 2010-11 FY 13 to FY12 F'V I] to F'VIl 

Rewnucs·. 
Sewer service: charges (SSC) s 42,339,}11 s 40.630,578 s 38,486,824 s 1,708, 733 4.2% 
Other revenues 1,163,802 1,027.357 987,948 136,44S 13.3% 
Investment income and net gam~ 171\690 248 •. l37 274,128 (69,647) -28. 0"~ 
Connection fees 2,8641810 2,8-48,488 3,381,963 16322 0.6% 

Total n:vcnues with connCit' tion fees -46,546.613 44,754,760 43,131,063 1,791 ,853 4.0o/o 

Expensa: 
Sewage treallliCIIt 16.088.929 14,'255.266 14,J42,35i 1,1133.663 12.9% 
Sllw3¥c colloctlon and ungi11oorlng 11,9S4,3<1S 9,712,645 10.5.32,692 2,241.700 23.1% 
General and adminblnltion 6,111,4611 5,9SI,III8 S,S74,251 IS9,6SO 2.7% 
Interest 1,1)8,677 8511,162 1,114,313 280,515 32.7% 
Depr~lation 16,716,307 16,790,277 16,323,858 (13,970) -0.1% 
l.o.'lll on n:tirement of cap1tal BllSCis 1,479,254 127,430 751,601 111511824 1060.8% 

Total expenses 53,.548,980 47.69S1598 48,639,067 5,853,)82 12.3% 

Decre<~so in act position before contrlbutiOIIIi 
and srecial ilelllll (7,002.367) (2,94tl,838) (5,508,004) (-4.061,529) IJB. I% 
Contribulied cap'Uil aru1 EBDA lots 4,11!l841 1,437,457 4~73179S 2,681,384 186.5% 
Chanac in Net PDSition (2,883,526) (1,503,381) ( 1,134.209) (1,380, 145) 91 .8% 
BcgiMlng Net Po,ition 35Jz!67,248 355,3701629 356,504,838 ~11S03,381) .0.4% 
Ending Net Po!it\on $ 350,983,722 s 353,867,248 $ 355,3 70,629 s (2,883,526~ -0.8% 

The District's total revenues such as capacity fees and sewer service charges increased by $1 .8 million, or 4.0 
percent for the year ended June 30, 2013. This is due mainly lo a 5.0 percent increase in the sewer service charge 
rate, an increase in capacity fee revenue, and a decrease in interest. Contributed capital increased by $2.7 
million. The total cost of all programs and services, including depreciation, was nine percent higher than last 
year. Most major cost categories increased over 2012 costs except for repairs and maintenance, utilities, EBDA, 
and rents and leases. Tbe main increase was for non-capital project expenses of $3.8 million for Force Main 
Improvement Project, lnka Demolition, Facilities Condition Assessment, among others. 

In the prior year, FY 2012, total revenues such as capacity fees and sewer services charges increased by $1.6 
million. This was due mainly to a five percent increase in the sewer service charge rate, an increase in capacity 
fee revenue and a decrease in interest. The total cost of all programs and services, including depreciation, was 
1.9 percent lower than FY 2011. Most major cost categones decreased, including non-capital project expense, 
insurance, office supplies, repairs and maintenance, and operating supplies. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNEJO 2013 

0.4" 3" 
FY 2013 Reve.nues 

Sewer Sevlce 
Charge 
Capacity Fees 

Interest 

Other 

FY2012 
Revenues 

Sewer Sevlce 
Charge 

CapatiW 
Fees 

Interest 

11 Other 

24J6 0.3" 

FV 201-3 EJCpenses 

sewaae 
Treatment 
Collection & En& 

G~n&Admln 

Depredation 

lntecest 

Loss on Assets 

FY 2012 Expenses 

11 Sewaae 
Treatment 
Collect•on & Eng 

E Gen&Admln 

a Deprecratlon 

r Interest 

loss on Asset$ 

The District took actions this year to compensate for increases in costs, and to avojd the Joss of revenue due to 
changes in the ~nomy. 

• The District increased sewer service fees five percent. 

• The District increased capacity fees ten percent. 

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION 

Capital Assets 

At the end of 2013, the District had approximately $335 million invested in a broad range of capital assets, 
including facilities and equipment for the plant, collections, and administrative facilities. This amount represents 
a net decrease of$1.5 miUion, or .5 percent. compared to last year. The main reason for this is the accumulated 
depreciation in FY 2013. Total assets placed into service were $10.0 million in FY 2013 vs. $3.8 million in FY 
2012 and $26.4 in FY 2011. Additjons to Construction in Progress were $13.9 milJion in FY 2013 vs. $18.6 
million in FY 2012 and $9.5 million in FY 2011. The District adopted an increase to the capital asset threshold 
to $10,000 in FY 2013, resulting in the deletion of 324 assets from capital assets, or $2.4 million. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
.nJNE 30, 20l3 
Additions to Construction in Progress totaled $13.9 million. Major projects included: 

Boyce Road Lift Station 

Primary Clarifiers 1-4 
Cogeneration 

Table 3 - Additions to Construction in Progress 

Thickener No. 3 & 4 Rehabilitation 
Head works & Emergency Outfall Improvements 
Misc. Spot Repairs Phase 4 
PLC Replacement 

Thickener Control Building and Interim Improvemen\S 

f-680 at Sabercat Replacement 
SFPUC at Mission Blvd & 1-880 

Force Main Improvement 
Others 
Total 

This year's major additions (placed into service) included: 

Table 4 - Total Assets Placed into Service 

Substation No.1 Replacement 

Secondary Digester No. 1 Dome Replacement 

Misc. Spot Repairs- Phase 4 
Vehicles 

Force Main Improvement 

SFPUC at Mission Blvd. & I-880 
Primary Digester No.4 Rehabilitation 

Grit Hopper Replacement 

Contributed Capital (pipes and manholes) 
Others 
Total 

$ 

$ 

$ 

s 

2,513,378 
1,909,633 

1,901 ,083 
1,451,482 

834,599 

739,827 
709,653 

590,956 
574,264 
530,756 

437,232 

1,798,762 
13,991,625 

2,t)l8,082 

789,580 

752,217 

565,915 

340,000 
274,790 

176,245 
122,547 

4,009,985 

372,557 

More detailed infom1ation about the District's capital assets is presented in Note 2 to the financial statements. 

Debt Administration 

At year-end, the District had $40.6 million in notes outstanding versus $39.6 million last year, This debt consists 
of nine State Revolving Fund loans. 

Other obligations include accrued vacation pay and sick leave. More detailed information about the District's 
long-term liabilities is presented in Note 5 to the financial statements. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
JUNE 30 2013 
ECONONDCANDOTHERFACTORS 

The District's elected and appointed officials considered many factors when setting the filoal year 2013 budget. 
One of those faclors was the economy. Increased Alary and benefit ~sts. as well as increased CIP projeota, were 
taken lnto consideration. In addition, the Board considered increasing construction costs when reviewing the 
CIP. Sewer service charge rates increased 5% and Capacity fee rates increased 10%. The net Operating budget 
was increased 3.5 percent, using a projected staff vacancy factor of two percent. 

The District's fiscal year 2013 capital budget called for expenditures of$13.6 million for Boyce Rd. Lift Station 
Replacement, Cogeneration, INKA Structure Dcmolltion, Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation, Thickener Control 
Building lmprowments and Thickener Mechanism 3 & 4 Replacement among others. The Engineering group 
prioritized and rescheduled C.IP projects in order to help achieve QUJ' goal of positive fund b1d11nces. The CJP 
budget incroased by $4.5 million from fiscal year 2012. 

The District's fiscal year 2014 budget includes a six percent Increase in the operating budget with a two percent 
staff vacancy factor, and a capiW budget which calls for expenditures of $17.5 million for Cogeneration, 
Headwork& Conveyors and Screenings, RAS Pump Stations Pumps and Valve Replacement, 1-680 Crossing at 
Saberoat Rd. Boyce Road Lift Station Replacement, Vflasy Street Sewer lmprQvements, Aeration Internal Lift 
Pumps, and Cast Iron Pipe Lining projects. Sewer service charges will increase 5.7 percent and Capacity fee 
rates will increase ten percent 

The District will use its revenues to finance current projects, although applications will continue to be submitted 
to the State Water Resources Control Board for State Revolving FUnd loans for upcoming projects. 

CONTACJ'ING THE DISTRICT'S FJNANCIAL MANAGEMENT 

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, and investors and crcditora with a 
general overview of the District's finances and to show the District's accountability for the money it receives. lf 
you have questions about this report or need additional financial information, contact the District at (510) 477-
7500. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

2013 2012 
CURRENT ASSETS 

Cash, cash equivalents s fi43.7S2 s 1,508,810 
Invest menu !50,804.062 50.335,929 
Accounts rcuivablc. net 2,771,607 2,961,626 
lntera:t receivable 99,811 192,858 
Inventory 596,396 .S22,.SlS 
Other 21,659 19609 

Toea I C:UO'Wt ISletS 5419371287 5.51541 1347 

NONCURRENT ASSETS 
Capital AascU 

Non depreciable capital assets: 
Laod aod improvements 5.593, 929 5,395,903 
Construcnon in progress 31,800,155 2.5,094,235 
Capacity Permit 6,043,632 6,043,632 

Deprcc:iabl c us eta 
L tility plant m service 609,293,880 604,087,703 
un Accui1Jillated depreciation {3171689.8731 !)04,052,027) 

Net capital assets 3351041,723 336~69,446 

Other Auets 
Restricted cash and cash equivalents I 13,296 
Restricted investments 10,000 20,000 
Net OPfB asset 1,•435, 718 1,425,564 
lnvenmcnt in East Bay Dischargers Author1ty 61472,447 6,561,617 
Total other ISS CIS 7,918,165 8,120,477 

Total non-cuncnt aascts 342,9591888 344,689,923 

TOTAL ASSETS 397,897,175 400.231,270 

ClJRRF.NT LIARILITIES 
Accounts payable and accrued expenses 3,738,900 4,566,3~5 

CustOI'IlCT deposits 381,542 263,021 
Accrued payroll and rdated Cllpenses 671,896 660,306 
Interest payable .S.S7,503 405.430 
Current portion of compensated ab5ences 915.281 838,581 
Cum:nt portion of long-term debt 3,742~91 313011150 

Total curnnt liabilities 10,007,413 10.034,883 

LON~TERM LIAB1LmES 
Lons-term debt; net of CUJT'Cnt portion 36,906,040 36.329,139 

1 ot.allong-term habilities 36,906,040 36,329.139 

TOTAL UABIUTJES 46,913,453 461364,022 

NET POSITION 
Net lnvesunc:nt in cap1tal assets 294,393,392 296,939,157 
Restricted for: 

Capacity pUTposes. expendable 16,093,405 15, 123.448 
SRF loan contiJl&ency reserve, non-expendable 4.204,415 4,222,930 

Unrestricted 36,292,510 371581,713 

TOTAL NET POSITION $ 3501983,722 $ 353,86'7,248 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financtal statements. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND lOll 

2013 2012 
OPERATING REVENUE 

Sewer service charges $ 42,339,311 $ 40,630,578 
Other operatingrevenu~a 111631802 110271357 

Total operating revenue 431503.113 4116571935 

OPERATING EXPBNSES 
Sewage treatment 16,088,929 14,255,266 
Sewage collection and engineering 11.954,345 9,712,645 
General and adminittration 611111468 5~1.818 

Tocal opcratina expenses before depreciatJon 3411541742 2919191729 

DEPRECIATION 161776,30? 16,790,277 
Total Qperating expenses 5019311049 4617101006 

OPERATING LOSS p14271936l ~5105~07ll 

NON-OPERATING REVENUES (HXPBNSES) 
Net investment income and net realized gains and losses 178,690 248.337 
Interest Expense {1,138,677) (858,162) 
Loss on retirement of capital assets (1,479,2.54) (127,430) 
Gain (loss) on CK~.uity investment in East Bay Dischargers Authority {8911701 ~100,827l 

Net non-operating revenuc (expcnae) {215281411) ~8381082l 

t OSS BEFORE CONTRIBUTED CAPITAL (9,956,347) (5,890,153) 

CoJmcction fees and other contributed capital 710721821 4,3861772 

CHANGE IN NET POSmON (2,883,526) (1,503,381) 

NET POSITION, BBOINNING OP YEAR 353,867,248 355,370,629 
NET POSITION, END OF YEAR $ 35019831722 s 353,867,248 

The accompanying notes arc an integral part of these fillancial statements. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012 

2013 2012 
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACI'IVITIES 

Receipts from custumen $ 43,693,132 $ 41 .S 32,187 
Payments to suppllen ( 14,853,479) (9,848,3511) 
Payments to employees ( 13,983,330) ( 13,255, 728) 
Payments far bc:ndlts on behalf uf employees (5,692,889) (S, I 5 1.590) 
RcccipL~ (disbursenumts) far depcll\lts I 18,521 (99.191) 
Payments related to poslemploymem bc:nc:fits (4411,284) (363,108) 
Other opc:n~ting receipts (disbursemen!S) ~2,0502 7017 

Cub flows provided by (used in) openatm& lldivities 8,831,621 12,821~29 

CASH FLOWS PROM CAPITAL AND RELATED FlNANCIAL ACTIV1TIES 
Principal payments on long-term debt (3,306,586) (3,600,409) 
Procoeds from state revolvin& losn funds 4,324,628 10,77J,S51 
lnteres~ paid on lont-term debt (986,604) (847,214) 
Acquiaflion and construction of capital assets (14, 197,107) (19,001,891) 
Connection reea and other related revc:n..as &oro developers 3,062,!36 2,848,488 

Cash nows provided by (used in} CIJ'llal and rellllcd fimmcing actlvitia (11,102,833} !9,827.475~ 

CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Interest received 271,737 221 ,931 
Net lou on disposal of capitol assets 1,479,254 
Purclta6e of investments 57.040.000 (81 J61,9S ll 
'Proceeds from Mles and maturities of lnvesrmcnta ~5714981133~ 7&,7551000 

Cash flows provided by (used in) Investing activirie.q 1 ~9211158 !2~11510201 

NET INCREASE (DECREASE} [N CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS (978,354) 608,734 

CASH AND CASH EQUfV A LENTS. BEGINNING OF YEAR l,b221106 1,0131372 

CASH AND CASII EQUfVALENTS, END OF YEAR s 643,752 s 1,622,106 

RECONCILIATION OF CASH AND EQUfV A LENTS 

Un!'I:Jbic:tc:d cash and cash equivalents s 643,752 s I )08,810 

Restricted cuh and cash equivalents 113~96 
Total cash and cash equivalents s 643,752 s 11622,106 

RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING LOSS TO 
NET CASH FROM OPERATING ACJIVrrES 

Opentinaloss s (7,427,936) s (5,052.071} 
Adjusunens ro reconcile operating loss to cash flow• 

provided by operating activities 
Depreciation 16,776.307 16,790,277 
(lncreu;e} decrease In ac~:ounta receivable and other aasets 190,019 ( 12S,i48) 
Increase (decrease) rn accounts payable and aa:rued expenses (827,495) 1.256.648 
( lncrcuc) decrease In \oven tory and ll(her 2,20S 5 1.3 14 
lncrca,c (decrease) in cW!lomer depusil' 1181521 !99.191) 

Cash flows proVIded by (used in) operating activities s 8,831,621 s 12,821.229 

NONCASH TRANSACTIONS 
Contributions of capitol asJets s 4,009,985 s I,S38,2114 
Decrease in equity In East Bay Dlsc:hargers Authonty &9,170 100,827 

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements. 
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UNION SANITARY DISI1UCT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #J -SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES 

Union Sanitary District {the "District") operatos pursuant to Division 6 of the Healtb and Safety Code of the State 
of California (Sanitary District Act of 1923, as amended). The District, which was established in 1918 and 
subsequently reorganized in 1923, is empowered to own and operate wastewater facilities, and the Board of 
Directors may prescribe, revise: and collect fees or charges for services and facilities of the District in connection 
with it$ wastewater system. 

The District ia governed by a five-member Board of Directors elected by watds for four-year overlapping terms. 
The election is at-large and non-partisan. The Board appoints the General ~ger to [118Wlge and ovenee tbe 
day-to-day operations. 

The at;Jeounting policies Qf the District conform to accounting principles generally accepted in the United States 
of America as applicable to entelprise go\'eilUDCI1la. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board {OASB) is 
the ancc:pted stondard~ctting body for aovcrnmcntal accounting and financial reporting priociples. The GASB 
cstablimes standards for external financial raporting for all state and local governmenlal entities, which require a 
management and di&CUssion and analysis section, a statement of net position, a statement of revenues, expenses, 
and changes in net position. and a statement of cash flows. It requires the classification of net position into three 
components: illV<:&ted in capitalllS&ets, restricted, and unrestricted. 

The Plnanc/tll R1J10rtlng Bntity 

For financial reporting purposes component units are defined as lcgaUy separate organizations for whlch the 
elected officials of the primary government are financially acco~tabJe, and other organizations for which the 
nat UTe and significance of their relationship with a primary govcmmcnt are such that exclusion would cause: the 
reporting entity's ftnancial statement$ to be misleading or incomplete. The District considered all potential 
component units io determining what organizations should be included in the fmancial statements The District 
bas determined that there are no component units that meet these criteria as of, and for the year coded June 30, 
2013. The District includes all funds that are oontrolled by, or dependent upon the Board of Directors of the 
District. 

In addition, the District's share of a Joint Powers Authority (East Bay Dischargers Authority) is reflected based 
upon the District' s proportionate share of its investment in the discharge facilities in the Authority (see Note 4). 

The financial statements of the District arc presented as those of an enterprise fund under the broad category of 
funds called proprietary funds, which also include internal service funds. All proprietary f\mds utllize the 
economic resources measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. Under the accrual basis of 
accounting. revenues are recognized when earned, and upenses are recorded when the liability is incurred or 
economic asset utilized. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #1- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED 

Enterpnse funds account for business-like activities provided to the general public. These activities are financed 
primarily by user charges, and the measurement of fmancial activity focuses on net income measurement similar 
to the private sector. The acquisition and capital improvement of the physical plant facilities requires that these 
goods and services be financed from existing cash resources, cash flow from operations, the issuance of debt, and 
contributed capital. 

The District applies all applicable GASB pronouncements in accounting and reporting for proprietary operations, 
as well as the following pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989, except for those that conflict 
wjtb or contradict OASB pronouncements: Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) Statements and 
Interpretations, Accounting Principles Board (APB) Opinions, and Accounting Research Bulletins (ARB's) of 
the Committee on Accounting Procedure. 

Certain amounts presented iu the prior year data have been reclassified in order to be conalstent with the current 
year·s presentation. 

C11.•h 1111d Cash BtuiwlktttR 

The District considers all highly liquid investments, which are readily convertible into known amounts of cash 
and have a maturity of three months or less when acquired, to be cash equivalc:ots. As of June 30, 2013 and 
2012, cash equivalents consist of U.S. Treasury funds in a sweep accounL 

Certain cash and cash equivalents have been placed into escrow according to the requirements of ongoing 
construction contracts. Accordingly, such cash and cash equivalents have been classified as restricted in the 
accompanying financial statements. 

lnvutm~nts 

Investments, whlch consist of short-tenn, futed-income securihes at June 30, 2013 and 2012, are recorded at fair 
value using quoted market prices. The related net realized and unrealized gains (losses) on investments are 
recognized in the accompanying statement of revenues expenses, and changes in net assets. 

Certain investments have been placed into escrow according to the requirements of ongoing construction 
contracts. Accordingly, such inveshnents have been classified as restricted m the accompanying financial 
statements. 

lnw:ntory 

Inventory is held for consumption and is recorded at cost using the first-in-first-out (FIFO) basjs, 

Capit4f Ast~•ets 

Capital assets, including costs of addition to utility plant and major replacements of property, are capitalized and 
stated at cosL The District's capitalization threshold is $10,000. Such capital costs include materials, direct 
labor, transportation, and such indirect costs as interest and contracted engineering. Contnbuted property is 
recorded as fair value as of the date of donation. Repairs, maintenance, and minor replacements of property are 
charges to expense. 
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UNION SANJT ARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #I-SUMMARY OF SJGNIFJCANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED 

.lhpnclldion 

The purpose: of depreciation is to spread the cost of capital assets equitably among aD customers over the life of 
those assets. The amount cbqcd to c!opreciation e~nsc each year represents that year's pro rata share of 
capital asset costs. 

Depreciation of nil capital assets in service is charged as an expense against operations each yea.r. Accumulated 
depreciation, the total amount of depreciation taken oyer ~e years, is reported on ~ !Jtatement of net position 11.s 
a reduction in the gross value of the capital asset.a. 

Depreciation of caplW assets in service is calculated l.l8ing the straight Uoe method. dividin,g the cost of the asset 
by jta expected useful life in years. The result is chlllgod to expense ~b yeu ~tn the asset is fully depreciated. 
It is the District's policy to utilize the half-year convention when calculating depreciation. The District bas 
assigned the following useful lives to capital assets: 

Useful Lives 
Wastewater collection facilities 
Wastewater treatment facilities 
District facilities 
General equipment 

50 -115 years 
10-SOyws 
10-35 yws 
3-35 years 

The aggregate pTQvjsion for depreciation was 2.99 percent and 3.01 percent of average depreciable plant during 
the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012, respectively. 

Comp~nnutl Abs~nces 

Vacation can be accumulated and is fairly vested. These compensated absences are recorded as an ex.peru;e when 
earned and are carried as a liability until taken. The liability is computed using cUITent employee pay rates. 

Net Position 

Net position is measured on the full accrual basis and is the excess of all the District's assets over all its 
liabilities. Net position is classified into the following components: net investment in capital assets, restricted 
and unrestricted. Restricted net position describes the portion of net position which is restricted as to use by the 
terms and conditions of agreement with outside parties, governmental regulations, laws, or other restrictions 
wh1ch the District cannot unilaterally alter. It is the District's policy to apply restricted resources first when an 
expense is incurred for pwposes for which both restricted and unrestricted resources are available. 
The following categories of restricted .net position are described as follows: 

• Net Position Restricted for Capacity Purposes - restricted for activities related to increases in the 
capacity of the collection and/or treatment systems. 

• Net Po.~itio11 Re.rtrlcted for Debt Pu1posej - the State requires a contingency reserve for State Revolving 
Fund loan bl!.lances. 

15 

Page 53 of 164 



UNION SANITARY OISTRJCT 

NOTES T O THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND lOll 

NOTE #I - SUMMARY OF SJGNJFICA.NT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED 

C/ass/jic11don of R~venu~s and Expenses 

Operating revenues consist primarily of sewer service charges to customers, which are billed and collected on 
behalf of the District by Alameda County (tbe County) as a separate component of semiannual property tax 
billings. Property taxes are levied on March 1 and are due in equal installments on November I and February 1. 
The County remits to the District those charges which are placed on the property tax roll and handles all 
delinquencies, retaining interest and penalties. 

Nonopemting revenues consist of investment income and special charges that can be used for either operating or 
capital purposes. 

Capital contributions consist of contributed capital assets, connection, and capacity fees that are legally restricted 
for capital expenditures by State law or by Board actions that established those charges. Connection and capacity 
fees represent a one-time contribution of resources to the District, imposed on contractors end developers for the 
purpose of financing capital improvements. 

Operating experues are those expenses that are essential to the primary operations of the District. Operating 
expenses include costs related to wastewater collection and treatment, as wen as engineering and general and 
administrative expenses. Other expenses such as investment losses, interest expense, and loss on retirement of 
capital assets arc reported as non-operating expenses. 

Us~ of &d11111t~s 

The preparation of fmancial statements In conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) 
requ'n-es management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities 
and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the fmancial statements and the reported amounts 
of revenues and expenses during the reponing period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. 

Subs~fllttnt Events 

Management has considered subsequent events through October 23, 2013, the date which the financial statements 
were available to be issued. 

Chtmge ;, Accoutftlng Principl~s 

In June 20 II , the GASB issued Statement No. 63, Financial Ref)OrtinR of Defe"ed O~ttflowl of Re.wurces, 
Deferred In/laws of Resources. and Net Po.rllion. This Statement provides financial reportin~ guidance for 
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources. Concepts Statement No. 4, Eleme11ts of 
Financial Statements, introduced and defined those elements as a consumption of net assets by the Rovemment 
that is applicable to a future reportimt period, and an acquisition of net assets bv the ROVemment that is 
applicable to a future reportin~ period, respectively. Previous financial reportin~t standards do not include 
guidance for reporting those fmancial statement clements, which are distinct from assets and liabilities. 

Concepts Statement No 4 also identifies net position as the residual of all other clements presented in a 
statement of financial position. Thls Statement amends the net asset reportmg requirements in Statement No. 
34, Basic Financial Statements---and Mar~agement :f Discussion and Allalysi$-[Or State and Local 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 1012 

NOTE #I-SUMMARY OF SJGNTFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES- CONTINUED 

Governments, and other pronouncements by incorporating defem:G outflows of .raourccs .00 4eforred inflows of 
resources into the definitions of the required components ofthd residual measure and by renaming that measure 
as net position, rat)ler than net assets. 

The District has implemented tbe provisions of this Statement for the year ended June 30, 2013. 

New AtcoUDtial ProaOWicellleotJ 

In MII'Ch 2012. the OASB issued Statement No. 6S~ Items Pr,viously &port.d a.r A.f.M&.r and Liabililte..,, This 
Statement cstabli.abq accolllltin& and financial ~rting standards that reclassify, aa deferred outflows of 
resoutcea or deferred inflows of resootces, certain items that were previously reportod as assets and liabilities and 
recognizes, as outflows of resources or inflows of resources, certain items that were previously reported aa assets 
and liabilities. 

Concepts Statement No. 4, Elements of Fintlllclal Statements, introduced and defined the elements included in 
fllliiilcial statements, including deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resourpes, 1n addition, 
Coneopts Statement 4 provides that ~ a deferred outflow of re&Ouroes or a defem:d inflow of re!Ourcea 
ahould be limited to those instances identified by the Board in authoritative pronouncements that arc established 
after applicable due process. Prior to the issuance of this Statement. only two such pronouncements have been 
issued. Stlltement No. 53, Accounting a11d Financial ReportiTJgfor Derivative Instruments, requires the reporting 
of a deferred outflow of re80\U'Cos or a deferred inflow of resources for the changes In fair value of hedging 
derivative instrumcuts, and Statement No. 60, Accounting aJid Fmonclal Reporti1tg for SertJice Concession 
Arrangement3, requires a dcfencd inflow of resources to be TCpOrted by a traJJsferor government in a qualifying 
service concession arran~t. This Statement amcmds the financial statement element classification of certain 
items previously reported as assets and liabilities to be consistent with the definitions in Concepts Statement 4. 
This Statement also provides other ftnancial reporting guidance related to the impact of the financial statem.ent 
elements defened outflows of resources and defem:d inflows of J;'CIOwcea, such as changes in the determination 
of the major fund calculations and limiting the use of the tcnn deferred in financial statement presentations. 

The provisions of this Statement are effective for financial statement~ for periods beginning after 
December 15,2012. Early implementation is encouraged. 

In lWle 2012, the OASB issued Statement No. 68, Acco1mting and Financial Reporting for Pensions~.m 
amendm~nl o/GASB Statement No. 17. The primary objective of this Statement is to improve accounting and 
financial reporting by state and local governments for pensions. [t also improves infonnation provided by state 
and local governmental employers about fUlancial support for pensions that is provided by other entities. This 
Statement rcsulta from a comprehensive review of the effectiveness of existing standards of a<:counting and 
financial reporting for pensions with regard lo providing decision-useful infonnation, supporting assessments of 
accountability and inter-period equity, and creating additional transparency 

This Statement replaces the requirements of Statement No. 27, .Accountingfor Pensiom by State and Local 
Governme11tal Employers, as well as the requirements of Statement No. 50, Pension Dlsc/o:mres, as they relate to 
pensions that ere provided through pension plans administered as trusts or equivalent arrangements (hereafter 
jointly referred to as trusts) that meet certain criteria. The requirements of Statements 27 and SO remain 
applicable for pensions that are not covered by the scope of this Statement. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE Ill- SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCIES - CONTINUED 

The scope of this Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for pensions that are provided to the 
employees of state and local govenunental employers through pension plans that are administered through trusts 
that have the following characteristics: 

• Contributions from employers and non-employer contributing entities to the pension plan and earnings on 
those contributions are irrevocable. 

• Pension plan assets are dedicated to providing pensions to plan members in accordance with the benefit 
tenns. 

• Pension plan assets are legally protected from the creditors of employers, non-employer contributing 
entities, and the pension plan administrator. If the plan is a defined benefit pension plan, plan assets also 
are legally protected from creditors of the plan members. 

This Statement establishes standards for measuring and recognizing liabilities, deferred outflows of resources, 
and deferred inflows of resources, and expense/expenditures. For defined benefit pensions, this Statement 
identifies the methods and assumptions that should be used to project benefit payments, discount projected 
benefit payments to their actuarial present value, and anribute that present value to periods of employee service. 

Note disclosure and required supplementary information requirements about pensions also are addressed. 
DistitJctJons arc made regarding the particular requirements for employers based on the number of employers 
whose employees are provided with pensions through the pension plan and whether pension obligations and 
pension plan assets are shared. Employers are classified in one of the followmg categories for purposes of this 
Statement: 

• Single employers are those whose employees are provided with defined benefit pensions through single­
employer pension plans-pension plans in which pensions are provided to the employees of only one 
employer (as defined in this Statement). 

• Agent employers are those whose employees are provided with defined benefit pensions through agent 
multiple-employer pensiou plans-pension plans in which plan assets are pooled for investment purposes 
but separate acco11nts are maintained for each individual employer so that each employer's sbare of the 
pooled assets is legally available to pay the benefits of only its employees 

• Cost-sharing employers arc those whose employees are provided with defined benefit pensions through 
cost-sharing multiple-employer pension plans-pension plans in which the pension obligations to the 
employees of more than one employer are pooled and plan assets can be used to pay the benefits of the 
employees of any employer that provides pensions through the pension plan. 

In addition, this Statement details the recognition and disclosure requirements for employers with liabilities 
{payables) to a defmed benefit pension plan and for employers whose employees are provided with defined 
contribution pensions. This Statement also addresses circumstances in which a non-employer entity has a legal 
requirement to make contributions directly to a pension plan. 

This Statement is effective for fiscal years beginning after June 15, 2014, Early implementation is encouraged. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #11 - CAPITAL ASSETS 

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30.2013 is summarized as follows: 

Ba11U1Cc Balmcc 

Capital aueu, not beiQ& depreciated: 
Juoo 301 2012 Additiou Doll:tioos TJ811Sfara Juoc 3012013 

Land and 1~11 s 5,395,903 s 198,026 s - s - s 5,593.929 
Conscruction In propea 25,094,235 11,868,287 {5,162,367) 31,800,1.55 
Capacity Permit 6,00.~32 ~0431632 

Tollll Capital assets. not bein& depreciated: 36153317'70 12,0661313 ~51162136!} 4314371716 

CapitaiiiiiCICs, boina doprec.ialed: 
Sewage collection licilltiea 397,641,506 4,009,985 (693,699) 1,367,006 402..324,798 
Sewaao trutm.mt facililiet 160,543,1l32 (566,051) 3,567,260 163,545,041 
Oistric:1 facllltiea 39,932,m 565,915 {1,473,622) ISI,936 39,177,008 
Oeneml eqllipiiiCnt 519691586 85162.5 ,11884~3} 761165 4,247,033 

Total Capital -811, belng depredated: 604,097;103 4,661,525 (4,617171~ 511621367 609¢931880 

Leu: Accumulated dcpreolallon 
Sewaao colloolion facilities (200,014,215) {9.828,694) :152,744 (209,490,165) 
Sewage lnlabnent fa~llltiCIII (84,045,740) (4,527,357) 135,841 (88,437 ,1$6) 
Dlatmt flcflltiu (!5,761,064) {1,890,764) 975,116 (16,676,712) 
Oooeral equip11l801 ,412311008} ~5351666} 116!!!&934 ,310&51740! 

Total Accumulated dcpre~iation: pD410S2,02!} ii6178~48Q 311441635 pt7i619.87~ 

Total c:aphal asscta, ~ng deprclOiatod , oct 30010351676 p21120,956} ,114731080} 511~367 2911604,007 

Tollll Cepiial Aseots, net s 336~691446 s 'S41643! s p.473.080l s - s 3351041,723 

Consttuction work in progress consi$ts primarily of the direct construction costa associated with numerous 
District projects plus related construction overhead. The District has outstanding construction contract 
commitments on capital projects approximating $17,522,000 at June 30,2013. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO TilE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #2- CAPITAL ASSETS- CONTINUED 

Captta1 asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2012 is summarized as follows: 

Balance 
luoe 3012011 Additions Deletions 

Capital L\~s. not hcina depi'CCialed: 
Land and Improvements ' 5,395,902 s l s 
Conslnx:tlon in proJIU' 8,443,102 18,597,278 
Capllclty Penni I 610431632 

Tocal CIPiiHI IISCII, no1 bellli depreciated: 19.882,636 18,5971279 

Capital usett~ being deprcc\lted: 
Sew113e coll~tioo facilities 3%,499,517 1,558,715 (1,4-47,172) 
Sewaae treatment foci lilies 160,060,088 
District hcilltlcs 39,302,388 322,501 (62,618) 
Ocmctal equipment 5,900,164 61 1680 ~5317052 

Total Capital assets, being depreciated: 601,762,157 ~~~2,896 (1,563,495) 

Leu: Ac:cumulaled depreciation 
Sewage collcctlon fecilltles (191 ,520.043) (9,816,916) 1.322,744 
Sewase tn:atmenl fsdlities (79,538,387) (4,507,353) 
Di~lrict feci lities (13,897,198) (I ,92l. 482) S9,616 
General equipment p 174211872 i.S4215261 53 70S 

Total Accumuloted depn:clallon: i288169718 1 5~ il617901277} 114361065 

Total cep&tal auo:ts, hcina depreciated , net 313,064,342 ~14,847~81) (127.4l0} 

To1al Capital Assets, net s 332,946,978 s 3,749,898 s (127,430) 

NOTE #3- CASH AND INVESTMENTS 

A. Sumlffaty of Cash tmd CtUh EquiVDI~n~ and llrvt!stments 

Cash and cash equivalents and investments at June 30 are detailed as follows: 

Cash and cash equivalents $ 
Restricted cosh and cash equivalents 
Investmems 
Restricted investments 

Transfe~ 

s 
{1,946,145) 

~ 1194611451 

1,030446 
483,744 
370,5011 
61447 

1,946,145 

119461145 

s 

2013 
643,752 

50,804,062 
101000 

Total Cash and Cash Equivalents and Investments s 51,457,814 
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Balanc.e 
June 3012012 

s 5,39.S,903 
25,094,235 
6,043,632 

36,5331770 

397,641 ,506 
160,543,832 
39,932,179 

51969JS86 
604,0871703 

{200,014,215) 
(84,045,740) 
(15,761,064) 
!4123 I 1008} 

p04.0521027} 

300,0351676 

s )36,569,446 

2012 
$ 1,508,810 

113,296 
50,335,.929 

20,000 

s 51,978,035 



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FIN4NCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 1011 

NOTE #13- CASH AND fNYESTMENTS ·CONTINUED 

The District's investment policy and the California Government Code allow the District to i11vcst in the following 
investments, with certain limiting provisions that address interest rate, risk, credit nsk. and concentration of 
credit risk. 

Maximum Minimum Maximum Mu.imum 
Authorized Remaining Credit P~CIUigc Investmeot 

lnvestmont Type M•!Urity Quality of Portfolio tn One lssucr 

U.S. Tm~Sury Obligations S years NIA None None 
U.S. Aaeney Obligations (a) s years N/A NoDe None 
Banlcem Acceptance (b) 180 days AI/PI (ST) 4o-A. 10% 

A(LT) 
Certiftcates of Deposit 180 day& N/A 300AI 10% 
Ncaotfable Certificates ofDeposit Syears AI (ST) 300.4 10% 

A(LT) 
Repurchase Agreements (c) 90 days NIA 10% 1 0'.4 
Commeroil!l Paper 270 days "Prime" quality 25% 10% 
Local Apcy Investment Fuad (LAIF) N/A N/A 700.4. None 
Corporate Notes (d) S years A .30% 10"AI 
Mortgage Pass-through aud Assel Backed Securities N/A AAAorAu 21)-A. 10% 
Money Marlt.ct FUllds N/A AAAorAu 20% 10% 

a) Securities issued by asencies sponsored by the federal government such as tile Federal Fann Credit Bank 
(FFCB), the Federal Home Loan Bank {FHLB), the Federal National Mortgage Association (PNMA), 
and the Federal Home Loan Mortgage Corporation (FHLMC). 

b) Bankers Acceptances issued by institutions the abort term obligations ofwhlcb are rated at a minimum of 
"PI'' by Moody's Investor Services (Moody's) and A 1 by Standard & Poor's, Jnc. (S&P); or if the short 
tenn obligations are unrated, the long-tenn obligations of which are rated a minimum of"A" by S&P. 

c) Repurchase agreements must be collateralized with U.S. Treasury Obligation or U.S. Agency Securities, 
which must maintain a market value of at least 1 02% of the principal of the repurcbase agree1nent 

d) Securities shall be issued by corporations rated a minimum of" A" by S&.P. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #3- CASH AND INVESTMENTS- CONTINUED 

C. Interest Rate Risk 

lnl-erest rate risk is the risk that changes in market mterest rates will adversely affect the fair value of an 
investment. Genemlly. the IooMer the maturity of an investment, the greater the sensitivity of its fair value to 
changes in market interest rates. 

lnfonnation about the sensitivity of the fair values of the District's investments to market interest rate 
fluctuations is provided by the following table that shows the distribution of the District's investments by 
maturity as of June 30: 

1013 

U.S. Treasury Obligations 
U.S. Agency Obligation:~; 

FHLB 
FNMA 

Corporate Notes 
Certificates of Deposit 
LA IF 
Local Government Investment Pool (CAMP) 

Total Investments 
Casb in bank and money market funds 

Total Cash and Investments 

2012 

U.S. Trcawry Oblig11tions 
U.S. Agency Obligations: 

FHLB 
FNMA 

lntcmutionul Bank fur R«.-unstru\:tion & JA>velopmenl (IBRD) 
Corpomte OtCS 

CerhlicuiCI or Deposit 
LAif' 
Locul Oo\cmment lnvesrment Pool (CAMP) 

Total Investments 
\ ash in bank and money market funds 

Total Cash and 1nvcstmc..,ts 

Page 60 of 164 

12 months or leu 
s 2,014,140 

4,033,740 
931 ,956 

4,264,164 
1.228.401 

32,009,735 
33642 

44,515,778 
643,752 

$ 45,159,530 

12 months or less 
$ 1,500,885 

10.527,454 
2,043,760 

18,992,835 
33 S83 

33,098.517 
116221106 

s 341720,623 

22 

Maturities of 
12-~ months 25 - 60 monthJ Total 
s 2,004,063 s s 4,018,203 

4,033.740 
1,997,300 2.929,2.56 
1.576.605 5,840,769 

720,316 1,948,717 
32,009,73.5 

331642 
6,298,284 50.814,062 

643,752 
$ 61298¢84 $ $ 51 ,457,814 

Maturities of 
12-24 months 25 - 60 months Total 
s 2,024,688 s 2,001,100 $ 5,526,673 

4,068,120 4,068,120 
1,937,833 1,995,980 3,933,813 
2,001,180 2,001 .180 
2,732,752 13,260,206 

495,759 2,539,519 
18,992,835 

331583 
13,260,332 3,997,080 50,355,929 

1,622.106 
$ 131260.332 s 3,997.080 s 51 .9781035 



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENI'S 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOT.B #3- CA.SB ANDJNYESTMBNTS- CON17NUED 

D.LAJFPool 

The District is a voluntary participant in the l;Ooal Agency Investment Fund (LAIF). LAIF is regulated by 
California OovCI11JDCJlt Code Section 16429 under the oversight of the Treasurer of the State of Califomia. The 
District rcpons its investntent in LAIP at the fajr value Atnount Provided by LAIF, which is tho same as the value 
of the pool share. The balance is available for withdrawal on demand, and is based in the accounting records 
maintained by LAlF, which llJ'1;: recorded on all amortized cost l>Jsis. Included in LAJF's investment portfolio are 
collateralizod mortgage obligations, mortgage-backed seourities1 other asset-backed securities, loans to certain 
state funds, and floating rate securities issued by federal ~goncies, governmcnt-spoD$c)red cmtcrprlses, United 
States Treasury Notes and BiUs and corporations. The carrying value of LA1F approximates fair value. At June 
30,2013, these investments mature in an average of278 days. 

E. Cm/U Risk 

Credit risk is the .risk that an issuer of an investment will not fulfill its obligation to the bolder of the inve$tment. 
This is measured by the assignment of a rating by a nationally recognized statistical rating organization. 
Presented below i$ the actual rating as of June 30, 2013 for each investment type: 

U.S. ACG'~'Y Obllptioas 
FHLB 
fl\IMA 

CorponiC Nola 
l..ocal O~llll''CIImcnl Pool (CAMP) 

Totak 
bq>l l'fom crWJt RIC dllr:luo.we 

U.S. Tl'tMIII)' CibUpticw 
C"MUI .. Ia of clcpod1 

Not rated 
Cllllfilmil l..ocal Aaency tnv-t Fund 

C'.uh ead lllllh CIIIVh'llanta 
Tntal ~ Caah Equl~llaul and ln""'tmenll 

s 

s 

A!! Afl ALl 

4,033,140 s s 
2/129.2511 

2.716.484 
33.642 

~.631 s ' 211l!a484 

Presented below is the actual rating as of June 30, 2012 for each investment type: 

US. ~ Obllptlooa 
FHLB 
~'NMA 

lnt<TMtlonal 8W< ftw RclcoDalruc:llcm & Oeftlopmmt (lBRO) 
C'O<pOI'IIC tiOic5 

l.oc:aJ aoven.-t lnvatmml Pool (C"AMP) 
Total1 

bcmpl fi'om r:rtdll ,.,e ch&el<>iUR 
U S. Treuui) Otlllptlcns 
C::•nlfttllei ordtp0$11 

N01ra1cd 
Calirornla Local AcencY lnves~mm• FlUid 

Caab and cash equtnlreb 
Total Cub, Cash Equl\'a1rllll and ln.-eannats 
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..... 
-4,061,120 
l ,9ll,8JJ 
2,001,110 

n.m 
10,036,6911 

23 

AAi. AAl 

s . s 

904,1l& .s,n7,BI3 

$ 90411}1 s 5.777,113 

AI A2 

s s 

:Z.OS0,485 1,063,1100 

S ~OS01415 s 110631800 

AI '"' 
$ . 

oi,U7S,IISS 2,499,6110 

s • 1on16Ss $ 31~910 

Total 

s 4,0l3,740 
2.929.256 
5,8o40J6'l 

n 1642 
12,837,407 

4.018,203 
1,941,717 

Jl,009.7J5 
643.752 

s si14s7li4 

$ 

'fotal 

4.01>1,110 
3,9ll.~ll 

2.001, 1111 
13,26Q 2011 

33~1l 
23.29f\ 902 

s.~26,67l 
2,539,519 

1&. 992,1l.S 
1,6:!11106 

s 51,'171,015 



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30~ 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #3- CASH AND INVESTMENTS- CONTINUED 

F. Concentration of Credit Risk 

Concentration of credit risk is the risk of a loss attributed to the magnitude of a government's investment in a 
single issuer. 

As of fiscal year ended June 30, 2013, the District did not have investments held that are more than five percent 
of the District' s total investments. 

G. Custodial Credit Risk 

Deposits 

This is the risk that in the event of a bank. failure, the District's deposits may not be returned to it. The District's 
policy. as well as the California Government Code, requires that a fmancial institution sel."Uro deposits made by 
state or local govemmental units by pledging securities in an undivided collateral pool held by a depository 
regulated under state law (unless so waived by the governmental unit). The market value of the pledged 
securities in the collateral pool must equal at least I I 0 percent of the total amount deposited by the public 
agencies. California law also allows financial institutions to secure public deposits by pledging first trust deed 
mortgage notes having a value of 150 percent of the secured public deposits and letters of credit issued by the 
Federal Home Loan Bank of San Francisco having a value of l 05 percent of the secured deposits, As of June 30, 
2013, the District' s total bank balance of $929,934 was either collateralized or insured by the Federal Deposit 
Insurance Corporation (FDIC). 

Investments 

This is the risk that, in the event of the failure of the counterparty, the District will not be able to recover the 
value of its investments or collateral securities that are in possession of an outside party. The California 
Government Code does not contain legal or policy requirements that would limit the exposure to custodial credit 
risk for investments. However, the District's policy states that all security transactions entered into by the 
District shall be conducted on delivery-versus-payment (DVP) basis. All securities purchased or acquired shall 
be delivered to the District by book entry, physical delivery, or by third party custodial agreement as required by 
CGC Section 53601. The collateralization on repurchase and reverse repurchase agreemeuts will adhere to the 
amount required under CGC Section 53601(i) (2). 
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UNION SANff ARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #4 -JOINT VENTURES 

Alll,~illl Coumy Wain District FiluuJclng Autllorlly 

The Alameda COlmty Water District Financing Authority, a Joint Powers Authority, waa esta,bJi~ through 
Joint Excteise of Powers Agreement between the Alameda County W$1er District (ACWD) and Union Sanitary 
District (USD) on. November 14, 2011 for the purpose of assisting in the financing and refinancing of capital 
improvement projects of the ACWD and to finance working capital for the ACWD. The dc;bts, liabilities, aod 
obligations of the Authority do not constitute c:lcbta, liabilities, and obligations of Union Sanitary District. The 
Authority is adminiaten;d by tho Boa.rd. which consiats of one member from Union Sanitary District and five 
members from the Alameda County Water District. 

lnvutlflent In &at Bll)1 DhcJuuwers Authority 

The District baa an 18.7 percent interest in East Bay Discharges Authority (EBDA), a Joint Powers Authority 
established under tbe Joint Exercise ofPowcrs Act of the State of California. As a separate legal entity, EBDA 
exercises full power and authority within the scope of the reJated Joint Powers Agreement, includina the 
preparation of annual budgets, accountability for all funds, the power to malce and exocute contracts and the righl 
to sue and be sued. Obligations and liabilities of BBDA arc not those of the District and the other participating 
entities. 

EBDA is governed by a board of directon consisting of represenlatives from each member agency. The h<Mud 
controls the operations of EBDA, including selection of manage:ment and approval of operating budgets, 
indepcudent of any influence by member agencies beyond their rep.rescntation on the Board. 

BBDA constructed and operates an export pumping facility through which all treated wutcwatcr in the area Is 
discharged. The other participants (and their ownership percentages) are the City of Hayward (33 percent), tbe 
City of San Leandro (18.6 percent), and the Oro Loma and Castro Valley Sanitary Districts (collectively, 29.7 
percent). The District bas rights to 18.7 p~nt ofEBDA's capacity. 

Because the District has the abUity to exercise influence over operating and financial policies of the E.BDA, the 
District's proportionate share ofEBDA's net assets, excluding sole use of facilities, and tbe District's share of its 
undivided ownership (18.7 percent) in EBDA's total net equity, have been recorded as an investment in EBDA 
accounted for under the equity method. 

Summary financial information for EBDA, as of June 30, 2012 and 2011 and for the years thCIIl ended, the most 
recent audited information available, is as foJJows: 

Total Assets 
Total liabilities 
Net asset value of EBDA 
District's share at 18.7% 

Net loss on equity investment in EBDA 

EBDA has no outstanding debt. 
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2012 
s 35,461 ,881 

849,863 
34,612,018 
6,472,447 

2011 
s 35,483,503 

349,642 
35,088,861 
6,561,617 

$ 89,170 =$=--===1 0=0,=82=7= 



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #<1- JOINT VENTURES- CONTINUED 

During fiscal year ended June 30, 2013 and 2012. the District was charged $1,060,693 and $1 ,1 00,381, 
respectively, by EBDA primarily for operatmg costs. Such costs are included in the wastewater treatment 
expenses by the District for financial reporting purposes. 

The financial sLatement for EBDA may be obtained from the EBDA, 2651 Grant Avenue, San Lorenzo, CA 
94580-184 1. 

NOTE 115- LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS 

Long-term obligations at June 30, 2013 are summarized as below: 

Malnrily lnlerest ll&laru:e &l•ncoo CWTcnt 
Dale Rate 7£1112 Acldiboo• Rctln:mc:nlt 4'J0/13 Portion 

I~ Swc Rcvollllns fwtd Loan . Plant lJwadc 06117114 2 7'¥. s 3,766,492 ' . s 1,811.688 s 1,9(17,&04 S I ,9(17,80ol 
2003 Sill•• RC>oh inc Fund loun - lrvioaton 08130123 2.4% 9,372,390 683,227 8,689,163 699,624 
2008 Sllllelk-.1llvlne Fund l.aeo - W\.lk>w ll'llif27 2.4'- 1,426,037 74 ICIO I,JSI,Bn 75,940 
2008 Slalo Retolvins Fund Lo11n - New an 0112&!10 2.7% 9,670.324 4~4 306 9,241>,01H 435,76:1 
2008 Slate .Revoh'lnl! Fuod l oan- II etch He~ehy 11/ 17121 2., . I,U3,6<10 88,7?5 1,m.s6s 91,172 
2009 Stale lle•'lllvina Fuod l oan - Cedar Bhd. Oll.!6f30 l.S% 1,1127,887 HillS I 1,746,23(, 83,693 
2011 Slate ile•olvlna Fund Loao - PrlmaryCI. 0 1115133 2. 7• .. 6,438,569 2,298,50~ 8,737,0N 351,6!10 
2011 Slate Re\nlvlna Fuod ulltll - Subslarioo I 02128/)2 2.6% 2,321,332 109,879 95,779 2,llS,432 96,606 
1011 Slate Re,olvina Fuod Loan- Bo)c:e Rd. ltJ\ Stalt\111 03131133 2.M~ 2,923.618 1,911>,244 4,839,862 
C.cxnpc:nsatcd •becncec rl• nl• us,sa1 987744 911044 91S128l 915 281 

$ 40,468,870 S SJ12J72 $ 4)17,630 s 41,$63,612 s 416s?1S72 

A. 1994 State Revolving Fund Loan- Plant Upgrade 

During 1994, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board 
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. As of June 20, 1997, $30,000,000, the maximum 
loan amount, had been drawn. The interest rate on the loan is 2.7 percent and is payable in twenty annual 
installments, beginning one year after the initial loan disbursement. '11le purpose of this loan was to finance the 
Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant Upgrade project. 

B. 2001 State Revolving Fund Loan - Irvington 

During 2003, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California SLate Water Resources Control Board 
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. As of March 26, 2004, $14,301,057, the maximum 
loan amount, had been drawn. The interest rate on the loan is 2.4 percent and is payable in twenty annual 
installments, beginning on year after initial loan disbursement The purpose of this loan was to frnnnce the 
Irvinglon Equalization Storage Facilities project. 
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UNION SANlT ARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMEro'S 
JUNE 30, 1013 AND 2012 

NOTE##$ -LONG-TE.RM OBUGATJONS- CONTINl!ED 

C. 1008 Stllte R~lving FuNI LtJ11n - Willow 

During 2008, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board 
in accordJnce with the State Revolving Fund Loan, ~ptn. The interest rate on the loan ia 1.4 percent and is 
payable in twenty annual installments, beginning one year after Initial loan dabunc:mcnt. The purpose of thi! 
loan was to financo the Willow/Central Avenue sanitary sewer rehabilitation project. The muimum amount of 
this agreement ia $1,749,329 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30, 2013, $1 ,710,471 has 
becm advanced under this agreement. 

D. 2008 $t4U Rno1Wit8 Fund Lo11n -Newark Pu111p StlltiDrt 

During 2008, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board 
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Pro,vam. The interest rate on the Joan is 2.7 percent and is 
payable in twenty annual installments, beginning in 2011. The purpose of this loan was to finance the Newark 
Pwnp Station project. The maximum amaw~.t of this agreement is $10,283,321 based upon projected costs«> be 
incutTCd. Aa of June 30, 2013, $10,283,322, the maximum loan amount, has been advanced under this 
agrcemc:nt. 

B. 2008 Stilt• Rnolvlng Fund Lo1111 - Hetch Betchy 

During 2008, the District entered into a Joan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board 
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.7 percent and will 
be payable in twenty aMual installments beginning one year after initial loan disbursements. The purpose of this 
Joan is to finance the lower Hetch Hetchy sewer rehabilitation projecl The maximum a[Jlounl of this agreement 
is $2,212,432 based upon projected costa to be incurred. As of June 30, 2013, $2,113,379 bas been advanced 
under this agreement. 

F. 1009 Stilt~ Revt~IYillg Furtd Lo11n - Cedar Boulevard 

During 2009, the District entered into a Joan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board 
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Progrwn. The interest rate on the loan is 2.5 percent and will 
be payable in twenty llD.Dual installments begmning one year after the initial loan disbursements. The pwpose of 
this Joan is to fmance the Cedar Boulevard Sanitary Sewer Rehabilitation Project. The maximum amount of this 
agreement is $2,052,841 based upon projected costs to be incurred. N. of June 30, 2013, $1,998,384 has been 
advanced under this agreemenL 

G. 2011 State Bevt~lvfllg Fund Loan - Prltnlli'JI Clarifier 

During 2011, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board 
in acc:ordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2. 7 percent and will 
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initial loan disbursements. The purpose of 
this loan is to finance the rehabilitation of primary clarifiers (Nos. l through 4) al !he Alvarado Wastc:water 
Treatment Plant. Tile maximum amount of this agreement is $8,821,860 based upon projected costs to be 
inc:UJTCd. As of June 30, 2013, $8,821,860 has been advanced under lhjs agreement. 
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UMON SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FlNANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30,2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #5- LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS - CONTINUED 

H. 2011 State Rnolving Fund Loan - SllbJtation 1 

During 20J I, the District entered into a loan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board 
in accordance with the State Revolv1ng Fund Loan Program. The mterest rate on the loan is 2.6 percent and will 
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initia11oan disbursements. The purpose of 
this loan is to finance the replacement of Substation 1 to en&Ul'l: its continual opei'lltion. The maximum amount of 
this agreement is $2,676,485 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30, 2013, $2,412,908 has 
been advanced under this agreement. 

I. 2011 State Revolving Fund Lorm - Boyce Rd. Lift Station 

During 20 I 1, the District entered into a Joan agreement with the California State Water Resources Control Board 
in accordance with the State Revolving Fund Loan Program. The interest rate on the loan is 2.6 percent and will 
be payable in twenty annual installments beginning one year after the initial loan disbursements. The purpose of 
this loan is to fmance the replacement of Boyce Road Lift Station to ensure its continual operation The 
maximum amount of this agreement is $6, 196,671 based upon projected costs to be incurred. As of June 30, 
2013, S4,839,862 has been advanced under this agreement 

J. ~bt Servict! Req11irt!111t!nts 

Future annual repayment requirements as of June 30, 2013 arc as follows: 
Year Ended June 30 Princi2!1 Interest Total 

2014 $ 3,742,291 $ 814,710 $ 4,557,001 
2015 2,068,965 860,220 2.929,185 
2016 2,121 ,980 816,084 2,938,064 
2017 2,176,358 770,800 2,947,158 
2018 2,232,134 724,341 2,956,475 

2019-2023 12,173,656 2,913,894 15,087,550 
2024-2028 9,926,186 1,585,314 11,511,500 
2029-2033 6,037,707 469,790 6,507,497 

2034 169,055 8,181 1771236 
Totals S 40,6481331 s 8,9631334 $ 49,61 1,665 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND lOll 

NOTE #6- PENSJON PLAN 

Substantially all District employees are eligible to participate in a pension plan offered by California Public 
Employees Retirement System (CALPERS) to the DJBtricl, an agent multiple employer defined benefit pension 
plan which acta 11a a common investment and administrative agent for its participating member employers. 
CALPERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjusbnenta and death benefits to 
plan members, who m\Lit be public employees sud beneficiaries, Tho benefit provisions and all other 
requirements have been established and may be amended by State statute and District resolution. Benefits are 
based ~years of cmiited scrv}ce, Cf:!Wll tQ one year of full time employment. Funding contributions for the Plan 
are determined annually based on an actuarial s.tudy as of JWJe 30 by CAL"PERS. The Plan' s provisions and 
benefit~ in effect at Iun~ 30,2013 arc IIU,UlJDI{rized as followJS. 

Benefit vesting scbodulc 
Benef\t pay~nt 
Minimum retiremant age 
Benefit factO!' per year of service 
Required employee contribution rate 
Rt:~quired employer contrlbutiQn rate 

S years service 
Monthly for life 

so 
2.0 - 2.S% 

8% 
16.604% 

CALPER.S determines contribution requirements using a modification of the Entry Age Actuarial Cost Method. 
Under this method, the District's total nonnal benefit cost for each employee for date of hire to date of retirement 
is expressed as a level percentage of the related total payroll cost. Normal benefit cost under this method is the 
level amount the Dis~9t must pay annually to fu{ld and employee's projected ~tirement benefit. Projections of 
benefits for financial reporting putpOses are based on the substantive plan (the plan as understood by the 
employer and plan members) 8lld include the types of benefrts provided at the time of each valuation and the 
historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer and plan members to that point. The 
projection of benefits does nQt explicitly incorporate the potential effects of legal or contractual funding 
limitations. nus level percentage of payroll method Is used to amortize any unfunded actuarial liabilities. The 
actuarial assumptions used to compute contribution requirements are also uaed to compl.lte the actuarial accrued 
liability. The District uses the actuarially determined percentages of payroll to oaJculate and pay contribution to 
CALPERS. This results in no net pension obligations or unpaid contnlmtions. Annual pension costs, 
representing the payment of employer contnbutions required by CALPERS, for the years ended June 30, 2013 
and 2012 were $2.248,207 and $2,053,047 respectively. In addition. the District was obligated to pay six percent 
of the employee's eight percent contribution as per collective bargaining agreements from July 1, 2012 through 
June 5,2013. Effective June 6, 2013, employees hired before January 1, 2013 will pay additional contribution of 
J .5 percent for pension; employees hired after January 1, 2013 wiU be subject to a new fonnula and contributions 
as provided .in recent legtslation. That obligation is not reflected within the actuarial accrued liability disclosed 
in the required supplementary information section. The annual pension costs, including both the employer and 
employee portion paid by the District, for the years ended June 30, 2013 and 2012 were $3,069,290 and 
~2,869,537, respectively. 
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Fiscal Year 
Ending 

6/3o72on 
6/30/2012 
6/30/201 1 

Annual Pension 
Cost (APC1 

s 3:<>69. 9o 
2,869,537 
2,268,175 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #6- PENSION PLAN· CONTINUED 

CALPERS uses the Entry Age Normal Cost Method to value Plan obligations and the market related value 
method of valuing the Plan' s assets. An investment rate of retum of 7.5 percent is assumed, including inflation at 
2. 75 percent. Annual salary increases are assumed to vary by duration of service. Changes in liability due to 
plan amendments, changes in actuarjol assumptions, or changes in actuarial methods are amortized as a level 
percentage of payroll on a closed basis over twenty years. Investment gains and losses are tracked and amortized 
over 30 years. Salaries are projected to increase from 3.20 percent to 14.20 percent depending on age, service, 
and type of employment. 

Funded Stat11s; The schedule of funded status of the plan as of June 30,2011 was as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 
Actuarial value of plan assets 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 

Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/ AAL) 
Covered payroll (active plan members) 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 

s 94,015,409 
77,586,175 

$ 16,429,234 

82.5% 
$ 12,767,707 

128.7% 

Audited annual financial statements are available from CALPERS at P.O. Box 942709, Sacramento, CA 94229· 
2709. 

NOTE #7- OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS 

A. Postemployment Healthcare Plan (OPEB) 

Plan Description. The District's defined benefit postemployment healtJ1care plan provides medical benefits to 
employees who satisfy the requirements for retirement under CaiPERS (attained age 50 with five years of service 
or satisfaction of the requirements for a disability retirement) The amount of the retiree's medical benefit is 
dependent upon both years of service with the District and the year the employee retires. 

The District contracts with CalPERS to administer its retiree health benefit plan (an agent multiple.employer 
plan) and to provide an investment vehicle, the California Employers' Retiree Benefit Trust Fund, to prefund 
future OPBB costs. A menu of benefit provisions as well as other requirements is established by State statute 
within the Public Employees' Retirement Law. The District chooses among the menu of benefit provisions and 
adopts certain benefit provisions by Board resolution. CaiPERS issues a separate Comprehensive Annual 
Financial Report. Copies of the CaiPERS annual financial report may be obtained from the CaiPERS Executive 
Office at 400 P Street, Sacramento, CA, 958 I 4. 

Fu11di11g Policy. TI1e District' s annual required contribution of the employer (ARC) is an amount actuarially 
determined in accordance with the parameters of GASB Statement No. 45. The ARC represents a level of 
funding rhat, if paid on an ongoing basis, is projected to cover nonnal annual costs each year and amortize any 
unfunded actuarial liabilities (or funding excess) over a period not to exceed 30 years on a closed basis. The 
current ARC rate is 3.6o/o of the annual covered payroll, based on the most recent actuarial report dated July I, 
2011. The plan members receiving benefits currently do nol malce contributions. 
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UNION SANITARY DISI'RICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #7 • OniER RETJRBMBNT BENEFITS- CON'11NUEJJ 

.Anr111al OPEB Cost and Nr:l OPEB Obligation. The foJlowing table shows the components of the District's 
annual OPED cost for the year, the amount actually contributed to tho plan, and cbaqges iD the District's net 
OPEB obligation. 

Annual Required Contribution (ARC) 
Interest on net OPHB obliption (asset) 

A<ijustmCill.l to ARC 
Annual OPEB cost 
Contn1nrtions made 
Change in net OPE.B obligation (aaset) 

OPEB obligation (a•sct) ·beginning of year 
OPEB obligation (asset)- end of year 

$ 

$ 

448.284 
(96,226) 
86,072 

43'8,130 
448.284 
(10,154) 

{1 ,425,564) 
(1,43~,718) 

Tre11d Information. The District's annual OPBB cost, the percentage of the anaual OPEB cost contributed to the 
plan. and the net OPEB obligation (asset) is a& follows: 

Fiscal Year AnnuaiOPEB Actual Employer Percentage NetOPEB 
Boding Cost Contributions Contributed ObliJ!tion (AsseQ 

6/30/2013 s 438,130 s 448,284 102% $ ( 1 ,435. 718) 
6/30/2012 346,615 363,108 105% ( 1 ,425,564) 
6/3012011 333,663 351,679 105% {1,409,071) 

Pu11ded Status. The schedule of funded status of the plan as of July I, 20 II wu as follows: 

Actuarial accrued liability (AAL) 
Actuarial value of plan asSGts 
Unfunded actuarial accrued liability (UAAL) 
Funded ratio (actuarial value of plan assets/ AAL) 
Covered payroll {a<:th,: plan membenl) 
UAAL as a percentage of covered payroll 

$ 6,557,l47 
2,849,3 11 

$ 3,707,836 
43.5% 

$ 12,094,561 
30.7% 

Actuarial valuations of an ongoing plan involve estimates of the value of reported amounts and assumptions 
about the probability of occlllTeflce of events far into the future. Examples include assumptions about future 
employment, mortality, and the health care cost trend. Amounts determined regarding the funded status of tbe 
plan and the annual required contributions of the employer arc subject to continual revision as actual resuhs are 
compared with past expectations and new estimates arc made about the future. The schedule of funding progre111, 
pfCsented as required supplementary information presents multiyear trend in(onnation that shows whether the 
actuarial value of plan assets is increasing or decreasing over time relative to the actuarial accrued liabilities for 
benefits. 

Actuarial Metltorb and Assumptions. Projections of benefits for fwancial reporting purposes are based on the 
substantive plan (the plan as understood by the employer and plan membe~) and include the types of benefits 
provided at the time of each valuation and the historical pattern of sharing of benefit costs between the employer 
and plan members to that point. The actuarial methods and assumptions used include techniques that arc 
designed to reduce short-term volatility in actuarial accrued liabilities and tbe actuarial value of assets, consistent 
with the long-term perspective of the calculations. 
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UNION SANITARY DiSTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
JUNE 30, 20 l3 AND 2012 

NOTE #7- OTHER RETIREMENT BENEFITS - CONTINUED 

The following is a summary of the actuarial asswnptlons and methods: 
Valuation date 
Actuarial cost method 
Amortization method 
Amortization period 
Asset valuation method 
Actuarial Assumptions: 

Investment rate of return (funded) 
Salary increase 
Healthcare cost trend rate 
Inflation Rate 

B. 401(11) Pla11s 

July t, 2011 
Entry age, Normal cost 

Level percentage of payroll 
30 years 

Market value of assets 

6.75% 
3.25% 

9.0% initial; 4.5% ultimate 
3.25% 

The District sponsors three internal Revenue Code Section 40l(a) money purchase retirement plans for 
unclassified employees through the ICMA Retirement Corporation. The plans were established and can be 
amended by Board resolution and, for certain tenns, by participant agreement. Eligibility for participation iu a 
particular plan is dependent on job classification. Within each plan, participating employees contribute the same 
dollar amount, and the District makes match.ing contributions on their behalf. The Dist.rict and the participants 
both contributed a total of $34,185 and $36,690 to the plans for the years ended June 30, 2013, and 2012, 
respectively. 

C. Defured Co,•peiJSidion Plan 

District employees may defer a portion of their compensation under a District sponsored deferred compensation 
plan created in accordance with Internal Revenue Code Section 457. Under this plan, participants are not taxed 
on the deferred portion of their compensation until distribution. Distributions may be made only at tennination, 
retirement, death, or, in an emergency, as defined by the plan. 

The Jaws governing deferred compensation plan assets require plan assets to be held by a trust for the exclusive 
benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. Since the assets held under these plans are not the District 
assets and are not subject to District control, they have been excluded from these general purpose financial 
statements. 

NOTE #8- RISK MANAGEMENT 

The District is a member of the C alifornia Sanitation Risk Management Authority (CSRMA). CSRMA covers 
general liability and workers ' compensation claims. In addition, commercial insurance is purchased for excess 
liability. property, and employee dishonesty coverage. The District has a $500,000 deductible for general 
liability coverage, and no deductible for workers' compensation coverage. 

Claims and judgments, including a provision for claims incurred but not reported, are recorded when a loss is 
deemed probable of assertion and the amount of the loss is reasonably determinable. As discussed above, the 
District has coverage for such claims, but it has retained the risk for the deductible or uninsured portion of these 
claims. 

The District's liability for uninsured claims is limited to general liability claims, as discussed above. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENfS 
JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

NOTE #9- COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENT LIABIUTJES 

The District is contingently liable in connection with claims and contracts arising in the normal course of its 
activities. District management is of the opinion that the ultimate outcome of such matters will not have a 
significant effect on the financial position of the District. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICf 

REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,2013 

Schedule ofF~ding Progress for Pension Plan 

Actuarial Actuarial Accrued 
Valuation Date Actuarial Value Liability (AAL) • UnfUnded Funded 

JIIIIC 301 of Asset& En!!:}: Aac AALiUAAL} Ratio 
2011 $ n,586,175 s 94,015;409 s 16,429,234 82.5% 
2010 73.970,831 88,741,572 14,710,741 83.4% 
2009 70,490,768 83,55&,837 13,068,069 84.4% 

Covered 
Pa~ll 

s 12,767,700 
12,301 ,216 
12,177,190 

Schedule of Funding Progress for Retiree Health Benelit Plan 

Actuarial 
Valuadna Acmarial Value Actuarial Accrued Unfuoded AAL Co~ 
~te of Aa ets Llabili!l: ~AAL) ~UAALl Funded Rallo Pam! II 

July I, 2011 $ 2,849,311 $ 6,557, 147 s 3,707,836 43% $ 12,094,561 
July 1, 2010 2,202,422 5,120,503 2,918,081 43% Jl,590,15S 
July I , 2008 5,201 ,583 5,201,583 0% 12,429,787 
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UAAL Bll a 
Percentaac of 

Covered Pa,l!oll 
128.7% 
120.1% 
107.3% 

UAAl as a 
Pcrcc:ntage of 
Co~Pa~ll 

30.7% 
25.2% 
41.8% 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULES OF COMPONENTS OF NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 1012 

2013 2012 
NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS 

Net capi\81 B88ets s 335,041,723 $ 336,569,446 

Less long term debt: 
State revolving fund {40,648,331) (39,630,289) 

Net inveat.ment in capital assets 294,393,392 296,939,157 

RESTRJCTED 
Expendable: 

Capacity pwpo!~<'S 16,093,405 $ 15,123,448 
Nooexpendable: 

State revolving fund Joan contingency requirement 4,204,415 4,222,930 

Total restricted net assets $ 20,297,820 $ 19,346,378 

UNRESTRICTED 
Renewal and replacement: 

Structural $ 8,079,734 $ 10,704,257 
Vehicle and equipment 1,150,234 1,173,450 
Information system 1,368,371 1,269,037 
Plant and pump station 158,524 110,992 
Non-capltal project expense (NECB) 310,580 306,956 

Investment in Eaat Bay Dischargers Authority 6,472,447 6,561,617 
Risk management 1,500,000 1,500,000 
Cash flow 15,139.823 14,595,065 
Emergency 2,000,000 1,250,000 
Pretreatment 112,797 110,339 

Total unrestricted $ 36,292,510 $ 37,581,713 

NET POSITION $ 350,983,722 $ 3531867,248 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULES OF COMPONENTS OF NET POSITION 
FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 

Note A -Restricted Components of Net Posldon 

The amounts have legal restrictions as to their uses. Those amounts restricted for capacity purposes can be used 
only for acquisition of capacity related capital assets. Those amounts restricted as bond reserve can be used only 
for debt service. 

Note B - Unrestricted Comptments of Net Position 

These amounts have been destgnated by Board resolution for various purposes including renewal and 
replacement and a reserve for economic uncertainty. 
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""'0 UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
DJ 

(Q 
CD SCHEDULES OF OPERATING EXPENSES BEFORE DEPRECIATION 
-..j 
-..j FOR THE YEARS ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 AND 2012 
0 -~ 2013 2012 m 
~ Sew111e Sewage 

Sewage Collection & General & Sew~~~e Conectioo& Gcncnlcl 
Treatment &ginceritlg Administntive Total Treatmllot &gjneerins Administrative Tolal 

Salaries and wages $ 4,800,376 s 6,282,578 s 2,98-1 ,252 s 14,064,206 s 4,517,109 s .5.862,1-54 $ 2.945.~1 s 13,324,704 
Employee benefits 1.918,094 2,645,861 1,574,478 6,138,433 1.707,279 2,382.945 1,439,396 5,529,620 
Recruitment and development 89,445 98,160 196,330 383,935 79,764 84,9S7 212.550 377,271 
Temporary help . 10.476 31.253 41,729 - 15,170 - 15,170 
Repairs and maintenance 1,482,668 509,882 11,213 2,003,763 1,.570,105 546,929 12.459 2.129,493 
Openltmg supplies 1.674,605 232.206 . 1.906,811 1,626,589 215,601 - 1,842,190 
Office and safety supplies 144,142 179,200 245.880 569,222 140.006 152.172 216,153 508,331 
Insurance . - 222,425 222,425 . . 176,275 176,275 
Contractual services 700,986 47.514 10,569 759,069 673,834 40,278 10,334 724,446 
Professional ~ces 168,316 35,027 534.404 737,747 181,917 51,187 471,113 704.217 
Utililles 2.190,981 53,095 63,02.3 2,307,099 2,355,404 49,554 58,129 2.463,087 
East Bay Di9Chargers A~tthon.ty -

operatiue char&cs 1,060.693 . - 1,060.693 1.,100,381 - - 1.100,381 
Non-<:apital projects 1,805,985 1,805,985 200,084 3,812,054 248.476 254,805 369,S13 872,854 
Sewer ServJce charge 
administrative fee 35.084 35,084 35,084 105.252 ~83 34,983 34,982 104,948 

Rents~J...eaae<; 17,554 19,277 5,413 42.304 191419 21,910 51413 46,742 

Total s 16,088,929 s 11,954,.345 $ 6,111.468 $ 34,154,742 $ 14,255,266 $ 9,712,645 s 5,951,818 $29,919,729 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF INSURANCE COVERAGE 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

The District's insurance policies and coverages in effect at June 30, 2013 are as follows: 

General liability {pooled liability program) 
Bodily injury, property damage, and personal injury 
Public entity errors and omissions and o1J1er related practices 
Employment related practices 

Auto physical damage {primary insurance program) 
Workers' Compensation 
Group Health and Life 
Employee Disability and Salary Continuance 

Property insurance, all property 
Accounts receivable 

Employee Dishonesty Bond Coverages: 
Public Employee Dishonesty Bond 
Forgery and alteration 
Computer Fraud 
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$ 25,500,000 
$ 25,500,000 
$ 25,500,000 

lnsured Value 
$ 3,290,105 
$ 1,750,000 

Contract 
Contract 

$ 250,928,297 
No sublimit 

$ 1,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 
$ 1,000,000 
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VAVRINEK,TRnNE,DAY 
&: COMPANY, LLP 

C.rtifinl PMblk AaolmtiUIU 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL 
OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATI'ERS 

BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS 

To the Botrd of Directors 
Uniou Sanital}' District 
Union City, Califomla 

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America 
and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government .Allditlng Standards issued by the 
Comptroller General of the UnitC'd States, the basic financial statements of the Union Sanitary District (the 
District) as of and for the year ended June 30, 2013, and the related notes to the .Jmancial statemeniB, and ha\ e 
issued our report thereon dated October 23, 2013. Our report includes a reference to other auditors who audited 
the financiQl statements of the East Bay Dischargers Authority, as described in our report on the District's 
fmancial statements. This report does not include the results of the other auditors' testing of internal control over 
financial reporting or compliance and other matters that are reported on separately by those auditors. 

Internal Coatrol Over FJnandal Reoordpg 

In planning and performing our audit of the financial Slatements, we considered the District's internal control 
over financial reporting (internal control) to detennine the &lidiL procedures tbat arc appropriate in the 
circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of 
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's internal corurol. Accordingly, we do not express an 
opioion on the effectiveness of the Districts' internal control 

A defidenc:y in inlt!P11UI control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management or 
employees, in the nonnal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and correct, 
misstatements on a timely basis. A material wea.t,ess is a deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal 
control, such that there is a reasonable possibility that a material misstatement of the entity' s financial statements 
wiiJ not be prevented. or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A Nigniflcanl deficiency is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material woalmess, yet important enough 
to merit attention by those charged with governance. 

Our consideration of internal control was for the limtted purpose described in the first paragraph of this section 
and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be material weaknesses or, 
significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did nol identify any deficiencies in internal 
control that we consider to be material weaknesses. However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been 
identified. 
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Com pllance and Other MaHcrs 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Distnct' s financial statements are free from material 
misstatement, we perfonned tests of its compliance with certai.n provtstons of Jaws, regulations, contracts, and 
grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a diJect and material effect on the detennination of 
financtal statement amounts. However, provtding an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an 
objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opmion The results of our tests dtsclosed no 
mstances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Govemment Auditing 
Standnrd.f 

Purpose of thhJ Report 

The purpose of this report is soldy to des~o:ribe the SCQpe of our testing of mternal control and compliance and the 
results of that testing. ond not to pro" ide an opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control or on 
compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit perfonned in accordance with Got•erllment Auditing 
Sumda1·dJ in considering the entity' s internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not 
stlitablc for any other purpose. , 
v;.vr,,1 .. t, t/,-. .,., PLr; c./ L.U· 

Pleasanton, California 
October 23, 2013 
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VAVR~K.~E,DAY 

& COMPANY, llP 
C•rtlfirti Pub/it kc•u1U.nu 

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
FOR EACH MAJOR PROGRAM 

AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE IN 
ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CmCULAR A-133 

To tho Board of Directors 
Union Sanitary District 
Union City, California 

Report on CompUance for Each Maior Feclera! Program 

We have audited Union Sanitary District's (the Dlstriot) compliance with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the OMB Circular A-133 Compilunc~t Suppkment that could h11ve a dU'ect and material effect on each 
of the District 's major federal programs for the year ended June 30, 2013. The District's major federal programs 
are identif~ed in the swnrnary of auditor's results se.ction of the accompanying schedule of findings and 
questioned costs. 

Mapuemeat't RetDODIIbWty 

Management is responsible for compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contraciS, and grants 
applicable to ita federal programs. 

Auditor's Responsibility 

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on compliance for each of the District's major federal programs based 
on our audit of the types of compUaDce requirements referred to above. We conductod our audit of compliance in 
accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in rhe United States of America; the standards applicable 
to financial audits contained in Govemment Aruliting Staudard.r, issued by the Comptroller General of the Untied 
States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stoles, Local Goven/lneuts, aJJd Non-Profit Organizations fhose 
standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan aud perform the audit to obtain reasonable assW'llnce 
about whether noncompliance with the types of compli11Dce requirements referred to above that could have a 
dill!Ct and material effect on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, 
evidence about the District' s compUance with d1ose requirements and performing such other procedures as we 
considered necessary in the circumstances. 

We believe that our audlt provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major tederal 
proKfSm. However, our audit does not provide a legal detenninatlon of the District's compliance. 

Opinion oo Each Ma!or Federal Program 

In our opinion, the District complied, in all material respec;ts, with the compliance requirements referred to above 
that could have a direct and material effect on each of its major federal progrnms for the year ended June 30, 
2013. 
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Reoort oo lpternal Cogtrol Onr CompUance 

Management of tho District ts responsible for establishing and maintanung effective internal control over 
compliance with the types of comphance requirements teferred to above. In phuming and perfonning our audit, 
we considered the Districr s internal control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and 
material effect on a major federal program to determine the nuditmg procedures that are appropriate in the 
ctrcumstanocs for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance for each major federal program and to test 
and report on mternal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133, but not for the purpose 
of expressing an opinion on the etfecttveoess of inten1al control over compliance. Accordingly, we do not 
express an opinion on the effectiveness of the District's entemal control ovet compliance. 

A deficlcucy In Internal control over compliance exists when the design or opera bon of a control over compliance 
does not allow management or employees, in the nonnal course of perfonning their assigned functions, to 
prevent, or detect and correct, noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a 
timely basis. A material weakness in iulernal c:ontrol over cumpliunce is a deficiency, or combination of 
deficiencies, in internal control over compliance, such that there is a reasonable possibility that material 
noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program will not bt: prevented, or detected and 
corrected. on a timely basis A significant deficiency ;, internal coutrol Ol¥.'r compliance is a deficiency, or a 
combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance with a type of compliance requirement of a 
federal program that is less severe than a material weakness In internal control over compliance, yet important 
enough to merit attention by those charged wirh governance. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limtted purpose descnbed in the first paragraph 
of this secuon and was not designed to identifY all deficiencies in internal control over compliance that migbt be 
material weaknesses or stgnificant de6cJency. We did not idenUfY any defictencies in internal control over 
compliance that we consider to be material weakuesses, as defined above. Howc:vtrr, material weaknesses may 
exisr that have not been identified. 

Reoort on Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards ReguJrel() by OMB Circular A-133 

We have audited the baste financial statements, including the releted notes to the financial statements, or tho 
Union Sanitary District, as of and for the year ended June 30,2013. We issued our report thereon dated October 
23, 2013, which contamed unqu<~lified opinions on those financial statements. Our audit was conducted for tho 
purpose or fonning opinions on the financial statements that collectively comprise the District's basic financial 
statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards is presented for purposes of additional 
analysis as required by U S. Orfice of Munagement and Budget Circular A-133, and is not a required part of the 
basic financial statements. Such infonnation is the responsibility of management and was derived from and 
relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements. The 
mfonnation has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the ba..c;ic financial statements 
and certain addrtional procedures, including comparing and reconciling such infonnation directly to the 
underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the financial statements or to the financial statements 
themselves, and other addtttonal procedures in accordance with audjting standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America. In our opinion, the mfom1ation is fairly stated in all rmterial n:spt:ets in relation to the 
basic financial statements as a whole. 

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance is solely to describe the scope of our testing of 
Internal control over compltance and the results ofthat testmg based on the requirements ofOMB Circular A-I 33. 
Accordingly, tins report is not suitable for any other purpose. , 
~.,.,.," .. t ~r ... c P~T ~ C. L,l.-f?. 

I f ~ I 
Pleasanton. California 
October 23. 2013 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL A WARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

Federal 
Catalog Federal 

Federal Grantor I Pass-tluougb Grantor I Program Title Grant Identifying Number Number ?penditures 

Envfro•menlal Protmtoa A.aeuq 

Passed through State Water Resources Control Board 

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State Revolving Funds 111 C-06-5222·110 66.458 s 783,381 

C-06-5221-110 66AS8 109,879 

C-06-5219-1 10 66.4S8 1,380,280 

Total Expenditures of Federal Awards s 2,273,540 

(1) Tested as a major program. 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

NOTES TO SCHEDULE OF EXPENDITURES OF FEDERAL AWARDS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

NOTE #I - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POUCJES 

A. General 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards presents the activity of all federal awards 
programs of the Union Sanitary District (District) The District's reporting entity is deflned in Note # 1 of the 
District's basic financial statements. All fedeml awards received directly from fedeml agencies, as well as 
federal awards passed through other governmental agencies to the District are included in the accompanying 
schedule. 

B. Basis of Accounting 

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented using the accrual basis of 
accounting, which is described in Note# I of the District's basic financial statements. 

C. Relationship to Basic Financial Statement:; 

The loan associated with federal award funds is reported wtthin the District's basic financial statements under 
the financial statement caption current portion of Jong-tem1 debt and long-tem1 debt, net of current portion. 

0 _ Relationship to Fedeml Financial Reoorts 

Amounts reported in the accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards agree with the amounts 
reported in the related federal financial reports. However, certain federal fUUlncial reports arc filed based on 
cash expenditures. As such, certain timing differences may exist in the recognition of reve.nucs and 
expenditures between the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards and the federal financial reports. 

E. Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance CCFDAl Nwnbers 

The CFDA numbers included in this report were detennined based on the program name, review of grant 
contract infonnation, and the Office of Management and Budget's Catalog of Federal Domestic Assistance. 

F. Pass-Ihrough Entities' ldentjfylng Number 

When federal awards were received from fl pass-through entity, the Schedule of Expenditures of Pederal 
wards shows, 1favailable, the idenlifymg number ass1gued by the pass-through entity. 

6 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30, 2013 

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
Type of auditor's report isaued: 
Internal control over financial reporting: 

M~J~rial weaknes&es identified? 
Significant deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? 

FEDERAL AWARDS 
Internal control over major programs: 

Material weaknesses identified? 
Signiftccmt deficiencies identified not considered to be material weaknesses? 

Type of auditor's report issued on compliance for major programs: 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reported in accordance with Circular 
A-133, Section 510(a) 

Identification of major programs: 

CFDANumber 

66.458 

Name of Federal Program or Cluster 

Capitalization Grants for Clean Water State 
Revolving funds 

Dollar tbresbold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs: 
Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 

7 
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Unqualified 

No 
No 
No 

No 
None Reported 

Unqualified 

No 

$300,000 
No 



UNION SANITARY DISTRICT ~" \ J_ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QV~~ED COSTS (CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30~ 

II. FINANCIAL STATEMENT FINDINGS 

None. 

8 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRICT ~? ( ;_ 

SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND Ql.LESX{ONED COSTS {CONTINUED) 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED JUNE 30,~ 

U. FEDERAL AWARD FINDJNGS AND QUESTIONED COSTS 

None. 

9 
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UNION SANITARY DISTRJCT 

SUMMARY SCHEDULE O F PRIOR YEAR FINDING 
FOR THE YEAR ENDED J UNE 30, 2013 

FINANCiAL STATEMENT FINDING - SIGNIFICANT DE FICIENCY 

2012-J INVESTMENT PURCIJASES 

Condition: 
As of June 30, 2012, the District held in 1ts investment portfolio a security issued by International Bank for 
Reconstruction and Development (lBRD) with a market value of $2,001,180 maturing on March 5, 2014. 

Criteri•: 
The State of California Government Code, Section 5360 I, lists the authorized mvestments for local government 
agencies. With respect to agency securities, Section 53601 (f) allows investments in Federal agency or United 
States government-sponsored enterprise obligations, participations, or other instruments, including those 1ssued 
by or fully guaranteed as to principal and interest by federal agencies or United States government-sponsored 
enterprises. IBRD Is a supranaflonal organization whose membership transcends national boundaries and is part 
of the World Bank Group. IBRD is not a federal agency or a United States government-sponsored enterprise. 

Cau1e of Condltlon: 
Internal controls in place at the District failed to prevent a purchase of a security that is not in compliance with the 
State of California Government Code Section 53601 and the District's Investment Policy. 

Effect of Condition: 
The DiRtrict is not in compliance with its Investment Policy and California Government Code Section 5360 I. 

Recommendation: 
We recommend the District implement procedures and enhance current controls in place to ensure all investment 
purchases arc in compliance with the District's Investment Policy and California Govemment Code Section 
53601. 

Current Status: 
Based on the audit procedures perfom1ed for the June 30, 2013 resulting in no instances of non compliance as it 
relates to California Government Code, Section 5360 I. This finding does not warrant further action. 

10 
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Directors 
Manny Fernandez 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
 
Officers 
Richard B. Currie 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

 
   

 
DATE: November 19, 2013 
 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 10 - Meeting of November 25, 2013 
 BOARD MEMBER COMPENSATION FOR 2014  
   
 
Recommendation 
 
The Budget & Finance Committee will present their recommendation to the 
Board. 
 
Background 
 
In 2000, the Board adopted Ordinance #44 (attached) stating that on January 1 
of each year, Board member compensation shall be increased by the amount of 
increase of the classified employees’ wages for the year.  The Ordinance also 
provides for the Board to review the compensation increase prior to it going into 
effect on January 1.  For the last ten years, Board members have voted not to 
increase their meeting stipend. 
 
The classified employee contract provided for an increase in 2013 of 3.5% to the 
base salaries. The Bay Area Consumer Price Index (CPI-W) increased by 1.9% 
from August 2012 to August 2013.  The numbers for October were not available 
as of November 19. 
 
 
Attachment  
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Directors 
Pat Gacoscos 
Tom Handley 
Pat Kite 
Anjali Lathi 
Jennifer Toy 
 
Officers 
Richard B. Currie 
General Manager/ 
District Engineer 
 
David M. O’Hara 
Attorney 

   

 
DATE: November 18, 2013 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services  
 Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
 Ric Pipkin, Senior Engineer 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 11 - Meeting of November 25, 2013 

Authorizing the General Manager to Execute Task Order No. 2 with the 
Covello Group for Providing Construction Management Services for the 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project 

 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order 
No. 2 with The Covello Group (Covello) in the amount of $1,095,490 for providing 
construction management services for the Thickener Control Building Improvements 
Project (Project). 
 
The Project is budgeted in the Capacity and Renewal and Replacement Funds and the 
District has applied for State Revolving Fund Financial Assistance in the amount of 
$12.2 million from the State Water Resources Control Board (SWRCB). 
 
Background 
 
On May 16, 2013 staff executed an Agreement and Task Order No. 1 in the amount of 
$22,912 with Covello to review the design of the Project for biddability and 
constructability issues.  Staff has reviewed Covello’s comments with the designer, 
Carollo Engineers, who are currently addressing the comments in the preparation of the 
final design package for bidding purposes.  
 
The bid opening for the Project is scheduled for January, 2014. Pending approval from 
the State Revolving Fund Financial Assistance Program and award by the Board, staff 
anticipates the issuance of the Notice to Proceed in March, 2014. 
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The scope of the Project is as described below: 
 

• Demolition of the existing Thickener Control Building. 
• Construction and demolition of temporary above grade pipelines to reroute flows 

around the Thickener Control Building. 
• Installation of six new VFD-driven progressing cavity sludge pumps with 

associated piping and instrumentation 
• Construction of a shelter/access platform to all thickeners, the flow splitter 

structure, and scum pits 
• Installation of new Thickened Primary Sludge yard piping from the Thickener 

Control Building to HMB Nos. 1, 2, and 3. 
• Replacement of obsolete primary scum pumps Nos. 1-4 at Sludge Pump Rooms 

1 and 3 
• Construction of a new electrical room, adjacent to the existing Paint Shop 

Building, and replacing and relocating power and PLC controls from the 
Thickener Control Building and Heating & Mixing Building (HMB) No. 3 to this 
new electrical room 

• Replacement and relocation of the electrical and instrumentation equipment from 
HMB Nos. 1 and 2 to the existing Gas Booster Room within HMB No. 1. The 
existing gas booster room will be converted for use as an electrical room. 

• Replacement of PLC 20 at HMB No. 4 
• Replacement of rectifiers and anode beds for existing cathodic protection 

systems at the Thickener Control Building 
 
Task Order No. 2 – Construction Management Services 
 
The Project will require the services of a construction management consultant that is 
knowledgeable about the Alvarado Wastewater Treatment Plant and its operating staff.  
This is needed due to the complex contract constraints and construction sequence that 
will allow construction to take place while the existing facilities remain in operation.  
Staff selected Covello for construction management services for the Project due to the 
operational complexity of constructing the project and because Staff has been pleased 
with their past work on the Primary Clarifier Rehabilitation Project, Substation No.1 
Replacement Project, Headworks Improvements Project, and the Cogeneration Project. 
By utilizing the same Covello construction management staff as other previous projects, 
staff believes this will provide the best team to oversee the construction of the Project 
due to the anticipated difficulties in the bypass of critical sludge systems and outages of 
the major processes and electrical systems. 
 
The scope of services for Task Order No. 2 will include the facilitation of a partnering 
workshop and a preconstruction conference, construction administration, facilitation of 
progress meetings with the contractor, processing of construction documents between 
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the contractor and the design consultant, field quality control, coordination of field 
testing and training, and project closeout inspection and paperwork.   
 
The State Revolving Fund Financial Assistance requires the District to take several 
steps to ensure compliance with the Davis Bacon wage requirements required for 
federally funded projects. These requirements include establishing the appropriate 
labor wages for the project prior to bidding the project and reviewing certified payroll 
reports from the contractors and interviewing contractor employees to verify 
compliance. Covello will provide the necessary expertise and manpower to support this 
compliance program and will coordinate it to minimize impact on the construction using 
a sub-consultant with expertise in administering this type of labor compliance program. 
Covello is utilizing RGM and Associates who have provided this service on previous 
District projects. 
 
Covello will be providing services to write the Lock-Out Tag-out (LOTO) Standard 
Operating Procedures (SOPs) for the affected existing and new equipment in the 
project. The District is required to have a written SOP on how to LOTO all of its 
equipment. Because the Covello staff will be highly familiar with the equipment during 
the construction, staff has decided to utilize Covello to meet this need. District staff will 
remain responsible for the final review and approval of the SOPs. 
 
The costs of Task Order No. 2 are as follows: 
 

Description Amount  
 

Covello Construction Management Costs $961,352 
Subconsultants: 

• Electrical Support 
• Materials Testing and Special Inspection 
• Labor Compliance Consultant 
• 5% Mark-up on Subconsultants 

 
$34,000 
$25,550 
$50,000 
$  5,478 

Subconsultant Total $115,028 
Other Direct Costs $ 19,110 

Project Firm Cost Ceiling $1,095,490 
 
 
Task Order No. 2 includes a firm ceiling on total costs of $1,095,490. This equates to 
11.1% of the estimated construction costs for the Project of $10 million.  The duration of 
the Project’s construction phase is 26 months. As a comparison, the final cost of 
construction management services for the Newark Pump Station Upgrade Project was 
$1,166,925.67, or 11.6% of the construction cost of $10,051,210.  The Newark Pump 
Station Upgrade Project was designed to be constructed over a 24-month period. USD 
staff have reviewed this price proposal and found it to be reasonable, considering the 
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required scope of work.  All work under this task order is expected to be completed by 
June 30, 2016. 
 
 
Total Costs for this Agreement are summarized in the table below: 
 

Description Total 
Task Order No. 1 Biddability and 
Constructability review of Clarifier Project $22,912 

Task Order no. 2 Construction 
Management Services  $1,095,490 

Total for this Agreement $1,118,402 
 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute Task Order 
No. 2 with The Covello Group in the amount of $1,095,490 for providing construction 
management services for the Thickener Control Building Improvements Project. 
 
 
RBC/RC/RP;mp 
 
Attachment: Task Order No. 2 
  Exhibit A Plant Map 
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TASK ORDER NO. 2 
TO 

AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
AND 

THE COVELLO GROUP, INC. 
FOR PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 

Dated May 16, 2013 

 

1. PURPOSE 

The purpose of this Task Order is to provide construction management services for 
Project Number 800-394, Thickener Control Building Improvements Project. 

 

2. PROJECT COORDINATION 

Ric Pipkin will be the Project Manager for the District 

 

3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 

The Scope of Services associated with this Task Order is described in Exhibit A. 

 

4. DELIVERABLES 

The Engineer shall provide the deliverables as defined in Exhibit A. 

 

5. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER 

Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the Agreement.  The cost 
ceiling shall be $1,095,490.  Engineer’s multiplier shall be a maximum of 2.96 for the 
rates and personnel proposed for the Project.  A summary of the anticipated 
distribution of cost and manpower is shown in Exhibit B. 

The following table summarizes all task orders and amendments executed and proposed 
under the Agreement: 
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Task Order / Amendment Not to Exceed 
Amount 

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 
(Yes/No) 

District Staff 
Approval 

Task Order No. 1 – 
Biddability and 
Constructability Review 

$22,912 No Jesse Gill 

Proposed Task Order No. 2 $1,095,490 Yes Richard Currie 
Total $1,118,402  

 

6. TIME OF COMPLETION 

The estimated schedule is in Exhibit A. and is subject to the conditions of Article 3 of the 
Agreement.  It is currently anticipated that work under this Task Order will be 
completed by June 30, 2016. 

 

7. KEY PERSONNEL 

Engineering personnel assigned to this Task Order are as follows: 

 Role Key Person to Be Assigned 
 Principal/Project Manager  Bruce Presser 
 Construction Manager  Mike Redig 
  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task Order No. 
1 as of November ______, 2013 and therewith incorporate it as part of the Agreement 
dated May 16, 2013. 

 

DISTRICT ENGINEER 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT THE COVELLO GROUP, INC. 

 

By:  By:  
 Richard B. Currie   Bruce Presser 
 General Manager   
     

Date:   Date:   
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APPENDIX A 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT  

THE COVELLO GROUP, INC. - SCOPE OF WORK  
 
 

I.      PARTNERING WORKSHOP: 
1. Covello will organize the agenda for the half-day (1/2) day workshop to be conducted the same 

day as the Preconstruction Conference.   
 

2. Prior to the workshop Covello will contact key members of each organization to discuss their 
specific project concerns and objectives. 

 
3. Covello will prepare and issue the agenda prior to the workshop.  Covello will facilitate the 

workshop in accordance with the agenda.  Covello will facilitate the workshop and all 
discussions as a group.   

 
4. After the workshop, Covello will prepare a Record of Discussion (ROD) containing 

information and any agreements developed at the workshop.  This will be distributed to each 
individual attendee within five (5) business days after the workshop. 

 
5. The District will provide the following for the workshop: 

a. The meeting room arranged so that individuals can sit comfortably at tables set up in a 
U-shape facing a projection screen. 

b. A projection screen and projector.   
 

6. Covello will provide the following for the workshop: 
a. Easels with flip charts, markers and masking tape. 

 
7.    One member of the District, Design Consultant, and Contractor will be asked to briefly present 

specific Project information prior to starting the Rocks-in-the-Road portion of the workshop.  
Any graphics or visuals are welcomed.  A set of plans and specifications at the workshop is 
also helpful.  This helps with dealing with the specific “rocks” and issues that are discussed 

 
II.    PRECONSTRUCTION PHASE: 

1. Preconstruction Conference:  Covello will prepare the agenda for the meeting, facilitate the 
meeting, address administrative and non-design issues, and prepare record of discussions of the 
meeting for distribution. 

 
2. Partnering Workshop:  Covello construction manager will attend the partnering workshop. 

 
3. Administration & Office set-up:  Covello will setup the files for the project prior to 

commencement of construction. 
 
III.  CONSTRUCTION PHASE 
 1. Construction Administration 

a. Project Coordination: Covello will act as the project coordinator and the point of contact for 
all communications with the Contractor.  Covello will coordinate the activities of the 
District, Design Consultant (DC) and Contractor. 

b. Document Tracking System: Covello will establish, implement and maintain a system for 
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tracking all correspondence and documents on the project. 
c. Construction Administration Services: Covello will provide administrative and management 

services.  Covello will receive all correspondence from the Contractor and will address all 
inquiries from the Contractor and all construction related correspondence.  The DC will be 
responsible for providing any design input.  

  
 2. Meetings 

a. Covello will prepare the agenda for the progress meetings and other construction meetings 
required during the project. 

b. Covello will facilitate and prepare the record of discussions for the progress meetings and 
other construction meetings. 

 
 3. State Revolving Fund (SRF) Loan Coordination 

a. Covello will retain RGM to implement the District’s Labor Compliance Program (LCP) to 
provide all reporting, documentation and oversight for this Project as required by the SRF 
and the LCP.   

b. Covello will assist in providing the District with any required documentation from the 
Contractor and Project to comply with the provisions of the SRF.   

 
 4. Submittals 

a. Covello will establish, implement and coordinate the submittal processing. 
b. Covello will receive the submittals from the Contractor and check the submittals for general 

conformity with the Contract requirements.  If obvious deficiencies are apparent in the 
submittal, Covello will send the submittal back to the Contractor for correction. 

c. Covello will route the submittal to the DC for review and will route the reviewed submittal 
back to the Contractor.  Covello will review comments on submittals to determine if 
additional follow-up with the contractor is warranted and to identify prospective scope 
changes. 

d. Covello will maintain a log and tracking system for submittals.  Covello will track the status 
of submittal review with the DC and the status of shop drawing resubmittals with the 
Contractor. 

e. The DC will review all design related submittals.  The DC will review all submittals for 
temporary facilities. 

 
 4. Clarification Processing 

a. Covello will establish, implement and coordinate the system for processing clarifications. 
b. Covello will receive all requests for information (RFIs) from the Contractor and determine if 

the request is a valid RFI; if not, Covello will return the RFI to the Contractor. 
c. Covello will provide a response to the Contractor for any administrative and general RFIs. 
d. Covello will route all other RFIs to the DC at their home office. 
e. The DC will review RFIs and provide design response. 
f. Covello will review the DC’s response, verify acceptability of response and transmit the 

Clarification Response to the Contractor.  If the response materially affects the design, it will 
be reviewed with the District and/or the DC, as necessary, to verify that it is required.  If it is 
required, Covello will issue a change request. 

g. Covello will maintain a system for logging and tracking RFIs.  Covello will track the status 
of RFI review with the DC. 

h. The DC will prepare Design Clarifications where design issues are identified by Covello, the 
DC, or the District.  Covello will prepare the Clarification Letter for transmittal to the 
Contractor of the DC’s Design Clarification and other clarifications. 

 
 5. Change Order Preparation, Negotiation & Processing 

a. The DC will prepare design details for change requests. 
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b. Covello will prepare and issue the change request to the Contractor with the appropriate 
design documents. 

c. Covello will prepare an independent cost estimate and/or verify the acceptability of the 
Contractor’s cost proposal for each change request.  The DC’s input may be requested for 
specific equipment and material costs. 

d. In the event the Contractor encounters a time sensitive problem where time is not available 
to negotiate a settlement, Covello will issue a field order.  All work done under a field order 
will be completed on a time and material basis. Covello will have authority for issuing field 
orders to a maximum value of $2,500 without prior notice or approval from the District only 
if Covello can’t reach the District’s Representative via cellular phone or office phone.  As 
soon as practical dependent on field conditions, Covello will advise the District of the 
issuance of such field order, and the District will execute the field order.  Field orders with 
an allowance greater than $2,500 will be reviewed and approved with the District prior to 
issuance. 

e. Covello will review change orders with the District prior to initial and final negotiations with 
the Contractor. 

f. Covello will prepare change orders for execution by the District and Contractor. 
g. Covello will implement and maintain a system for logging and tracking changes. 
h. Covello will establish and maintain Issues Files.  The issues files will compile all data 

related to specific items that arise that may have cost or time impacts. 
 
 6. Progress Payment 

a. Covello will review the initial cost breakdown prepared by the Contractor.  Covello will 
review and process the progress payment requests as required in the Contract Documents 
and by the California Public Contract Code. 

b. Covello will verify the quantity and acceptability of stored materials. 
c. Covello will verify the Contractor’s construction progress as it relates to the progress billing 

procedure. 
d. Covello will perform the administration, preparation and processing of the monthly progress 

payments. 
e. Covello will prepare the summary cover sheet for the progress payments which will be 

executed by Covello, the Contractor, and the District.  
f. When and if requested by the District, State or other agency or public inquiry, Covello will 

collect but not review the certified payroll from the Contractor. 
 
 7. Scheduling 

a. Covello will review and work with the Contractor in the development of the initial Baseline 
schedule.  Covello will review and work with the Contractor in their review and preparation 
of the schedule updates.  Covello will provide written comments to the Contractor on the 
Baseline and update schedules. 

 
 8. Field Quality Control  

a. Covello’s office/field engineer will monitor the contractor’s compliance with the Contract 
Documents. 

b. Covello office/field engineer will prepare a daily report documenting field activities, field 
crews, Contractor equipment, and field problems. 

c. No time is currently included in the budget for overtime monitoring of construction 
operations.  

d. Covello will maintain a Corrective Work Item List.  The list will provide a current inventory 
of required corrections to aid in timely completion of such items. 

e. Covello will provide photographic documentation of the project prior to construction.  
Covello will provide and maintain photographs of field activities for status monitoring of the 
project. 
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f. Covello will monitor the record documents on a monthly basis to determine if they are being 
maintained by the Contractor.  

g. Covello will contract with a separate firm to furnish the material testing and special 
inspections specified in the Contract Documents to be furnished by the District for the 
Project. 
1. Covello will schedule and coordinate the specialty inspections and material testing. 
2. Covello will have oversight responsibility for the specialty inspections and testing 

services. 
3. An allowance is included in the Budget in Exhibit B for this work. Covello will review 

Consolidated Engineering Laboratories scope of work and budget with the District prior 
to executing their agreement.  The scope of work and actual costs will be dependent on 
the final design requirements and the Contractor’s operations. An amendment to this 
Task Order may be necessary if the allowance is not adequate to cover the actual work 
required. 

i. Compaction grout material testing per Specification Section 02253-3.04.B has been 
included in the material testing scope. No provisions have been included in the 
scope of work or budget for special inspections of the compaction grouting.   

h. Covello will retain Beecher Engineering to provide technical support and assistance on the 
electrical facets of the project.  Beecher Engineering will be available to support electrical 
system shutdowns and provide the following project support:   
1. Review change requests from the project’s electrical sub-contractor as required and 

provide an analysis and opinion on first the merit of the request and second, the accuracy 
of the costs. 

2. Site inspection/meetings as required to review proposed electrical equipment installation 
and conduit routing.  

i. No provision has been included in the scope of work or budget for observation, testing and 
handling of hazardous material. 

j. No provisions have been included in the scope of work or budget for the services of a 
corrosion consultant to perform special inspection and/or testing for the Cathodic Protection 
Systems as required by Specification Section 13115. 
 

 9. Means and Methods of Construction 
  a.   Covello will not have responsibility for directing the means and methods of construction. The 

Contractor shall be solely responsible for the means and methods of construction. 
 

10. Safety 
a. Covello will comply with appropriate regulatory, project and District regulations regarding 

necessary safety equipment or procedures used during performance of Covello’s work and 
shall take necessary precautions for safe operation of Covello’s work, and the protection of 
Covello’s personnel from injury and damage from such work.  

 
Neither the professional activities of Covello, nor the presence of Covello’s employees or 
sub-consultants at the construction/project site, shall relieve the Contractor and any other 
entity of their obligations, duties and responsibilities including, but not limited to, 
construction means, methods, sequence, techniques or procedures necessary for performing, 
superintending, or coordinating their work in accordance with the Contract Documents, 
District regulations, and any health or safety precautions required by any regulatory 
agencies.  Covello and its personnel have no authority to exercise any control over any 
Contractor or other entity or their employees in connection with their work or any health or 
safety precautions. 
 
Covello will follow the District’s confined space procedures for entry into any existing 
District confined spaces and will follow these procedures at its own risk.  Covello’s reliance 
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on the District’s fixed gas detection system will be at its own risk. 
 
 11. Testing & Training 

a. The scope and budget do not include Covello’s participation in factory witness testing. 
b. Covello will coordinate training requirements and activities. 
c. The DC will provide design assistance during testing operations if determined necessary by 

the District. 
d. Covello will work with the Contractor, Design Consultant and the District on the 

development of the Startup Plan.    
e. Covello will provide oversight and administration of training and testing. 

 
 12. Corrective Work Item List 

a. Covello will prepare the Corrective Work Item list with input from the District and DC. 
b. Covello will confirm that the items identified in the Corrective Work Item list are completed 

in preparation for issuance of the Substantial Completion Certificate. 
c. Covello will prepare the Substantial Completion Certificate for execution by the District and 

Contractor when the Corrective Work Items are completed to the District’s and Covello’s 
satisfaction. 

 
 13. Final Inspection and Punchlist 
  a. Final Inspection 
   1. Covello will have primary responsibility for conducting the final inspection. 
   2. The District will participate and provide input on the final inspection. 
   3. DC will provide design input on final inspection items if determined necessary by the 

District. 
   4. Covello will have oversight and final review responsibility for the final inspection. 
  b. Covello will prepare the list of outstanding deficiencies.   
  c. Covello will prepare and issue the punchlist(s) from the list of deficiencies. 

d. Covello will have primary responsibility for verifying that punchlist work is complete.  
 
 14. Warranty Coordination 
  a. Covello will maintain a warranty file. 

b. Coordination of warranty work after the Contract Period is not included in this Scope of 
Work or budget.  If the District determines at a later date that it desires Covello to provide 
this service and an amendment is issued for additional budget, Covello will coordinate 
warranty work with the District and Contractor during the warranty period. 

 
 15. Project Closeout: 

a. Covello will prepare necessary District documentation recommending acceptance of the 
completed work by the Board. 

b. Covello will turnover project documentation to the District in an orderly manner.  Covello 
will retain all issue files at the end of the project.  The District shall have the right to request 
review and/or copies of the issue files. 

c. Covello shall have full and complete access available to all files created by Covello during 
the Project for up to ten (10) years after the completion of the Project.  Such access shall 
include the right to copy any and/or all such files at Covello’s expense. 

d. Covello will develop Lock-Out-Tag-Out (LOTO) Standard Operating Procedures (SOPs) for 
the new and modified equipment included in the Thickener Control Building Improvements 
Project. 
1. The District will provide the template and the software and/or computer necessary to 

develop the SOPs in the special format requested by the District. 
2. Covello’s development and work product shall be considered DRAFT and it is the 

responsibility of the District to review, determine the accuracy of, and incorporate into 
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their operations. 
 

16. Dispute Resolution: 
a. Resolution, when possible, of routine disagreements through the normal efforts of the day-

to-day project site staff will be performed. 
b. Dispute resolution services using third parties or special processes (e.g. Mediation, 

Arbitration, Mini-Trials. Dispute Consultants), or those requiring extraordinary efforts by 
Covello are not included in this Scope of Work.  If such non-routine dispute resolution 
services are required, either an amendment or a separate task order will be executed.   

 
17. Construction Manager’s Trailer 

a. Covello will furnish the Construction Management trailer.  Covello will furnish the copier, 
internet service, and cleaning services for the field office under the Cogeneration Project 
through September 2014.  After September 2014 the field office costs will be billed to the 
Thickener Control Building Improvements Project.    
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Hours Rate Amount Mar-14 Apr-14 May-14 Jun-14 Jul-14 Aug-14 Sep-14 Oct-14 Nov-14 Dec-14 Jan-15 Feb-15 Mar-15 Apr-15 May-15 Jun-15 Jul-15 Aug-15 Sep-15 Oct-15 Nov-15 Dec-15 Jan-16 Feb-16 Mar-16 Apr-16 May-16 Jun-16

Covello Construction Management Team
Principal B.Presser 192          217$   $41,664 24     24     24       24     4        4             4             4        4        4        4        4        4        4        4        4        4        4        4        4          4          4        4        4        4        4        4        4        

Construction Manager M.Redig 1,580       152$   $240,160 20     20     20       20     20      40           40           80      80      80      80      80      80      80      80      80      80      80      80      60        80        80      60      40      40      40      20      20      

FE-OE Z. Downing 4,480       121$   $542,080 160   160   160     160   160    160         160         160    160    160    160    160    160    160    160    160    160    160    160    160      160      160    160    160    160    160    160    160    

LOTO SOP Allowance Z. Downing 200          121$   $24,200
Administrative Assistant P.Freitas 688          88$     $60,544 24     24     24       24     24      24           24           24      24      24      24      24      24      24      24      24      24      24      24      24        24        24      24      24      24      24      32      32      

Covello Subtotal 7,140       $908,648
Escalation $47,704

Partnering M.Jaeger LS $5,000

Covello Total $961,352

Electrical Support T.Beecher 200          170$   $34,000

Allowance $25,550
RGM - Labor Compliance Allowance $50,000

$109,550
$5,478

$115,028

Months

Trailer 21 250$   $5,250 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Internet 21 160$   $3,360 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Copier 21 350$   $7,350 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

Cleaning Service 21 150$   $3,150 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1

ODC Total $19,110
$1,095,490

Notes & Assumptions: Total Estimated % 11.1%
Construction Cost Estimate: $9,900,000 TCG Estimated % 9.7%
NTP: 3/3/2014 $1,118,402

Construction Period (CDs): 780
Substantial Completion: 4/21/2016
Closeout: 8 weeks

1.  Covello's rates include all office expenses for home office telephone, facsimile, computers, in-house reproduction, travel in the Bay Area in personal vehicles.

2.  Covello will furnish a trailer for the CM staff under the COGEN project through 9/30/14.

3.  Covello annually adjusts salaries in July for the fiscal year from July thru June.  The estimate assumes a 4% escalation on July 1, 2014 and 2015.

4.  Extraordinary expenses, such as travel outside of the Bay Area, outside reproduction, delivery services, conferenc calls, etc. are invoiced at cost.

5.  Covello charges for one-way Bay Area travel for work involving less than eight hours billed in one day.  

6.  Subconsultants are invoiced at cost plus five percent.  
7. Todd Beecher's support is specific to CM related activities, no scope or budget is included for design support during construction.

8. Covello's development of LOTO Standard Operation Procedures (SOPs) are considered DRAFTs and shall be reviewed and accepted by USD for incorporation into their operations. 
9.  USD to provide the software and/or computer in order to complete the LOTO SOPs.

Markup on Subs(5%)

Subconsultant Total 

Other Direct Costs

TOTAL ESTIMATE

Subconsultants

Materials Testing/Special Inspection - CEL

Subconsultant Total

The Covello Group, Inc. - Staff Effort and Budget Estimate for Construction Management Services
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT  -  THICKENER CONTROL BUILDING IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

Exhibit B
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DATE: November 18, 2013 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 

Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
Raymond Chau, CIP Coach 
Ric Pipkin, Senior Engineer 

  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 13 - Meeting of November 25, 2013 

Authorizing the General Manager to execute an Agreement and 
Task Order No. 1 with Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic 
Vulnerability Assessment  

 
 
Recommendation 
 
Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute an Agreement 
and Task Order No. 1 with Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic Vulnerability 
Assessment 
 
Background 
 
Fiscal year 2014 budget identified a project for staff to conduct a seismic vulnerability 
assessment for all District structures and major pipelines.  
 
Staff identified 84 structures currently operated and maintained by the District and has 
selected 41 major pipelines for assessment.  These pipelines range from 18 inches to 
60 inches in diameter and are critical to the District’s ability to convey and provide liquid 
treatment of wastewater from Irvington Pump Station to the Alvarado Wastewater 
Treatment Plant and then to receiving waters.  
 
Staff requested and received three proposals from firms with expertise in structural and 
seismic engineering. The firms were Rizzo and Associates; Wiss, Janney, Elstner 
Associates; and Degenkolb Engineers. Staff selected Degenkolb Engineers due to their 
proposed approach of categorizing and simplifying the analysis of the structures, and 
their experience working with other local water and wastewater utilities including Central 
Contra Costa Sanitary District and the Alameda County Water District.  
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Scope of Work 
 
The following summarizes the scope of work staff has negotiated with Degenkolb to 
conduct this assessment: 
 
Task 1 – Document Review 
 
Staff has sorted over 500 drawings for review by Degenkolb to aid their analysis. 
Degenkolb will also perform some site visits to familiarize themselves with the structural 
elements of several of the buildings. 
 
Task 2 – Define Seismic Performance Criteria 
 
In order to determine the probabilistic seismic hazard and/or scenario for seismic 
vulnerability assessment, Degenkolb will perform the following activities: 

• Meet with ACWD and USD to determine level of expected water service 
available and consequent wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal needs 
after a major earthquake 

• Consult with similarly sized wastewater facilities to understand expectations on 
level of service 

• Define consequence of failure for each structure and pipeline with USD staff 
 

Task 3 – Tier 1 Seismic Evaluation of 20 Representative Structures to Life-Safety 
Performance Level 

Degenkolb will perform a preliminary seismic evaluation of 20 representative structures 
and determine seismic deficiencies, expected downtime and potential losses. Provide a 
seismic rating score for each of the structures for a given seismic hazard and 
performance level. 

Task 4 – Seismic Evaluation of Pipelines 
 
Degenkolb will review the pipeline geotechnical environments and identify damage 
mechanisms. Degenkolb will assess vulnerability due to wave propagation, liquefaction, 
and settlement, and develop preliminary recommendations 
 
Task 5 – Geotechnical Assessment 
 
Degenkolb’s geotechnical sub-consultant will review existing soils information and 
create a technical assessment for use in the pipeline and structure seismic analysis. 
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Task 6 – Seismic Risk Analysis 
 
Degenkolb will perform a risk analysis based on the likelihood of occurrence from 
seismic evaluations in tasks 3, 4, and 5 and consequence of failure from task 2. 
Degenkolb will conduct a District Board and/or Executive Team Workshop to review 
potential service criteria for seismic performance, review seismic risk score for each 
facility and discuss cost and service implications of conceptual seismic improvements. 
 
Task 7 – Seismic Assessment Report 
 
Degenkolb will prepare a draft and final report including findings, seismic upgrade 
recommendations, prioritization of recommendations and planning-level cost estimates. 
  
Task 8 (Optional) – Additional Seismic Evaluations of Structures 
 
This task may include analysis of a portion or all of the first 20 representative structures 
at a higher performance level than life-safety or a different level of seismic hazard. The 
type of analysis and the structures analyzed shall be determined later. Degenkolb will 
not commence work on this task without written authorization from staff. 
 
The budget for this work is summarized in the following table: 
 
Task Description Cost 
1 Document Review $8,940 
2 Define Seismic Performance Criteria $8,040 
3 Tier 1 Seismic Evaluations Of 20 Representative Structures To 

Life-Safety Performance Level 
$55,825 

4 Seismic Evaluation Of Pipelines $12,690 
5 Geotechnical Assessment $10,080 
6 Seismic Risk Analysis $7,330 
7 Seismic Assessment Report $3,625 
8 Optional Task - Additional Seismic Evaluations of Structures $41,869 
 Total not including optional task $106,530 
 Total including optional task $148,399 
 
 
USD staff have reviewed this price proposal and found it to be reasonable, considering 
the required scope of work.  All work under this task order is expected to be completed 
by June 30, 2014. 
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Staff recommends the Board authorize the General Manager to execute the Agreement 
and Task Order No. 1 with Degenkolb Engineers for the Seismic Vulnerability 
Assessment 
 
 
RBC/SG/RC/RP;mp 
 
Attachment: Agreement and Task Order No. 1 
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AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
AND 

DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS 
FOR 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 
 
THIS IS AN AGREEMENT MADE AS OF NOVEMBER,    2013, BETWEEN 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT (hereinafter referred to as District), and 
DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS (hereinafter referred to as Engineer). 
 
WITNESSETH: 
 
WHEREAS, District intends to perform a Seismic Vulnerability Assessment of its 
Facilities (hereinafter referred to as Project), and, 
 
WHEREAS, District requires certain professional services in connection with the 
Project (hereinafter referred as Services); and 
 
WHEREAS, Engineer is qualified and prepared to provide such Services; 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the promises contained herein, the 
parties agree as follows: 
 
 
ARTICLE 1 - SERVICES TO BE PERFORMED BY ENGINEER 
 
1.1 Specific Services and the associated scope of services, payment, 

schedule, and personnel will be defined in specific Task Order as 
mutually agreed by District and Engineer. 

 
1.2 All Task Orders will by reference incorporate the terms and conditions 

of this Agreement, and become formal amendments hereto. 
 
 
ARTICLE 2 - COMPENSATION 
 
2.1 Compensation for consulting services performed under this Agreement 

shall include: 
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(1) Direct labor costs, multiplied by an agreed upon fixed factor 
(the Multiplier), to compensate for fringe benefits, indirect 
costs, and profit. 

 
(2) Non-labor direct project charge not included in the fixed factor 

and acceptable, without any markup. 
 
(3) Subconsultant costs, with a maximum markup of 5%. 

 
Definitions are as follows: 
 

(a) Direct labor is salaries and wages paid to personnel for time 
directly chargeable to the project.  Direct labor does not 
include the cost of Engineer’s statutory and customary 
benefits, such as sick leave, holidays, vacations, and medical 
and retirement benefits nor the cost of the time of executive 
and administrative personnel and others whose time is not 
identifiable to the project. 

 
(b) Fringe benefits include Engineer’s statutory and customary 

benefits, such as sick leave, holidays, vacations, medical and 
retirement benefits, incentive pay, tuition, and other costs 
classified as employee benefits. 

 
(c) Indirect costs are allocations of costs that are not directly 

chargeable to a specific engagement and are commonly 
referred to as Engineer’s overhead.  Indirect costs include 
provisions for such things as clerical support, office space, 
light and heat, insurance, statutory and customary employee 
benefits, and the time of executive and administrative 
personnel and others whose time is not identifiable to the 
Project or to any other project.  Under no circumstances can 
the same labor costs be charged as direct labor and also 
appear at the same time as indirect costs, and vice versa. 

 
(d) The Multiplier is a multiplicative factor which is applied to 

direct labor costs, and compensates Engineer for fringe 
benefits and indirect costs (overhead) and profit. 

 
(e) Other non-labor direct project charges shall be included in the 

overhead and these charges include typical expenses as cost 
of transportation and subsistence, printing and reproduction, 
computer time and programming costs, identifiable supplies, 
outside consultant’s charges, subcontracts, and charges by 
reviewing authorities.” 
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Alternatively, the District and the Engineer may agree to utilize the 
fully-encumbered hourly rates and fees for Services performed by the 
Engineer.  These hourly rates and fees shall be based on the 
Engineer’s rate schedule published at the time this Agreement or Task 
Order is executed and shall be attached to each applicable Task 
Order. 

 
2.2 Reimbursement for mileage shall not exceed the prevailing Internal 

Revenue Service’s standard mileage rate. 
 
2.3 A Cost Ceiling will be established for each Task Order which is based 

upon estimated labor-hours and cost estimates. Costs as described 
above, comprising direct labor, overhead cost, and other direct costs, 
shall be payable up to a Cost Ceiling as specified in the Task Order.  A 
Maximum Fee Ceiling, or Task Order Firm Ceiling, will also be 
established for each Task Order which includes the Cost Ceiling plus 
the Professional Fee. 

 
2.4 Engineer shall invoice District monthly for the actual costs incurred, 

and a pro-rated portion of the Professional Fee for work performed 
during the previous month.  If the Maximum Fee Ceiling is reached, the 
Engineer will complete the agreed-upon work for the Maximum Fee 
Ceiling.  With District staff approval, labor hours may be reallocated 
within the tasks without renegotiation in such a manner so as not to 
exceed the Maximum Fee Ceiling. 

 
2.5 The Engineer shall provide the District with a review of the budget 

amounts when 75 percent of the Cost Ceiling for any task has been 
expended.  Engineer may request a revision in the Cost Ceiling for 
performance of this Agreement, and will relate the rationale for the 
revision to the specific basis of estimate as defined in the Scope of 
Services.  Such notification will be submitted to the District at the 
earliest possible date.  The authorized Cost Ceiling shall not be 
exceeded without written approval of the District. 

 
2.6 The Professional Fee will not be changed except in the case of a 

written amendment to the Agreement which alters the Scope of 
Services.  District and Engineer agree to negotiate an increase or 
decrease in Cost Ceiling and Professional Fee for any change in 
Scope of Services required at any time during the term of this 
Agreement.  Engineer will not commence work on the altered Scope of 
Services until authorized by District. 

 
2.7 Direct labor rates are subject to revision to coincide with Engineer’s 

normal salary review schedule.  Adjustments in direct labor rates shall 
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not affect the firm ceiling without prior written authorization of the 
District. 

 
2.8 District shall pay Engineer in accordance with each Task Order for 

Services. 
 
2.9 Engineer shall submit monthly statements for Services rendered.  

District will make prompt monthly payments in response to Engineer's 
monthly statements. 

 
 
ARTICLE 3 - PERIOD OF SERVICE 
 
3.1 Engineer's services will be performed and the specified services 

rendered and deliverables submitted within the time period or by the 
date stipulated in each Task Order. 

 
3.2 Engineer's services under this Agreement will be considered complete 

when the services are rendered and/or final deliverable is submitted 
and accepted by District. 

 
3.3 If any time period within or date by which any of the Engineer's 

services are to be completed is exceeded through no fault of Engineer, 
all rates, measures and amounts of compensation and the time for 
completion of performance shall be subject to equitable adjustment. 

 
 
ARTICLE 4 - DISTRICT'S RESPONSIBILITIES 
 
District will do the following in a timely manner so as not to delay the services of 
Engineer. 
 
4.1 Provide all criteria and full information as to District's requirements for 

the services assignment and designate in writing a person with 
authority to act on District's behalf on all matters concerning the 
Engineer's services. 

 
4.2 Furnish to Engineer all existing studies, reports and other available 

data pertinent to the Engineer's services, obtain or authorize Engineer 
to obtain or provide additional reports and data as required, and furnish 
to Engineer services of others required for the performance of 
Engineer's services hereunder, and Engineer shall be entitled to use 
and rely upon all such information and services provided by District or 
others in performing Engineer's services under this Agreement. 
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4.3 Arrange for access to and make all provisions for Engineer to enter 
upon public and private property as required for Engineer to perform 
services hereunder. 

 
4.4 Perform such other functions as are indicated in each Task Order 

related to duties of District. 
 
4.5 Bear all costs incident to compliance with the requirements of this 

Section. 
 
 
ARTICLE 5 - STANDARD OF CARE 
 
5.1 Engineer shall exercise the same degree of care, skill, and diligence in 

the performance of the Services as is ordinarily provided by a 
professional Engineer under similar circumstance and Engineer shall, 
at no cost to District, re-perform services which fail to satisfy the 
foregoing standard of care. 

 
 
ARTICLE 6 - OPINIONS OF COST AND SCHEDULE 
 
6.1 Since Engineer has no control over the cost of labor, materials, 

equipment or services furnished by others, or over contractors', 
subcontractors' , or vendors' methods of determining prices, or over 
competitive bidding or market conditions or economic conditions, 
Engineer's cost estimate and economic analysis shall be made on the 
basis of qualification and experience as a professional engineer. 

 
6.2 Since Engineer has no control over the resources provided by others 

to meet contract schedules, Engineer's forecast schedules shall be 
made on the basis of qualification and experience as a professional 
Engineer. 

 
6.3 Engineer cannot and does not guarantee that proposals, bids or actual 

project costs will not vary from his cost estimates or that actual 
schedules will not vary from his forecast schedules. 

 
 
ARTICLE 7 - SUBCONTRACTING 
 
7.1 No subcontract shall be awarded by Engineer until prior written 

approval is obtained from the District. 
 
 
ARTICLE 8 - ENGINEER-ASSIGNED PERSONNEL 
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8.1 Engineer shall designate in writing an individual to have immediate 

responsibility for the performance of the services and for all matters 
relating to performance under this Agreement.  Key personnel to be 
assigned by Engineer will be stipulated in each Task Order.  
Substitution of any assigned person shall require the prior written 
approval of the District, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.  If 
the District determines that a proposed substitution is not responsible 
or qualified to perform the services then, at the request of the District, 
Engineer shall substitute a qualified and responsible person. 

 
 
ARTICLE 9 - OWNERSHIP OF DOCUMENTS 
 
9.1 All work products, drawings, data, reports, files, estimate and other 

such information and materials (except proprietary computer programs, 
including source codes purchased or developed with Engineer monies) 
as may be accumulated by Engineer to complete services under this 
Agreement shall be owned by the District. 

 
9.2 Engineer shall retain custody of all project data and documents other 

than deliverables specified in each Task Order, but shall make access 
thereto available to the District at all reasonable times the District may 
request.  District may make and retain copies for information and 
reference. 

 
9.3 All deliverables and other information prepared by Engineer pursuant 

to this Agreement are instruments of service in respect to this project.  
They are not intended or represented to be suitable for reuse by 
District or others on extensions of this Project or on any other project.  
Any reuse without written verification or adaptation by Engineer for the 
specific purpose intended will be at District's sole risk and without 
liability or legal exposure to Engineer; and District shall indemnify and 
hold harmless Engineer against all claims, damages, losses, and 
expenses including attorney's fees arising out of or resulting from such 
reuse.  Any such verification or adaptation will entitle Engineer to 
further compensation at rates to be agreed upon by District and 
Engineer. 

 
 
ARTICLE 10 - RECORDS OF LABOR AND COSTS 
 
10.1 Engineer shall maintain for all Task Orders, records of all labor and 

costs used in claims for compensation under this Agreement.  Records 
shall mean a contemporaneous record of time for personnel; a 
methodology and calculation of the Multiplier for fringe benefits and 
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indirect costs; and invoices, time sheets, or other factors used as a 
basis for determining other non-labor Project charges.  These records 
must be made available to the District upon reasonable notice of no 
more than 48 hours during the period of the performance of this 
Agreement. 

 
10.2 After delivery of Services (completion of Task Orders) under this 

Agreement, the Engineer's records of all costs used in claims for 
compensation under this Agreement shall be available to District's 
accountants and auditors for inspection and verification.  These 
records will be maintained by Engineer and made reasonably 
accessible to the District for a period of three (3) years after completion 
of Task Orders under this Agreement. 

 
10.3 Engineer agrees to cooperate and provide any and all information 

concerning the Project costs which are a factor in determining 
compensation under this Agreement as requested by the District or 
any public agency which has any part in providing financing for, or 
authority over, the Services which are provided under the Agreement. 

 
10.4 Failure to provide documentation or substantiation of all Project costs 

used as a factor in compensation paid under Article 2 hereof will be 
grounds for District to refuse payment of any statement submitted by 
the Engineer and for a back charge for any District funds, including 
interest from payment; or grant, matching, or other funds from 
agencies assisting District in financing the Services specified in this 
Agreement. 

 
 
ARTICLE 11 - INSURANCE 
 
Engineer shall provide and maintain at all times during the performance of the 
Agreement the following insurances: 
 
11.1 Workers' Compensation and Employer's Liability Insurance for 

protection of Engineer's employees as required by law and as will 
protect Engineer from loss or damage because of personal injuries, 
including death to any of his employees. 

 
11.2 Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance.  Engineer agrees to 

carry a Comprehensive Automobile Liability Policy providing bodily 
injury liability.  This policy shall protect Engineer against all liability 
arising out of the use of owned or leased automobiles both passenger 
and commercial.  Automobiles, trucks, and other vehicles and 
equipment (owned, not owned, or hired, licensed or unlicensed for 
road use) shall be covered under this policy.  Limits of liability for 
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Comprehensive Automobile Liability Insurance shall not be less than 
$1,000,000 Combined Single Limit. 

 
11.3 Comprehensive General Liability Insurance as will protect Engineer 

and District from any and all claims for damages or personal injuries, 
including death, which may be suffered by persons, or for damages to 
or destruction to the property of others, which may arise from the 
Engineer's operations under this Agreement, which insurance shall 
name the District as additional insured.  Said insurance shall provide a 
minimum of $1,000,000 Combined Single Limit coverage for personal 
injury, bodily injury, and property damage for each occurrence and 
aggregate.  Such insurance will insure Engineer and District from any 
and all claims arising from the following: 

 
 1. Personal injury; 
 2. Bodily injury; 
 3. Property damage; 
 4. Broad form property damage; 
 5. Independent contractors; 
 6. Blanket contractual liability. 
 
11.4 Engineer shall maintain a policy of professional liability insurance, 

protecting it against claims arising out of negligent acts, errors, or 
omissions of Engineer pursuant to this Agreement, in an amount of not 
less than $1,000,000.  The said policy shall cover the indemnity 
provisions under this Agreement. 

 
11.5 Engineer agrees to maintain such insurance at Engineer's expense in 

full force and effect in a company or companies satisfactory to the 
District.  All coverage shall remain in effect until completion of the 
Project. 

 
11.6 Engineer will furnish the District with certificates of insurance and 

endorsements issued by Engineer's insurance carrier and 
countersigned by an authorized agent or representative of the 
insurance company.  The certificates shall show that the insurance will 
not be cancelled without at least thirty (30) days' prior written notice to 
the District.  The certificates for liability insurance will show that liability 
assumed under this Agreement is included.  The endorsements will 
show the District as an additional insured on Engineer’s insurance 
policies for the coverage required in Article 11 for services performed 
under this Agreement, except for workers’ compensation and 
professional liability insurance. 

 
11.7 Waiver of Subrogation:  Engineer hereby agrees to waive subrogation 

which any insurer of Engineer may acquire from Engineer by virtue of 
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the payment of any loss.  Engineer agrees to obtain any endorsement 
that may be necessary to effect this waiver of subrogation. 

 
The Workers’ Compensation policy shall be endorsed with a waiver of 
subrogation in favor of the District for all work performed by the 
Engineer, its employees, agents and subconsultants. 

 
ARTICLE 12 - LIABILITY AND INDEMNIFICATION 
 
12.1 Having considered the risks and potential liabilities that may exist 

during the performance of the Services, and in consideration of the 
promises included herein, District and Engineer agree to allocate such 
liabilities in accordance with this Article 12.  Words and phrases used 
in this Article shall be interpreted in accordance with customary 
insurance industry usage and practice. 

 
12.2 Engineer shall indemnify and save harmless the District and all of their 

agents, officers, and employees from and against all claims, demands, 
or causes of action of every name or nature to the extent caused by 
the negligent error, omission, or act of Engineer, its agents, servants, 
or employees in the performance of its services under this Agreement. 

 
12.3 In the event an action for damages is filed in which negligence is 

alleged on the part of District and Engineer, Engineer agrees to defend 
District.  In the event District accepts Engineer's defense, District 
agrees to indemnify and reimburse Engineer on a pro rata basis for all 
expenses of defense and any judgment or amount paid by Engineer in 
resolution of such claim.  Such pro rata share shall be based upon a 
final judicial determination of negligence or, in the absence of such 
determination, by mutual agreement. 

 
12.4 Engineer shall indemnify District against legal liability for damages 

arising out of claims by Engineer's employees.  District shall indemnify 
Engineer against legal liability for damages arising out of claims by 
District's employees. 

 
12.5 Indemnity provisions will be incorporated into all Project contractual 

arrangements entered into by District and will protect District and 
Engineer to the same extent. 

 
12.6 Upon completion of all services, obligations and duties provided for in 

the Agreement, or in the event of termination of this Agreement for any 
reason, the terms and conditions of this Article shall survive. 

 
12.7 To the maximum extent permitted by law, Engineer’s liability for 

District’s damage will not exceed the aggregate compensation 
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received by Engineer under this Agreement or the maximum amount of 
professional liability insurance available at the time of any settlement 
or judgment, which ever is greater. 

 
 
ARTICLE 13 - INDEPENDENT CONTRACTOR 
 
Engineer undertakes performance of the Services as an independent contractor 
and shall be wholly responsible for the methods of performance.  District will 
have no right to supervise the methods used, but District will have the right to 
observe such performance.  Engineer shall work closely with District in 
performing Services under this Agreement. 
 
 
ARTICLE 14 - COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS 
 
In performance of the Services, Engineer will comply with applicable regulatory 
requirements including federal, state, and local laws, rules, regulations, orders, 
codes, criteria and standards.  Engineer shall procure the permits, certificates, 
and licenses necessary to allow Engineer to perform the Services.  Engineer 
shall not be responsible for procuring permits, certificates, and licenses required 
for any construction unless such responsibilities are specifically assigned to 
Engineer in Task Order. 
 
 
ARTICLE 15 - NONDISCLOSURE OF PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 
 
Engineer shall consider all information provided by District and all drawings, 
reports, studies, design calculations, specifications, and other documents 
resulting from the Engineer's performance of the Services to be proprietary 
unless such information is available from public sources.  Engineer shall not 
publish or disclose proprietary information for any purpose other than the 
performance of the Services without the prior written authorization of District or in 
response to legal process. 
 
 
ARTICLE 16 - TERMINATION OF CONTRACT 
 
16.1 The obligation to continue Services under this Agreement may be 

terminated by either party upon seven days written notice in the event 
of substantial failure by the other party to perform in accordance with 
the terms hereof through no fault of the terminating party. 

 
16.2 District shall have the right to terminate this Agreement or suspend 

performance thereof for District's convenience upon written notice to 
Engineer, and Engineer shall terminate or suspend performance of 
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Services on a schedule acceptable to District.  In the event of 
termination or suspension for District's convenience, District will pay 
Engineer for all services performed and costs incurred including 
termination or suspension expenses.  Upon restart of a suspended 
project, equitable adjustment shall be made to Engineer's 
compensation. 

 
 
ARTICLE 17 - UNCONTROLLABLE FORCES 
 
17.1 Neither District nor Engineer shall be considered to be in default of this 

Agreement if delays in or failure of performance shall be due to 
uncontrollable forces, the effect of which, by the exercise of reasonable 
diligence, the nonperforming party could not avoid.  The term 
"uncontrollable forces" shall mean any event which results in the 
prevention or delay of performance by a party of its obligations under 
this Agreement and which is beyond the control of the nonperforming 
party.  It includes, but is not limited to, fire, flood, earthquake, storms, 
lightening, epidemic, war, riot, civil disturbance, sabotage, inability to 
procure permits, licenses, or authorizations from any state, local, or 
federal agency or person for any of the supplies, materials, accesses, 
or services required to be provided by either District or Engineer under 
this Agreement, strikes, work slowdowns or other labor disturbances, 
and judicial restraint. 

 
17.2 Neither party shall, however, be excused from performance if 

nonperformance is due to uncontrollable forces which are removable 
or remediable, and which the nonperforming party could have, with the 
exercise of reasonable diligence, removed or remedied with 
reasonable dispatch.  The provisions of this Article shall not be 
interpreted or construed to require Engineer or District to prevent, 
settle, or otherwise avoid a strike, work slowdown, or other labor 
action.  The nonperforming party shall, within a reasonable time of 
being prevented or delayed from performance by an uncontrollable 
force, give written notice to the other party describing the 
circumstances and uncontrollable forces preventing continued 
performance of the obligations of this Agreement.  The Engineer will be 
allowed reasonable negotiated extension of time or adjustments for 
District initiated temporary stoppage of services. 

 
 
ARTICLE 18 - MISCELLANEOUS 
 
18.1 A waiver by either District or Engineer of any breach of this Agreement 

shall not be binding upon the waiving party unless such waiver is in 
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writing.  In the event of a written waiver, such a waiver shall not affect 
the waiving party's rights with respect to any other or further breach. 

 
18.2 The invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability of any provision of this 

Agreement, or the occurrence of any event rendering any portion or 
provision of this Agreement void, shall in no way effect the validity or 
enforceability of any other portion or provision of the Agreement.  Any 
void provision shall be deemed severed from the Agreement and the 
balance of the Agreement shall be construed and enforced as if the 
Agreement did not contain the particular portion or provision held to be 
void. 

 
ARTICLE 19 - INTEGRATION AND MODIFICATION 
 
19.1 This Agreement (consisting of pages 1 to 13, together with all Task 

Orders executed by the undersigned, is adopted by District and 
Engineer as a complete and exclusive statement of the terms of the 
Agreement between District and Engineer.  This Agreement 
supersedes all prior agreements, contracts, proposals, 
representations, negotiations, letters, or other communications 
between the District and Engineer pertaining to the Services, whether 
written or oral. 

 
19.2 The Agreement may not be modified unless such modifications are 

evidenced in writing signed by both District and Engineer. 
 
 
ARTICLE 20 - SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS 
 
20.1 District and Engineer each binds itself and its directors, officers, 

partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns and legal 
representatives to the other party to this Agreement and to the 
partners, successors, executors, administrators, assigns, and legal 
representatives of such other party, in respect to all covenants, 
agreements, and obligations of this Agreement. 

 
20.2 Neither District nor Engineer shall assign, sublet, or transfer any rights 

under or interest in (including, but without limitation, monies that may 
become due or monies that are due) this Agreement without the written 
consent of the other, except to the extent that the effect of this 
limitation may be restricted by law.  Unless specifically stated to the 
contrary in any written consent to an assignment, no assignment will 
release or discharge the assignor from any duty or responsibility under 
this Agreement.  Nothing contained in this paragraph shall prevent 
Engineer from employing such independent engineers, associates, and 
subcontractors as he may deem appropriate to assist him/her in the 
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performance of the Services hereunder and in accordance with Article 
7. 

 
20.3 Nothing herein shall be construed to give any rights or benefits to 

anyone other than District and Engineer. 
 
 
ARTICLE 21 – NOT USED 
 
 
 
ARTICLE 22 - EXCEPTIONS 
 
No exceptions. 
 
 
IN WITNESS THEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this 
Agreement as of the day and year first above written. 
 
 
UNION SANITARY DISTRICT DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS 
 
 
By: ___________________________ By: _________________________ 
 
  Richard B. Currie  Name:   
 
  General Manager  Title: ________________________ 
 
Date:   Date:   
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TASK ORDER NO. 1 

 
to 
 

AGREEMENT 
 

BETWEEN 
 

UNION SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

AND 
 

DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS 
 

FOR 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES 
 

Dated NOVEMBER __________, 2013 
 
 

 
1. PURPOSE 
 
 This Study will assess the seismic vulnerability risk of major District 

facilities including treatment plant, pump station, and major pipeline 
structures.  

   
 
2. PROJECT COORDINATION 
 
 All work related to this task order shall be coordinated through the 

District’s Project Manager, Ric Pipkin. 
 
 
3. SCOPE OF SERVICES 
 
 The task numbers in this Scope of Services are associated with the cost 

data presented in Exhibit A.  
 
 Task 1: Document Review 

• Research and review district documents (drawings and reports) 
• Perform site visits 
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 Task 2 - Define Seismic Performance Criteria 

• Determine probabilistic seismic hazard and or scenario for seismic 
vulnerability assessment 

• Meet with ACWD and USD to determine level of expected water 
service available and consequent wastewater collection, treatment, 
and disposal demand after a major earthquake 

• Consult with similarly sized wastewater facilities to understand 
expectations on level of service 

• Define consequence of failure for each structure and pipeline with 
USD staff 

  
 Task 3 - Tier 1 Seismic Evaluations Of 20 Representative Structures To 

Life-Safety Performance Level 
• Perform preliminary seismic evaluations of 20 representative 

structures and determine seismic deficiencies, expected downtime 
and potential losses. Provide a seismic rating score for each of the 
structures for a given seismic hazard and performance level. 

 
 Task 4 - Seismic Evaluation Of Pipelines 

• Review plans/profiles  
• Review pipeline geotechnical environment 
• Identify damage mechanisms  
• Review and assess pipe materials  
• Assess vulnerability - wave propagation, liquefaction, settlement  
• Develop preliminary recommendations 

 
 Task 5 - Geotechnical Assessment 

• Research and review district documents (drawings and reports)  
• Research and review USGS, CGS, ACWD, Fremont, Hayward and 

Union City geotechnical documents  
• Create technical assessment for use in pipeline and structure 

seismic analysis 
 
 Task 6 - Seismic Risk Analysis 

• Perform risk analysis based on likelihood of occurrence from 
seismic evaluations in tasks 3, 4 & 5 and consequence of failure 
from task 2 

• Conduct a District Board and/or Executive Team Workshop to 
review potential service criteria for seismic performance, review 
seismic risk score for each facility and discuss cost and service 
implications of conceptual seismic improvements. 
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 Task 7 - Seismic Assessment Report 

• Provide a draft written report with findings, seismic upgrade 
recommendations, prioritization of recommendations and planning-
level cost estimates. 

• The Final report shall incorporate and respond to District comments 
on the Draft report. 

 
 Optional Task 8 – Additional Seismic Evaluations of Structures  

• This task may include analysis of a portion or all of the first 20 
representative structures at a higher performance level than life-
safety or a different level of seismic hazard. The type of analysis 
and the structures analyzed shall be determined later. Engineer 
shall not commence work on this task without written authorization 
from District. 

 
4. DELIVERABLES 
 
 The Engineer shall submit a detailed Draft and Final report of its findings. 

The report is expected to include copies of the calculations performed, 
maps, charts, and figures created for the analysis and a table 
summarizing seismic assessment risk scores and planning level cost 
estimates. The report should include an executive summary with seismic 
upgrade recommendations, prioritization of recommendations and 
planning-level cost estimates. The Final report shall incorporate and 
respond to District comments on the Draft report. 

 
 The Engineer shall submit the final (reports, technical memoranda, and 

bid documents in both Word and .pdf formats; drawings in the latest 
AutoCAD version; other deliverables required for the project) to the District 
on a CD-ROM. 

 
5. NOT USED 
 
6.  NOT USED 
 
 
7. PAYMENT TO THE ENGINEER 
 
 Payment to the Engineer shall be as called for in Article 2 of the 
 Agreement.  The not-to-exceed amount of Task Order No. 1 shall be 
 $148,399.  Engineer shall only proceed with Optional Task No. 8 with prior 
 written authorization from the District. The billing rate schedule is generally 
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comparable to a labor  multiplier of approximately 3.22.  A summary of the 
anticipated  distribution of cost and manpower between tasks is shown in 
Exhibit A. 
 

The following table summarizes the previously-executed and proposed 
task orders and amendments under the Agreement: 

 

Task Order / 
Amendment 

Not to 
Exceed 
Amount 

Board 
Authorization 

Required? 
(Yes/No) 

District Staff 
Approval 

Proposed Task Order 
No. 1 – Study Phase 
1 

$148,399 Yes Richard Currie 

Total $148,399  
 
 

6. TIME OF COMPLETION 
 

 All work defined in this Task Order shall be complete within two hundred 
(200) calendar days after the execution of this Task Order and subject to 
the conditions of Article 3 of this Agreement.   

 

9. KEY PERSONNEL 
 
 Engineering personnel assigned to this Task Order No. 1 are as follows: 
 
 Role Key Person to be Assigned 
 Project Manager/Structural Lead Roger Parra 
 Pipeline Expert Don Ballantyne 
 Geotechnical Expert Dave Mathy 
 
 Key personnel shall not be changed except in accordance with Article 8 of 

the Agreement.   
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and executed this Task 
Order No. 1 as of November___, 2013 and therewith incorporate it as part of the 
Agreement. 

 

 
DISTRICT ENGINEER 
 
 
Union Sanitary District DEGENKOLB ENGINEERS 
 
 
 
By: ________________________  By:     
 
 
Name:  Richard B. Currie  Name:   
 
 
Title: General Manager  Title:   
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Seismic Vulnerability Assessment Exhibit A- Cost Estimate 

1.1 Research and review district documents (drawings and reports) 

1.2 Perform site visits 

Subtotal 

Task 2- DEFINE SEISMIC PERFORMANCE CRITERIA 

2.1 Determine probabilistic seismic hazard and or scenario for seismic 
lnerability assessment 

2.2 
Meetings with ACWD and USD to determine level of expected water 

nd wastewater service uired after a m 

2.3 
Consult with similarly sized wastewater facilities to understand 

on level of service 

2.4 Define consequence of failure for each structure and pipeline 

Subtotal 

Roger Parra 
Principal 

Hours@ $235 

8 

12 

2 

4 

4 

10 

egenkolb Engineers 

Bryan B1ndnch 
Design Engineer 

Hours@ $165 

12 

20 

6 

6 

Degenkolb 
Totals 

20 $3,860 

32 $6,120 

8 $1,460 

4 $940 

4 $940 

0 $0 

16 $3,340 

[rask 3- TJER1sEJSMIC EVALUATIONs-oF 20REPRESENTATIVE srRucru~es To LIFE-SAF-ETY -PERFORMANCE LEVEL 

3.1 CIP concrete walls and roof (1978) 

3.2 CIP concrete walls and roof (1985) 

3.3 CIP concrete walls and roof (1993) 

3.4 CIP concrete walls below grade, CMU walls with steel framed roof and 
decking (1 959) 

3.5 
CIP concrete walls below grade, CMU Walls with steel framed roof and 
decking (1 978) 

3.6 
CIP concrete walls below grade, CMU Walls with steel framed roof and 
decking ( 1984) 

3.7 
(.; It-' concrete waus oe1ow graae, !-'recast ~..,;oncrete walls ana rooT 
l197R\ 

3.8 
C i t-' concrete walls below grade, !-'recast concrete walls and root 
{1 985\ 

3.9 Prefabricated steel building ( 1983) 

3.10 CIP Concrete walls and precast concrete roof (1985) 

3.1 1 Precast concrete walls and roof (1978) 

3.12 Precast concrete walls and roof (1985) 

3.13 CIP Concrete walls and steel dome (1978) 

3.14 CIP Concrete walls and steel dome (1985) 

3.15 CMU Walls Steel framed roof and metal decking (1 978) 
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4 $940 16 $2,640 20 $3,580 

2 $470 10 $1,650 12 $2,120 

2 $470 10 $1,650 12 $2,120 

4 $940 16 $2,640 20 $3,580 

2 $470 12 $1,980 14 $2,450 

2 $470 12 $1,980 14 $2,450 

4 $940 16 $2,640 20 $3,580 

2 $470 12 $1,980 14 $2,450 

1 $235 8 $1 ,320 9 $1,555 

4 $940 16 $2,640 20 $3,580 

4 $940 16 $2,640 20 $3,580 

2 $470 12 $1 ,980 14 $2,450 

4 $940 16 $2,640 20 $3,580 

2 $470 12 $1,980 14 $2,450 

4 $940 16 $2,640 20 $3,580 

Don Ballantyne Principal 

Hours@ $235 

8 

12 

4 

4 

12 

20 
---- --------

-
$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

$0 

Dave Mathy 
Geotechnical Expert 

Hours@ $210 

0 

0 $0 

$1,460 

$1 ,880 

$1,880 

$2,820 

$0 $8,040 r------ --,--------

$0 $3,580 

$0 $2,120 

$0 $2,120 

$0 $3,580 

$0 $2,450 

$0 $2,450 

$0 $3,580 

$0 $2,450 

$0 $1,555 

$0 $3,580 

$0 $3,580 

$0 $2,450 

$0 $3,580 

$0 $2,450 

$0 $3,580 
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3.16 CMU Walls Steel framed roof and metal decking (1990) 

3.17 CIP Walls Steel f ramed roof and metal decking (1993) 

3.18 It-up concrete walls with steel roof framing (1999) 

3.19 ditional Building type to be determined 

3.20 itional Building type to be determined 
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Subtotal 

Roger Parra 
Principal 

4 

4 

55 

Oegenkolb Engine 

Bryan Bindrich 
Design Engineer 

8 

8 

16 

16 

260 

Don Ballantyne Principal 

9 $1,555 

9 $1,555 

20 $3,580 

20 $3,580 

315 $55,825 0 

OCM Consulting 

Dave Mathy 
Geotechnical Expert 

0 $0 

$1,555 

$1,555 

$3,580 

$3,580 

$55,825 
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[Task 4- SEISMIC EVALUATION OF PIPELINES • - -- - - - - - .. . -

Review plans/profiles 

4.2 Review pipeline geotechnical environment 

4.3 Identify damage mechanisms 

4.4 Review and assess pipe materials 

4.5 vulnerability- wave propagation, liquefaction, settlement 

4.6 Develop preliminary recommendations 

Subtotal 

Roger Parra 
Principal 

Bryan B1ndnch 
Design Engineer Degenkolb 

To tals 

Hours@ $235 Hours@ $165 

- -.-.... ­
·~ 

0 0 

- --~-- --
0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

0 

Don Ballantyne Principal 

Hours@ $235 

~ I 4 $940 

$0 8 

$0 8 

$0 4 

$0 24 

$0 6 

$0 54 

1

----------·---- ------ - ----·-

Task 5- GEOTECHNICAL ASSESSMENT 
- - ~ - - - -

5.1 Research and review district documents (drawings and reports) 

5.2 
Research and review USGS, CGS, ACWD, Fremont, Hayward and 
Union City geotechnical documents 

5.3 nical Assessment 

5.4 Meetings 

Subtotal 

[Task 6 -SEISMIC RISK ANALYSIS _ 

6.1 
Perform risk analysis based on likelihood of occurrence from seismic 

luations in tasks 4 & 5 and con of failure from task 2 

Conduct a District Board Workshop to review potential service criteria 

6.2 
seismic performance, review seismic risk score for each faci lity and 

iscuss cost and service implications of conceptual seismic 
improvements. 

Subtotal 

[Task 7- SEISMIC ASSESSMENT REPORT 
- -----

Provide a draft written report with findings, seismic upgrade 
7.1 recommendations, prioritization of recommendations and planning-level 

cost estimates. 

7.2 Respond to district comments on draft report 

7.3 Issue final report 

SUBTOTAL 
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Subtotal 

0 $0 

0 $0 

0 $0 

0 $0 

0 0 0 $0 

12 12 $2,820 

6 6 $1,410 

18 0 18 $4,230 
-- --- -- -- - --

-

1 $235 6 $990 7 $1,225 

$0 4 $660 4 $660 

1 $235 2 $330 3 $565 

2 $470 12 $1,980 14 $2,450 

97 $22,795 298 $49,170 395 $71,965 

0 

4 

6 

10 
. - •-•--n-

-

4 $940 

$0 

1 $235 

5 $1 ,175 

101 $23,735 

Dave Mathy 
Geotechnical Expert 

Hours@ $210 

--

0 

8 

16 

16 

8 

48 

0 $0 
--

$0 

$0 

$0 

0 $0 

48 $10,080 

Direct 
Costs 

$0 

Professional 

Fees 

Totals 

". • .. I 

$1 ,880 

$1 ,880 

$940 

$5,640 

$1,410 

$3,360 

$3,360 

$3,760 

$2,820 

$6,580 ---r -----

$2,165 

$660 

$800 

$0 $3,625 

$0 $105,780 
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Roger Parra 
Principal 

Oegenkolb Engineers 

Bryan Bindrich 
Design Engineer Oegenkolb 

Totals 

Ballantyne Consulting 

Don Ballantyne Principal 

OCM Consulting 

Dave Mathy 
Geotechnical Expert Direct 

Costs 

Hours@ $235 Hours@ $165 Hours@ $235 Hours@ $210 

r=o=P=TI=O=N=A=L=T=a=sk~8=- =T=IE=R~1 =S=EI=S=M=IC~EV=A=L=U=A=T=IO=N=S~O=F=2=0=R=E=P=R=E~SENTATIVESTRUCTURESTODAMAGE-CONTROLPERFORMANCELEVELOROIFFERENTSEISMICH~ARD 
- - --- ------ ----- ·~ ·----------~~-- .... ~ . - --

8.1 

8.2 CIP concrete walls and roof (1985) 

8.3 CIP concrete walls and roof (1993) 

8.4 

8.5 

8.6 

8.7 

8.8 

8.9 Prefabricated steel building ( 1983) 

8.10 CIP Concrete walls and precast concrete roof (1985) 

8.11 Precast concrete walls and roof (1978) 

8.12 Precast concrete walls and roof ( 1985) 

8.13 CIP Concrete walls and steel dome (1978) 

8.14 CIP Concrete walls and steel dome (1985) 

8.15 CMU Walls Steel framed roof and metal decking (1 978) 

8.16 CMU Walls Steel framed roof and metal decking (1990) 

8.17 CIP Walls Steel framed roof and metal decking (1993) 

8.18 It-up concrete walls with steel roof framing (1999) 

8.19 itional Building type to be determined 

8.20 itional Building type to be determined 

SUBTOTAL 

Seismic Vulnerability Assessment, 300-415, Exhibit A 
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3 

2 

2 

3 

2 

2 

3 

2 

3 

3 

2 

3 

2 

3 

2 

3 

3 

Subtotal 41 

138 

$2,685 ·, I ·,I 

8 9 $1,590 

8 9 $1,590 

12 15 $2,685 

9 11 $1,838 

9 11 $1,838 

12 15 $2,685 

9 11 $1,838 

6 7 $1,166 

12 15 $2,685 

12 15 $2,685 

9 11 $1,838 

12 15 $2,685 

9 11 $1,838 

12 15 $2,685 

9 11 $1,838 

6 7 $1,166 

6 7 $1,166 

12 15 $2,685 

12 15 $2,685 

195 236 $41,869 0 0 

493 631 $113,834 101 48 

$300 

$0 

$0 

Professional 

Fees 

Totals 

·, .. 
$1,590 

$1,590 

$2,685 

$1,838 

$1,838 

$2,685 

$1,838 

$1,166 

$2,685 

$2,685 

$1,838 

$2,685 

$1,838 

$2,685 

$1,838 

$1,166 

$1,166 

$2,685 

$2,685 

$41,869 

$147,649 
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 Directors 
 Manny Fernandez 
 Tom Handley 
 Pat Kite 
 Anjali Lathi 
 Jennifer Toy 
  
 Officers 
 Richard B. Currie 
 General Manager 
 District Engineer 
 
 David M. O'Hara 
 Attorney 

 

  

DATE:  November 18, 2013 
 
MEMO TO:  Board of Directors  
 
FROM:  Richard B. Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 
    
 
SUBJECT:  Agenda Item No. 14 – Meeting of November 25, 2013 

Upcoming Workshops Calendar 
 
Recommendation 
 
None. 
 
Information 
 
For your planning purposes, we wanted to give you some advanced notice of upcoming 
workshops.  We will also send notices as we get closer to the actual dates. 
 
February 3, 2014  Mid-Year Budget Workshop 
 
April 21, 2014  Main FY 2015 Budget Workshop  
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 Directors 
 Pat D. Gacoscos 
 Tom Handley 
 Pat Kite 
 Anjali Lathi 
 Jennifer Toy 
  
 
 Officers 
 Richard B. Currie 
 General Manager 
 District Engineer 
 
 David M. O'Hara 
 Attorney 

 

 

DATE: November 25, 2013 
 
MEMO TO: Board of Directors - Union Sanitary District 
 
FROM: Richard Currie, General Manager/District Engineer 
 Sami Ghossain, Manager of Technical Services 
 Michael Dunning, Environmental Compliance Coach 
  
SUBJECT: Agenda Item No. 17 – Meeting of November 25, 2013 

Information Item: Holiday Pollution Prevention Message 
 
 
Recommendation  
 
Information only 
 
 
Background 
 
This holiday season, the Environmental Compliance team is presenting a Pollution 
Prevention message to Fremont, Newark and Union City residents, encouraging them 
to properly dispose of or recycle their used cooking oil.  
 
The Tri-City Voice newspaper will include an advertisement on Thanksgiving Turkey 
Fryer oil recycling starting November 19th and running for two weeks. Residents will be 
advised that they can dispose of all used cooking oil at no cost at the Republic 
Services/Allied Waste location, at 42600 Boyce Road in Fremont (between Stevenson 
and Auto Mall Parkway). 
 
 
 
Attachments: 
FOG Advertisement 
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